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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Macau E&M Holding Limited (the “Company”), | hereby
announce the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”, “we”, “us” or “our”) for the year ended 31
December 2023 (the “Year”).

During the Year, we recorded total revenue of MOP128.3 million.
Business activities were slower when compared with the last three
years. The various sectors in Macau Special Administrative Region
(“Macau”) and the entire city were overshadowed by negative
sentiment. As a result, our business performance was inevitably and
adversely affected.

Despite facing a challenging business environment, we did manage to
win a good number of projects. However, their profit margins were not
at all handsome for the strategic reason of us wishing to maintain
relationship with our customers. As a result, the revenue from certain
projects with low profit margin was not able to cover all the associated
fixed costs and salaries of the Group. The biggest expenditure items of
our operations have always been salary cost plus other fixed costs.
Nevertheless, backed by our well-established market position and
reputation, we will continue to secure more electrical and mechanical
(“E&M”) contracts as well as implement stringent cost control
measures, thus are confident of seeing our business and income
improve in the near future.

Looking forward, with the University of Macau predicting gross
domestic product of Macau set to increase by between 8.3% and 21%
in 2024', we are optimistic about the outlook of Macau and her E&M
industry as a whole, and in turn our business performance. We will
explore new business frontiers for the Group. Our eyes are set on public
housing projects, new government initiatives, and pursuits of all kinds.
With significant progress made in optimizing internal operations, we are
achieving greater efficiencies and cost savings on various operational
fronts. As importantly, we have also strengthened our core competence,
best practices, advanced construction technologies and financial
position.
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EOLMBIRRAEIR AR 2023FERE

05



06

Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
and management of the Company, | thank all our shareholders,
investors, customers and partners for their trust in and continuous
support for the Group. My heartfelt gratitude also goes to all staff
members for their great effort and remarkable performance in 2023
ridden with challenges.

CHEONG Ka Wo
Chairman, CEO and Executive Director

21 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN N DN

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Group is an E&M engineering services works contractor in Macau,
ranking fifth among the E&M engineering services works contractor in
Macau in 2019 according to the market research report on the E&M
engineering services market provided by Frost & Sullivan in 2020. As an
integrated E&M engineering service works contractor registered with
the Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau, the Company
provides a comprehensive mix of E&M engineering service works based
on the needs of its customers in Macau. The comprehensive mix of
E&M engineering works involves a combination of the supply and/or
installation of (i) low voltage systems works; (ii) heating, ventilation and
air-conditioning systems works; and (iii) extra low voltage systems
works, and the relevant testing and commissioning thereof as well as
management and monitoring of quality and delivery of E&M engineering
services works in Macau. The Group began its business through
focusing on the public sector E&M engineering services works projects
and gradually expanded into the private sector. The Group offers repair
and maintenance service for property and hospitality facilities in Macau,
including world class hotels and integrated entertainment resorts. The
demand from this sector would be driven by the strategy and planning
of the casinos and hotel operators in Macau, which would in turn
increase the demand for repair and maintenance related E&M works.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, the E&M market in Macau continued to heavily rely on
government projects, and despite the renewal of casino licenses, launch
of casino projects for tendering had been slower than anticipated. As
those projects had only undergone minor alterations, they had not
significantly contributed to the earnings of the E&M industry.

For the Year, the Group recorded total revenue of MOP128.3 million
(2022: MOP143.0 million). Gross profit and gross profit margin were
MOP7.4 million (2022: MOP25.1 million) and 5.8% (2022: 17.5%), while
net loss and the net loss margin were MOP3.8 million (2022: net profit
of MOP9.3 million) and 2.9% (2022: net profit margin of 6.5%). The
turnaround from net profit to net loss for the Year was primarily
attributable to fewer awarded projects and the significantly narrower
margins of such awarded projects as compared to the year ended 31
December 2022 (“FY2022”). However, to some extent, those projects
still helped the Group to cover certain of its fixed costs and back-office
expenses. Negotiation and bargaining of terms for variance orders
proved to be difficult, as many of them fell short of returns expectation.
The main pressure for the Group was from salary expenses. With no
staff redundancies during the Year, it had to bear the burden of heavy
staff costs, and the very narrow project margins were insufficient to
cover both fixed costs and salaries.

During the Year, the Group had approximately 19 projects on hand, 9
from private sector and 10 from the public sector. In addition, the Group
continued to submit tenders for new projects in its bid to sustain
revenue growth and promote business stability.

The Group has continued to remain in a healthy financial position. As at
the end of the Year, it had cash and bank balances (including short-
term bank deposits and pledged bank deposits) of MOP141.8 million
with bank mortgage borrowings of MOP12.8 million. Net current assets
of the Group amounted to MOP179.6 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

Bt %5 Bl 8
W &8

TRETAEBRE E20234F 2022 F 12
A31HIEFERURZEAA -

2023 2022
2023 2022 F

MOP’000 MOP’000

FHEFIT TEFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(REX) (f&E=z)
E&M engineering works HE TR 124,738 97.2 139,573 97.6
Maintenance and repair services &% N #1E RIE 3,545 2.8 3,473 2.4
128,283 100 143,046 100.0

The Group recorded revenue of MOP128.3 million for the Year, which
represented a year-on-year decrease of 10.3% (2022: MOP143.0
million), the decrease of which was primarily attributable to a decrease
in the number of awarded projects during the Year with significantly
narrower profit margins as compared to FY2022.

Slow recovery of the E&M industrial market in Macau during the Year,
especially for the project tendering from the entertainment and resorts
sector and public sector, has resulted in sluggish demand for E&M
engineering services in Macau.

REBRANFEEBIRZE128.3 B8R T
A bR 2 10.3% (2022 4F : 143.0 @ &8 P9
) BZRALDEEFEARAFEFRZER
HERD - FERE 2022 Bf B E RIgUE o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Gross profit

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s gross profit
and gross margin for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

EA

TREY| A EBRE 22023 F 22022 F 12
A31HIEFEMEF REF EEFL

2023 2022
2023 F 2022

Gross Gross Gross Gross
profit margin profit margin
EF EF=E EA EH =X
MOP’000 % MOP’000 %

FHFIT TR T

(Audited) (Audited)

(R&EX) (fe &%)
E&M engineering works FBIRE 7,410 5.9 22,685 16.3
Maintenance and repair services 1R&E & B ERT (26) (0.7) 2,393 68.9
7,384 5.8 25,078 17.5

For the Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of MOP7.4 million (2022:
MOP25.1 million) and gross profit margin of 5.8% (2022: 17.5%), which
represented a year-on-year decrease of 70.6% and 11.7%, respectively,
primarily attributable to (i) a decrease in the number of awarded projects
during the Year with significantly narrower profit margins as compared
to the year ended 31 December 2022; (ii) more stringent cost control by
the Group’s clients due to the economic downturn which has led to
increasing difficulty in negotiation and bargaining of terms of variance
orders and a reduction in the prices charged and hence, profit margins,
for the variance orders during the Year; (iii) slow recovery of the E&M
industrial market in Macau during the Year, especially for the project
tendering from the entertainment and resorts sector and public sector,
which has resulted in sluggish demand for E&M engineering services in
Macau; and (iv) due to the above factors, the revenue from certain
projects with low profit margin was not able to cover all the associated
fixed costs and salaries of the Group. However, the Group still strives to
be socially responsible and with a view to maintain its competitiveness
and capability, the Group has maintained its existing workforce without
any staff redundancies during the Year.

Other income

Other income increased by MOP2.0 million to MOP3.8 million (2022:
MOP1.8 million). The increase was primarily attributable to the increase
of interest rate and the fixed deposit principal.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENwmR DN

(Impairment losses) reversal of under expected credit
model, net

The impairment losses in trade receivables and contract assets were
MOPO.1 million for the Year (2022: reversal of MOPO0.1 million), the
provision for impairment losses has increased for the Year as a result of
the higher receivables risk being noted from global market. The Group
applied a simplified approach to measure expected credit loss (“ECL”)
which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables and contract assets.
Trade receivables and contract assets with individual significant
balances are assessed for impairment individually, the remaining trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed collectively using a
collective basis with appropriate groupings.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by MOP1.2 million to MOP14.9
million for the Year (2022: MOP16.1 million). The decrease was mainly
due to the saving in professional fee of MOP1.2 million.

Income tax credit (expense)

Income tax credit recorded for the Year amounted to MOP44,000 which
was attributed to the written-back of the overprovision of tax payable of
MOP78,000 for the Year. In FY 2022, income tax expense amounted to
MOP1.2 million, which was resulted from the provision for current tax of
MOP1 million and provision of tax liability for prior years of
MOP200,000.

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

The Group recorded a loss for the Year of MOP3.8 million (2022: profit
of MOP9.3 million) which was primarily attributable to the combined
effect of the abovementioned items.

FEHEEFERAT 2 CRER
1B)#E - FE

RAFENEZERRFERAENEENR
BEEEA01AE R (20224 : #[E10.1
BERMT  AFEMREBEREGERZT
BR 2B RENGIERR AR MM - A
EERBEES A EEHEERSE (B
HMEEEFR])  HYUMBEZRWFERA
NEERBEHBHEEERE - @EXRE
BHNESHERFTIERADEEBBIHEITR
EffE SR TESERGEREHEENE

EnEREREEETRENG -

1T 3

THAZRVI2EBRMALERAFED
1498 &R T (20224 - 16.1 5 &R
L) cHBALEERRGEEEERA12EB
E]PT -

FrgHiE R (FAx)

RARF [E 815 8 FT 15 B K 2 /& 44,0002
TR AFTERDEMNRIEBREREG
78,0008 F9 7T - 2022 L& E » FT 8 %1
X A1.28 8RNI - Zh R HIF 18 #
HB1IEEBRMThBEFERBEEEEE
200,0003% F9 T °

FE (FR)aMNRER (X)W
Nt

AEBRAFEHRBEIRISEERMT
(20224 : & A19.3 8 &RFT) - DL R
BERAEFORHEARE -

FTHEIERAR AR

2023 FEHE

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash management to minimise
financial and operational risks. The Group’s operations mainly relies on
internally generated cash flows from its core business and its savings.

In the management of liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current assets of
MOP179.6 million (2022: MOP189.6 million). The current ratio of the
Group at 31 December 2023 was 5.3 times (2022: 6.9 times).

The Group has maintained a healthy liquidity position. As at 31
December 2023, the Group had total bank balances (including short-
term bank deposits and pledge bank deposits) of MOP141.8 million
(2022: MOP119.8 million). The Group’s bank balances were mainly
denominated in MOP and HKS$.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank mortgage borrowing of
MOP12.8 million (2022: MOP13.3 million) at Bank of China Macau
Branch with interest rate at 1 month Hibor +1.3% and capped interest
rate at Prime -3%, and the Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total
debts dividing by total equity) was 6.2% (2022: 6.2%).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s share capital and reserves
amounted to MOP5.2 million and MOP200.3 million, respectively (2022:
MOP5.2 million and MOP209.6 million, respectively).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HK$ and MOP. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
had no exposure to foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency
swaps or other financial derivatives.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS, AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group had no significant investments held and no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures
during the Year.

The Group had no future plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2023.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had outstanding performance
bonds of MOP1.2 million (2022: MOP5.4 million) which were secured by
pledged bank deposits of MOP42,000 (2022: MOP1.6 million) and a
property with carrying amount of MOP16.6 million (2022: nil). The Group
has obtained total credit facilities of MOP98.8 million (2022: MOP98.0
million) and this credit facilities were secured by the promissory notes
of approximately MOP154.0 million (2022: MOP153.2 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a bank mortgage borrowing of
MOP12.8 million (2022: MOP13.3 million) secured by an aforementioned
property.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other pledged assets or
other significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group entered into labour contracts with its employees in
accordance with the labour laws of Macau. The remuneration package
offered to employees generally includes basic salaries, allowances,
benefits-in-kind and bonus. In general, the Group determines the
remuneration package of its employees based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority.

As the main contractor for some of the projects undertaken, the Group
applies for work permits for its non-Macau resident workers on a
project-by-project basis. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 65
(2022: 61) employees in Macau, comprising 47 Macau residents and 18
non-Macau residents (2022: 42 Macau residents and 19 non-Macau
residents).

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 11 September 2020. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the
eligible participants had or may have made to the Group. Since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to 31 December 2023, no
share option had been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

PROSPECTS

The post-COVID market appears to have mixed sentiment. The
seemingly favourable external and internal factors have yet to bring
material benefits. The reopening of the borders with Mainland China
and the renewed casino licenses have given the market a much-needed
boost. That optimism, however, has not yet turned into business
transactions either. Both the government and private sectors have
remained prudent in embarking on project initiatives. The Group
expects to see a significant belated rebound in around mid to late 2024.
With a solid foundation and in a stable financial position, the Group is
well-poised to welcome a thorough economic recovery and it is on its
way to recover the business in general. This is why the Group in general
remains cautiously optimistic about the market and the E&M industry in
Macau. Embracing the future, it will take initiative to explore potential
business opportunities and lead the market on the road back to
normality.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

As a leading player of the E&M industry in Macau, the Group has
already seized several government projects, which are set to bring
revenue for the year ending 31 December 2024. Moreover, the Group
has been receiving more tender invitations from casinos, hotels and
resorts for the projects to be undertaken in the second half of 2024.
Hence, it is optimistic about securing more new projects and receiving
various opportunities in the foreseeable future.

Regarding internal management, the Group has always upheld a
prudent approach. It has in place stringent measures and policies to
keep all costs well under control, while maintaining a stable workforce.
The Group is strategically positioned and fully prepared to take on new
challenges and seize new opportunities when the market revival starts
gathering pace.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (2022: HK1.08 cents per ordinary share of the Company (the
“Share(s)”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HEBERERRSE

7B i35

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present its fourth Environment, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”). The ESG Report outlines the
Group’s management approaches, policies and practices in
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) aspects for its key
stakeholders.

Reporting Boundary

The Report covers the Group’s material ESG performance from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period” or
“year”). In line with last year, it focuses on the operation of electrical
and mechanical engineering works and management and repair
services, which in aggregate accounts for all the Group’s total revenue
for the year. The environmental key performance indicators (“KPIs”) are
primarily limited to the Group’s corporate offices and a warehouse in
Macau, as these locations have a significant impact on the Group’s
operations. The Group will continuously evaluate its business operations
and development and make suitable adjustments to the reporting
boundary based on the principle of materiality when necessary.

Reporting Standards

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) set out in C2 to the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Four reporting principles, including materiality,
quantitative, balance, and consistency, in the ESG Guide have been
applied during the preparation of the ESG Report.

Reporting Principles The Group’s Application
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Materiality The Group conducted stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment during the year
to identify material issues for key disclosures in the ESG Report.

EELE AEEEAFEERTHEBT SRR
-

Quantitative Quantifiable KPIs and comparative data are disclosed in the ESG Report where feasible
along with information on the standards, methodologies and assumptions adopted for the
calculation.

21t EATIERAT - ESGHRES
MEHREER -

Balance Disclosures in the ESG Report are presented in an objective and transparent manner for a
comprehensive overview of the Group’s ESG performance.

i ESGHRENKBEURE BANAAZE2R  UEXHE TR ALEENESGKRIE

Consistency Unless otherwise specified, the Group adopts consistent methodologies for data collection
and disclosures as far as practical for delivering meaningful comparison of ESG
performance.

— Bt BRIEXZEMA  BRAIREER
BEEEMLLLE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE #HERERRE

Report Approval

The Group is committed to ensuring that all information presented in
the ESG Report is accurate and reliable. All information in this ESG
Report is sourced from the official documents and statistical data of the
Group. The ESG Report was confirmed and approved by the Board on
22 March 2024.

HWE R

NEEH N BIRESGRE A BRI
ERER] 5 - AESGREMATEER KB
B X RAEBESETEE - ESGRER
2024 F 3 22 HEEE SR ML -

Report Publication and Contact

The ESG Report has been prepared in both Chinese and English and
is available on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (the “HKEX”) (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Group
(www.macauem.com).

The Group welcomes and values all opinions on the ESG Report or
its ESG performance.

Email: info@macauem.com

Tel: (853) 2872 0006

Mail: Avenida da Concérdia, nos 175-181,

Edificio Industrial Wang Fu, 10 Andar B e D Macau

RETIHRBES N

ESGHENR EXFEE - WA REABR
SREZFRMBRAR (BEBXBZH])
(www.hkexnews.hk) 48 i [ 7 £ @ 48 Uh
(www.macauem.com) F &[] o

REBEEDY ERFHESG M EHESGHK
BABERN—IBER -

T : info@macauem.com

T ¢ (853) 2872 0006

BE - RPIFNLE K F I 175-181 5%
RE THEARNE10EBE LD

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY
Sustainability Governance

In light of growing attention to sustainability performance, establishing a
robust governance culture and system is crucial for our Group’s future
growth. We are committed to sound corporate governance and high
ethical standards. Our goal is to integrate ESG considerations into our
strategic development, reflecting our dedication to responsible
corporate citizenship.

AR EE
ARERREER
BEMHEZRR\ARIINET 2R
BROEAXMMEHARERRERE
BREEZ - LB NIRRENEEERLSE
ZIRE - BIZERGESGHE ZM AR MM E
BRERE  BRAMBORBATENEER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRE

Governance Structure
The Board

The Board, as the highest governing body of the Group, bears the
overall responsibility and actively leads and oversees all material ESG
and climate-related matters. To ensure effectiveness, it regularly
reviews and monitors the progress towards ESG-related strategies and
goals, and when appropriate, expands and enhances the management
approaches to these areas. Its roles and responsibilities include:

° formulating the Group’s overall management and business
strategy

° revising risk management and internal control systems
° supervising the performance of senior management

° ensuring effective management of sustainability matters across all
divisions

The ESG Committee

The ESG Committee, chaired by the Chairman of the Board, comprises
representatives from different departments and meets at least once a
year. Under the leadership of the Board, it manages the ESG and
climate-related matters of the Group. As outlined in the Terms of
Reference, its main duties involve:

o overseeing the development of ESG and climate-related matters
and make recommendations to the Board

° overseeing the establishment of ESG and climate-related policies
and practices and their effective implementation

° reviewing and monitoring training and continuing professional
development of the Directors and executives

° implementing ESG policies and practices
o assessing ESG and climate-related risks

o reviewing and advising on the Group’s ESG performance and
reporting

During the Reporting Period, two meetings were held to discuss and
review ESG-related work and action plans. Moving ahead, the Group
will discuss and develop strategies and goals related to ESG and
climate change, advancing its ESG management and performance.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRE

Risk Management

The Board recognises its responsibility for managing risk and internal
control systems, as well as reviewing their effectiveness. The Board has
delegated its risk management and internal control responsibilities to
the Audit Committee. This body oversees management in the design,
implementation, and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Board conducts a review of the risk management
and internal control systems’ effectiveness at least once a year.

This year, the Group incorporated ESG-related risks into its risk
management system and annual risk assessment, with the assistance
of an independent external consultant. The Group assessed the ESG-
related risks it may face, such as regulatory updates and compliance,
environmental investment, natural disaster, climate change, low-carbon
economy transition, human resources, industrial safety, environmental
or social risks along supply chain, customer management, data privacy,
IT security, intellectual property, and anti-money laundering. There was
no material ESG risks identified for the year.

For more details on the Group’s corporate governance practices, please
refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this annual
report.

Compliance Management

The Group strictly follows all relevant laws and regulations, recognising
that any non-compliance could impact normal business operations,
financial status, and reputation. In severe cases, it could even lead to
regulatory enforcement actions. The Group has implemented robust
internal control measures to guarantee strict compliance of its business
operations with legal and regulatory requirements. To maintain full
compliance, each department is dedicated to reviewing and staying
updated with the latest regulatory developments relevant to its work.

Throughout the year, to the best of the Board and management’s
knowledge, there was no material breach of, nor non-compliance with,
any applicable laws and regulations related to ESG that have significant
impacts on the Group. Besides, there were no legal cases of corrupt
practices against the Group or its employees.

[ Bz & 2

EFeRHIASEEAEERR AR
ZHIARY BEESEARE -EEEC KA
REEMABEFNETBERTEXEZE
g MEZZESEELREERREENA
HRIEHI R HRET  ERMER EEEE
LEBERNEAREBIARBENEARNE
MNE

REE - REBEEF N EPEER E B T
ESG & b #h A E [ B B 32 & 8 M 4F 2 = B
A o AREEFHE A BEE R AV ESG R
PImEEEHEAR RERE - BRX
FoRERE(E - KRMEBEELY - ANER -
TEZE  HEFERRILEAR  TPE
2 ENRL - EERMEE  MEBEEN
RAESF - AFEAB|EHREAESGAR -

BRASELREATRNFS -
FERS[ERERME] & -

RS

BRERE
AEBEBEETHAERBERER  ARE
EERTAYARTELEERES B
BRARBE BEEEZAHREREEE
FIRERREUATTE) - AERECE A H R AREL
ZHIfE G MREHELBRETERER
BX - BERTEER - SMARNREL
FHEETHFAMNSMEEER -

BEFEMEEEMM  ARERAFES
FUEREERITETEAMEAERE
BERFENESGHREDERER - 1IN - TRE
HEAEEXEREBRITRIERRM -

RTHEZERBRAQR

2023 F[E M

19



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE #HERERRE

Laws and Regulations
with Significant Impacts

on the Group

HEKEMEEARENEFER

Possible Material Impacts
AREATE

20

Emissions Law No. 2/91/M The violation of relevant laws and regulations may result
General Regulation of Public in administrative and economic penalties, and may also
Place approved by affect the progress of the project and damage the
Administrative Regulation No. reputation of the Group.
28/2004
Law No. 22/2020

HER E2/91/M IR AR BEMRBERERRESEITHR LRGBS R - BT
SE28/2004RITHUERALER) ZEEAEETEEAEEBZE -
(R FRRE)
5 22/2020 5% % 2

Employment Law No. 7/2008 The violation of employment-related laws and
Law No. 21/2009 regulations may lead to a large number of talent losses,
Law No. 8/2020 face administrative penalties, and may lead to litigation

cases.

B= £7/2008 55 A EERERFEABEERERATEERREATREL - HEET
££21/2009 5% A2 B S WA B B BER AR -
% 8/20205% )£ 12

Occupational

Decree Law No. 44/91/M

The violation of health and safety-related laws and

Health and Law No. 3/2014 regulations can lead to administrative and financial
Safety penalties and affect project schedules. Safety incidents
can threaten the safety of employees and lead to costly

litigation.
BERERELRZR E44/9/MIRER BERERZE2EBERERATREBITR I RS
£3/201450AE TEBEREE REFWARHEEIZ 2V ERE S

B BB A -
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Laws and Regulations
with Significant Impacts

on the Group

HEAKEREEALENERESR

Labour ° Law No.7/2008
Standards ° Chief Executive’s Dispatch No.
343/2008
° Chief Executive’s Dispatch No.
344/2008
LTIRE o F7/2008% %=

. % 343/2008 5% 1T K B #t R
. % 344/2008 SR1T UK B #L 7~

Possible Material Impacts
HEATE

The violation of relevant laws and regulations may result
in administrative and economic penalties, and damage
the Group’s reputation.

ERER A BEER TR M B RS 0 WIBEAR

ES AR
SEBE-

Product °
Responsibility 88/2010
o Law No. 44/91/M

° Law No. 3/2014

e
o
il
m
[ ]

% 88/2010 51T E B #iL 7~
. 5 44/91/MER L2
. 53/2014 58512

Chief Executive’s Dispatch No.

The violation of relevant laws and regulations not only
affects reputation and competitiveness in the market,
but may also lead to administrative penalties, exposing
the Group to high litigation and seriously affecting the
Group’s profitability.

EEBBERER M $§%$EIEE&EE$%¢ EI’J
HEN EGEPTRES  EXAEERNSFHAR
VEREXEREBHOBNEET -

Anti-corruption ° Law No. 19/2009

% 19/2009 58 %12

The violation of relevant laws and regulations can
weaken the Group’s ability to operate and damage its

reputation.
EBHBEARERAHISAEEELR NI BEERE
g o
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Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is crucial for our business growth and
sustainable development. The Group values stakeholders’ significant
contributions and acknowledges their key role in improving its ESG
management and performance. To comprehend ESG-related issues
from our stakeholders’ viewpoint, we maintain regular communication
and close collaboration with them.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has identified key stakeholder
groups and has actively reached out to them through a range of
communication channels:

AN HE S 2

Mz 2EHERMNEBER LA
BRRZMERZ - AREERNDEMTH
EZER ARREUNEESGEE LK
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BRZERBREERNFRGEME
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Materiality Assessment Cy R

During the Report Period, the Group commissioned an independent  R&EHR  NEBZ BN BBERFEHA=
external consultant to perform a materiality assessment using a three- S AETEEMT G- W H A EFESESE
step approach. The approach was refined by employing the concept of K% - BRI EZ B K EEU LT ES
double materiality, which considers both financial and impact Z 4 - KNEERIE 4 R4 B H EESGR
materiality. Based on the results, the Group identified the ESG issues MEFKFBEZWEEAESGEE °

crucial for enhancing its ESG strategy and performance.

Identification o The Group identified 21 relevant ESG issues, referencing the ESG
5 7l Guide, reporting trends, and industry peers.
o  AEEBEZLETESGIES| - MEBYLEARITE AR 21 EHERI ESGHRE -

Prioritisation ° The Group invited both internal and external stakeholders to

HEEBEIERF participate in an online survey. The purpose of this survey was to rate
the materiality of the ESG issues.

° Views regarding how issues affect the Group’s enterprise value, as
well as the Group’s impact on the economy, environment, and society,
were collected and evaluated to determine the overall materiality of
each issue.

° A materiality matrix was created along with a list of prioritised issues.

s AEEBFARMIBANEHEBOT2ERLAS - FHEEHILFE
ESGEEMEEIE -

e HMEWETAEHEZENATEAEECEXEEURAEEHEK
B RERMENFENER  UBTEEZENREEZ T -

e CERIREEMRERELREBE -

k] Validation ° The ESG Committee and the Board reviewed the results of the

B materiality assessment.
e ESGZEGhEFIRNEEMITMENER -
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The matrix below illustrates the overall materiality of the 21 ESG issues.
It charts the impact these issues have on the Group’s business value
and the Group’s impact on the economy, environment and society. The
issues located in the top right corner of the matrix are considered most
material to the Group, and are thus the primary focus of our disclosures
in this ESG Report.
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Impact on the Economy, Environment and Society
RERMEN

Tier 3
34K

Low

{8

AT BRI 21 A ESGREMNBRER M -
EEBENZEREHAREXGEENY
 UEAEEHEKE REAMENT
Z2-EEALANZEERRREARERS
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Tier 1
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Tier 2
248

Low
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* Social &
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Under the new materiality assessment approach, four issues were
identified as material this year. Occupational Health and Safety, Product
and Service Quality and Safety, Employment Practices, and Labour
Standards, were the most material issues.
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Tier Materiality
Issue (in descending order of materiality) EE(REETMRERFHES) % Bl EEM
11 Occupational Health and Safety BEEEREZE
13 Product and Service Quality and Safety EnMEEEERELE Material
] 1
8 Employment Practices RELE ] £
12 Labour Standards BITAR
19 Business Ethics [BE3EN
20 Risk Management [P I8
10 Training and Development Bl R E# R
14 Customer Engagement EF4H
6 Materials R
. ) . Moderate
17 Responsible Supply Chain Management BEANHEEEIE 2 h
16 Responsible Marketing BEENTSE M N
15 Privacy and Data Security BLEERLZE
9 Diversity and Equal Opportunity Lt R FEEHE
4 Energy BER
21 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights I ERERE
18 Community Engagement and Investment HR2ENEE
3 Waste EEY
7 Climate Change and Resilience RIS REELEH 3 Monitored
5 Water K B8
1 Air Emissions & BB
2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions BEREEHEN

Material Issue

EERE

Occupational Health and Safety
BERELRZ2

Employment Practices

RESE B

Labour Standards
45 T 2R

Product and Service Quality and Safety
EmMREEERLZS

Relevant Section in the Report

BEREBEED

Building a Supportive Workplace — Occupational Health and Safety
BN THESH - BRERERLSE

Building a Supportive Workplace — Talent Management
BB TIIESH — AT ER

Building a Supportive Workplace — Labour Rights and Standards
B BB IES — e RIRE

Driving Operational Excellence — Delivering Quality Services

HEEHEMEE — REEERS
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BUILDING A SUPPORTIVE WORKPLACE

The Group is deeply committed to creating a dynamic work environment
that values its people. Our approach is comprehensive, prioritising the
health, safety, and rights of our employees. We value their well-being
and work to improve it at every turn. We also believe in the potential for
learning and growth, providing abundant opportunities for training and
advancement. Our aim is to foster a deep sense of belonging and a
sense of achievement among our employees.

Occupational Health and Safety

Policy Purpose

BR B

Work Site Safety Require site workers to adhere to various
Reference occupational safety guidelines

(THZ22%E) BRTHTANBTEREBEL IR

Accident Handling Make orderly arrangements and reduce
Guide hazards in case of emergencies

(EHUEEESD EESZBRATHEBFLH  REBE
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Focus

X

Provide guidelines on fire prevention, manual
work, construction materials and the use of
personal proactive equipment

REb - FIER  BEMHREADERE
ARt 5 3

Provide guidelines for the prevention of and
response to accidents and injuries on site
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Protecting Our Employees REES

The Group values the well-being of all our employees, with a strong AEBEER2EEEMNEL - BABEREE
focus on occupational health and safety. We work hard to create a safe K% %2 B HABITAELZ 2 RENIRE -
and healthy environment for our staff. Our goal is to eliminate work- F I BIZREHR TESHW  TEHNEHE
related injuries, and we are committed to continually improving ®EEELZZ - RFIREESERELEEM
occupational health and safety. Our dedication is demonstrated through  E T {ES T AL 2 EERHE -

the careful implementation of various safety practices, making our

workplace a model for safety and health.

Policies and measures o The Group implemented the “Work Site Safety Reference”. This

B R reference provides guidelines on fire prevention, manual work,
construction materials, and the use of personal protective equipment.
Regular or irregular inspections by supervisors are conducted to
monitor employees’ adherence to safety instructions.

o The Group periodically reviews the effectiveness of these policies and
measures to ensure they continue to meet the needs of our employees
effectively.

e ZFAEBEEEM(IMETE2E) Z2EREN FILIEX BEVH
MABAAB EREERRMIES - TEAEGEHITTHRE  &E
BEETLE2ETHEBER -

o AEBETFHRNZFBELEROKY  BREEERCLHEEES

;JZ o
Incident Management ° The Group has established an “Accident Handling Guide” to respond
EHER promptly to health and safety incidents. This guide offers guidelines

for handling on-site accidents and injuries, and aims to prevent such
risks in the workplace as much as possible.

° In the event of a work-related accident, the Project Management Team
will quickly assist the injured person. They will also review the cause of
the accident, submit an investigation report to the Group, and develop
relevant measures to prevent similar accidents in the future.

o AEECHIE(EHERIES)  UWAREEHBRERLEFW - ZIE5
REEUBRISFEUREENIES - EERAIRETRN TESMEILER
B o

e —HEATEH=W BHEEBREBKARBHEE  THBRKEEHR
CAAREBERZFAERE - WHITERBERD IS REEROUER -

Education and training o The Group is committed to providing comprehensive education and

HE RIEI training on health and safety. Supervisors or senior employees offer
guidance on work procedures, safety equipment usage, tool handling,
and the work environment.

° Besides completing government-mandated safety courses, employees
are also required to receive on-site work safety training. The goal is to
ensure employees possess the necessary skills and knowledge for
their roles, thereby ensuring their own safety.

. Employees who violate work safety instructions for the first time will
receive a warning and will be required to complete retraining. Repeat
violators will face termination.

e AEEZINREZENRBEZEZHEREN - FTEXEREESH
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Monitoring Subcontractor

We value our subcontractors greatly, maintaining open and sincere
communication to foster enduring, mutually beneficial relationships. We
prioritise the safety of our site workers, requiring that they obtain the
Occupational Health and Safety Card for the Construction Industry
before starting their tasks. Our Engineering Department takes proactive
steps, offering training for high-risk roles and making sure protective
gear is always worn. Through these measures, we aim to create a safe
environment for subcontractors’ workers, reducing health and safety
risks, and enabling them to work with confidence.

During the Reporting Period, no work-related injuries occurred. There
were no work-related fatalities recorded in the past three reporting
years, including the Reporting Period.

Talent Management

Policy Purpose

BH

BUR

Employee Handbook Provide a clear basis for human resources
management to ensure fair and objective
management principles, and create a
respectful, fair, and friendly working
environment

CEITFmD) RANEBERERRHAENIKE  BRAT
FENEERA 2EEE 2 FRREN
THERE

Employee Standardise the Group’s human resources

Recruitment recruitment and allocation management,

Procedures enhance recruitment efficiency and improve
the talent selection mechanism

(BIHEREF) RBAEBANERBEREERE 51

B E - 52 AT E B

Diversity Policy Attract and retain people who are highly

Statement competent, and actively contribute to the
long-term success of the business

(ZEBRER) RoIRBREBEFAS  BRAGENRIK
NEH BB

Code of Ethics Require employees to understand and adhere

to the Group’s business ethics principles and
requirements

B
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Focus

BEX

Provide guidance on staff remuneration,
dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, labour standards and
benefits

RHEIHFEH MBE- BE BAH IEH
HEHRA - FEHRE ZIM RER -5
IEEREN®IER

Specify the Group’s recruitment plans and
principles, division of responsibilities,
application requirements, and selection of
candidates

RIAREEEEGERRA - BEST - EE
TR RARE AP

Detail the Group’s commitment and approach
to diversity in the workplace

AR AR E Y TSI % UL ARG R ITA

Contain general guidelines for conducting the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries
consistent with the highest standards of
business ethics
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The Group’s long-term business success hinges on the collective
efforts and contributions of its employees. Therefore, safeguarding
employees’ legitimate rights and interests, and nurturing outstanding
talent, is not just a cornerstone for the Group’s long-term growth, but
also crucial for its sustainable development.

We have in place employment-related policies and measures that
provide guidance regarding remuneration, dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, labour standards and benefits. These are also detailed in
the “Employee Handbook”, which is communicated to all employees.

Talent Attraction and Retention

To retain our skilled employees and attract new talents, we offer a
competitive remuneration package. This includes a fair base salary,
bonus opportunities, allowances, and additional forms of compensation.
The Group provides several benefits to employees, such as training
allowances, bereavement leave, maternity and paternity leave, and
medical benefits. Additionally, the Group acknowledges employees’
exceptional performance with motivational feedback. This includes
appraisals, salary adjustments, promotions, and Long Service Employee
Awards to boost employee satisfaction.

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

The Group advocates for equal opportunity and diversity in the
workplace. We firmly uphold equality in all employment aspects,
offering equal opportunities to employees regardless of race, ancestry,
place of origin, colour, ethnic origin, language, citizenship, creed,
religion, gender, sexual orientation, age, marital status, physical and/or
mental handicap, or financial ability. Decisions about recruitment,
promotion, and remuneration are based on objective and work-related
criteria. The Group does not tolerate any form of harassment or
discrimination.

To promote a supportive workplace environment for nursing mothers,
we set up a breastfeeding room for employees. By accommodating the
needs of nursing mothers, we are fostering an inclusive environment
that respects and values the unique experiences and challenges of our
diverse workforce.
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Labour Rights and Standards

The “Code of Ethics” states that the Group recognises the fundamental
and universal nature of human rights in line with international
agreements and treaties. These include the United Nations International
Human Rights Conventions and the International Labour Organisation.

To prevent child labour and forced labour, the Human Resources
department verifies the age of all job applicants by requiring valid
identification from an official authority before employment. Additionally,
we have implemented a five-day workweek and provide compensation
for overtime to safeguard our employees’ rights. The Group follows
appropriate and legal procedures for resignations and terminations to
ensure fair treatment of employees.

Employee Engagement

The Group promotes a positive and cooperative work environment. To
achieve this, it has set up various communication channels like regular
meetings, dialogues, and performance evaluations, which gather
employee viewpoints and suggestions. To enhance team building and
foster a sense of belonging, we organise activities such as festive
parties and an annual dinner for our employees. Their family members
are also welcome to participate in these activities. These activities not
only reduce work-related stress, but also promote a unified corporate
environment, thereby creating a caring workplace.

If a violation of the employment system or labour standards is
suspected, the Group encourages employees to report any misconduct
or malpractice. Reports can be made to their supervisors, human
resources managers, or even in a written complaint to the Board. The
Group has established protective measures to prevent retaliation
against employees who report business conduct issues in good faith or
cooperate with the Group’s investigation.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BEENRERE

(BEBERTADAE  AREZEEA
BIFR AR KD M (BIFR 85 T 44D F Bl 1%
RAGHERABNERE R BB -

RBERERETMBESEE  ANEREDM
ZEMRARBENSFR  ZRERARLT
BN EBERBEOBARE DEMF s - B
MEEARTHERRE#MTEE  RES
Thess - AEEEREE B A R B B
BiZF  BRE TR FHE-

BE2

AEBEBEBAIENTHERE - Bt > K
%‘EIL_LT@IJ’S KaE LB RRHE S Z A
BRE WEREENBHNES - BT IR
BB ER REFBRE  HFISEBABED
AREMFEHLY  TELRESHE - %
FEBMERRETIEES - BREIRREE
MBERE - KmEERENTIESH -

ERASREBSREBRENSTRE  KA&H
HEEEERERNIZTAIERTA A
MELER - ANBEREESEH  EXAEF

SRXEMRF - AEED I ERERE
Bﬁiffﬁaﬁ%%#&%ﬁ%ﬁ%?pﬂﬁiﬁﬂéﬁ%
EHEEHE T HEITRE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE #HERERRE

Talent Development

The Group understands that nurturing talent is crucial for its long-term
development. To align with business needs, the Human Resources
department and senior management handle processes related to
employee evaluation and promotion.

The Group aims to provide numerous on-the-job training opportunities.
Our goal is to encourage employees to pursue the professional
knowledge relevant to their positions, in line with the “Code of Ethics”.
We organise a series of training programs to cater to the varied needs
of different departments and positions. These programs include:

Target Audience Training Program

ATEE

AEERH  HEATREFSREBRRNE
B REAEBFR - ANEBERIFIRER
EEEREABEITEMEAMNRE -

AEEFNRHAEBERFIKE - BIER
BB TRBRASEGEXERTIDAE
BERUMBOEMEZNE - RAAKT
—ZFIEFIEHE - LA = R #B P B i 9
sRETR - AFTERE

BEEAR $Z A5t &

Newly recruited Orientation training
employees

MABET AR

All employees Regular on-the-job training
EEET E BB A

Employees involved Additional training courses
in the site operation

SEBIGEFENE T BIMEIIRE

We fully fund refresher courses for our registered technicians. This
employee-friendly policy boosts their professional knowledge and
encourages motivation to learn.

Assist new employees in understanding
the corporate culture, rules, and
regulations, as well as their rights and
responsibilities
ERHEITHEEXL REHIE A
KEENREE

Equip existing employees with the
necessary skills and knowledge to
perform their job safely and effectively,
including occupational health and safety,
anti-corruption, etc.
ERAEIZREVZNRERTE &
ERERRELZE2 REFEF ULE
B R TERR TAE

Further enhance employees’ skills and
knowledge in their respective fields,
keeping them updated with the latest
industry trends and practices

An assessment is conducted to validate
employees’ skills in implementing safe
production operations, strengthening
their abilities in preventing accidents and
handling emergencies
E-—FRSEIESBEHNKELA
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DRIVING OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

The Group attaches great importance to the continuous improvement of
our construction quality as well as enhancing customers’ confidence.
Apart from that, the Group utilises an effective quality management
system to build mutual trust with customers and suppliers, and promote
long-term partnerships.

Delivering Quality Services

Purpose
B

Policy
R

Project Management Ensure and enhance the quality of construction
Guidelines
(TR ERES) BENRRRIEE

Providing high-quality products and services for customers is a core
value of the Group. We employ stringent quality and schedule control
processes in our daily operations, such as the “Project Management
Guidelines,” to ensure and enhance construction quality.

The quality of our buildings is crucial to our business development.
Therefore, our Project Management Team inspects and assesses the
quality and safety of the buildings. This inspection ensures that the
project follows the plan and standards, and helps to prevent significant
issues. All parties involved in the project meet to review safety,
environmental, schedule, design, and site coordination matters.

The Group believes that customer feedback is essential for enhancing
the customer experience and driving positive changes in our business.
We share all customer comments with the relevant departments,
including our Project Management Team. We are committed to
continually evaluating customer feedback, reviewing our services, and
incorporating their suggestions. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not receive any customer complaints.
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Upholding Corporate Ethics

Policy
BE

Purpose

BH

Employee Handbook Provide employees with guidance on how to
deal with conflicts of interest and ensure they
understand the circumstance under which
they should exercise caution

CEITFMD RETIRMHNAEENSERNOES - HER
HTYWMEZEERTENBR
Code of Ethics Require employees to understand and adhere

to the Group’s business ethics principles and
requirements, including the confidentiality of
information

(BEBRTAD ERETTRIBTASENHEBRRA

REF - BRERRE

Technology Ensure that the data provider understands

Resources Use Policy and agrees with the Group’s use and handling
of relevant data, and standardise the way
employees handle the relevant information.

(RITEREMRBER) MERBUSIRHEERBRIL RS AEELHHREE
BHERAMREE REETRBHEBEND
AR

Anti-corruption

The Group consistently upholds high business ethical standards,
mitigating corruption through corporate governance, internal controls,
and risk management. This is continuously overseen by the Board. The
Group has developed the “Employee Handbook” and the “Code of
Ethics” to guide all employees in maintaining integrity at work,
particularly in areas such as anti-corruption and anti-bribery. To further
promote integrity, the Group follows standard operating procedures and
provides regular training to the Board and its employees.

Any suspected violations of anti-corruption standards or other unethical
behaviour can be reported anonymously by employees and business
partners. They can do this by contacting the Human Resources
department or other relevant departments via phone or email. All reports
will be investigated and handled confidentially according to internal and
external regulations.

During the Year, the Group did not have any concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against itself or its employees.

PN
BRiEEEE

Focus

BEX

Summarise the code and guidelines for
handling conflict of interest and require
employees to avoid any situations that could
lead to a conflict of interest
BB N s m R ER RIS EXKET
A AT BE S| BN R & RAY BN

Contain general guidelines for conducting the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries
consistent with the highest standards of
business ethics, including handling company
and customer information and prohibiting
disclosing any customer or internal information
and data to third parties without approval
AERRER R R EREERRARRILA
MEBAREBHN—RES BREREARK
BEPENURREHENSRAE =7 REE
&P AEE B R EIE

Describe the ways and principles of the
Group’s collection and processing of personal
data of customers and others, including
collection for use and disposal
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Data privacy and intellectual property rights

In the era of digital transformation, the construction industry is delving
deeper into data management. It continually improves and adopts
advanced technologies and information systems to enhance operational
efficiency.

Any unintentional leakage of customers’ personal information could
seriously affect the Group’s reputation and operations, potentially
leading to financial losses. The Group uses cybersecurity defense tools
such as network monitoring, hacker detection, and vulnerability
scanning systems to ensure the security of network communication,
data, and personal information.

The Group respects all intellectual property rights (“IPR”) and their
owners, and is committed to ensuring all IPR are effectively protected in
our business operations. To strengthen IPR management, the Group
has implemented the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and
Technology Resources Use Policy. These documents standardise the
management, maintenance, and monitoring of intellectual property
rights.

Promoting Sustainability in the Supply Chain

Policy Purpose
BE B
Engineering Provide standards and guidelines for working

Procurement and
Subcontracting
Guidelines
(IRRERER

S HESD

with suppliers

REEMER S FNRE RIS

Code of Ethics Clearly list the requirements for suppliers to
ensure that employees can select suppliers in
a prudent and fair manner

(BRERSTRD BRI HEHERNER  MRETENE
B AR ER

Sustainable Supply
Chain Management
Policy Statement

List out the unified set of sustainability values
and implementation standards the Group
upholds in the supply chain

\GIEST -29/:3 IR ASEEAEREBREDERN —ER O
EERKER) SELZREEBREREL
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Focus

BEX

List out the specific application and execution
process of different methods, such as
invitation to tender, direct commissioning, and
strategic procurement

FIHBE BEEET  SMERBETIRF D
BREALNITEE

Outline the requirements for suppliers, which
include maintaining ethical behaviour and
ensuring project safety as conditions of doing
business

REHHERNER BREEFERTR
NERERREERAREBNIGMG A

Specify our commitment to supplier ESG risk
reviews, the use of green products and regular
communication and feedback with suppliers
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As the Group continues to evolve, the performance of our suppliers and
contractors becomes increasingly intertwined with our operations.
Therefore, the Group employs standardised criteria to select and assess
suppliers and contractors. We also formulate and enforce “Engineering
Procurement and Subcontracting Guidelines,” which outline the rules
for collaborating with suppliers. The Project Management Team
evaluates and selects suppliers based on commercial terms, cost,
reputation, quality assurance, business management models, and
business coverage areas. The procurement practices were implemented
on all suppliers during the year.

The Group recognises the significance of managing environmental and
social risks in its supply chain. By fostering environmental
consciousness and encouraging positive behavior within the supply
chain, the Group believes it can not only improve its operations but also
contribute to a green community that supports human health and
wellbeing.

Guided by the Environmental Policy Statement and the Sustainable
Supply Chain Management Policy Statement, the Group ensures that its
expectations on pertinent social and environmental issues are
communicated to suppliers. This aligns their values with the Group’s.

The Sustainable Supply Chain Management Policy Statement
emphasises our dedication to conducting supplier ESG risk reviews,
utilising green products, and fostering continuous communication and
feedback with suppliers. We give priority to business partners who
demonstrate outstanding sustainability performance and consider
environmental performance as a vital criterion when choosing
subcontractors.

Our preference leans towards environmentally friendly suppliers. All
potential suppliers must adhere to the Group’s “Code of Ethics”, which
sets out standards for maintaining ethical behavior and ensuring project
safety — both integral to conducting business. Additionally, our Project
Management Team adjusts procurement guidelines and the suppliers’
code of ethics in response to market demands.
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REDUCING ENVIRONMENTAL
FOOTPRINT

The Group recognises the potential environmental impacts of its
operations and proactively undertakes measures to mitigate these risks.
It has introduced various initiatives, such as emissions reduction and
pollution prevention plans, energy and water efficiency actions, and
waste management strategies, all aimed at achieving the goals of
emissions reduction and resources conservation. To effectively
implement these measures, the Group has established a robust
environmental management system. This system allows for
performance monitoring and ensures compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. We offer practical steps for our employees to adopt
environmentally friendly practices at work and encourage our business
partners to improve their environmental performance.

Policy
BE

Purpose
B &

Environmental
Protection Policy
Statement

Provide guidance on how the Group reduces
its environmental footprint and promotes
sustainability

CRREEREZR) A ER B a0 fa] ) ) BRI R R e (R A T AR B

RIEHIES

The Group is fully committed to its environmental responsibilities and
will continue to monitor and conduct reviews on the emissions and
resources consumption. By doing so, the Group aims to gain a
comprehensive understanding of its environmental footprint and
develop strategies to reduce any negative impact. Based on these
insights and findings, the Group will set future environmental targets,
demonstrating its ongoing commitment to environmental sustainability
and responsible business practices.
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Focus

BEX

Outline specific goals and actions, such as
reducing carbon emissions, improving
resource efficiency, and preventing
environmental pollution, as well as information
about monitoring and enforcement measures
that can help ensure compliance
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Our Roadmap to Environmental Target-setting

BAMRE B RRR

Phase 1 Set directional and forward-looking goals
In light of the performance of our industry, the characteristics of our
business, initial evaluations of our environmental performance, as well as
data collection and other considerations, we plan to set directional and
forward-looking environmental targets as a first step. These targets
encompass emissions reductions, waste minimisation, the improvement
of energy efficiency and water efficiency.

F1RBER FIER MR ATEERE
BETERE  ¥BEY REERNILTEAREREEREME
ERAZE - BMFFEEEGIE A RAEEIRTE S - ZF B ESERE
WAREY) - IRREEIRBUE R AKHE -

Phase 2 Develop quantitative environmental targets
The development of quantitative environmental targets will be based on
preliminary directional goals. This process involves the ongoing collection,
measurement, and review of quantitative data for both current and future
environmental performance. These quantitative targets will be established,
following the principles of being specific, measurable, attainable, relevant,
and time bound.

F2EER FIEELCRERE
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Phase 3 Formulate action plans and track progress
Corresponding strategies and action plans will be formulated based on
the set quantitative targets. Continuous tracking and reviewing of data are
necessary to monitor the progress towards achieving these targets. The
strategies and action plans will be adjusted timely, according to the
progress made.
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Emissions Reduction and Management

As part of the global community, we see it as our responsibility to act
decisively in transitioning to low-carbon practices. We are actively
implementing a robust strategy to reduce our carbon footprint. This
strategy involves a series of practices designed to lower emissions and
improve resource efficiency. These steps not only benefit the
environment but also promote our sustainable growth and underline our
commitment to environmental responsibility. They include:

Operations Objectives

EE BE

Offices ° Reduce carbon and air emissions and
waste generation through promoting
green practices in the offices
BBERAEHELEED R
RESRBERUA R BEE M E &
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Practices

&5

Green Office:

. Encourage employees to turn off unused
appliances to prevent waste

o Post power-saving labels in offices to
promote the reduction of energy
consumption

Eco-driving:

° Utilises vehicles with lower emissions of
air pollutants and greenhouse gases
(“GHG”)

o Regularly check and maintain all vehicles
to ensure energy efficiency and lower
fuel consumption

. Drivers of the Group are required to pre-
plan the shortest routes and avoid idling
vehicle engines to reduce unnecessary
fuel consumption
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Operations Objectives Practices

&E B &5

Green Business Travel:

° Use teleconferencing and
videoconferencing as much as possible
to limit unnecessary business travel

° Encourage the use of railways and sea
transport over air travel for short trips

o Evaluate the necessity, frequency, and
choice of mode for business travel

° Prioritise direct flights to minimise
emissions when business travel is
unavoidable

Waste Reduction:

o Encourage the use of paperless offices
and the reuse of single-sided printing
paper

° Use biodegradable and washable
straws, tableware, cups, and food
containers whenever possible, to reduce
plastic waste

° Promote employee awareness about
waste reduction and explore more
initiatives for waste recycling in the
offices

REER:

e FRUREAEFGHENLEHEEE R
T B ) 2 ik

e HBERKRTERERKREEE M=
&

e  FMEERMMEN  BEERFNERE

o  EBEIRTAELE BEZEERMIE -

BERDBENR

AR

e SBEREBR&LEHANEEERE@MIT
N4

o REMABRBHIE  BREEMRALEYE
BEBRNRE EA NTFRREVE
Z5

s RABIRENER LRREZHEH
NEHITERDEIRNEE
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Operations

B

&E

Construction sites °

BETH J

GHG Emissions

Objectives

Reduce the environmental footprint of
construction projects throughout their
whole life cycle, and safeguard the
health of employees and surrounding
communities through air emissions
reduction

A EEIE B AR AL R BHNRRRE
B SimER AR RRER T RE
At 8 O (R

The Group regularly monitors and assesses its GHG emissions to
strengthen its carbon emissions management. During the Reporting
Period, the total GHG emissions of the Group was 35.24 tonneCO,e
and the intensity was 0.032 tonneCO,e/sqgm and 0.518 tonneCO, e/
employee. The increase in Scope 1 emissions largely came from
heightened petrol usage, a necessity for our business growth. This
played a role in the overall surge in our greenhouse gas emission.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Practices

&5

Cut recycled plastic containers in half to
create lids, which cover exposed
surfaces and prevent dust from
spreading when machines are in use
Regularly maintain equipment and
machinery to ensure they do not release
excessive dust into the environment
Investigate further into best practices in
waste management, such as reusing
materials during project construction
HEKREBRSIKMIEKNES B
MNBEZERRE I -5 E B R
EEYE AR

EHBERBERESE  UBRTEMER
BHRERB S O IRE
E—THAEERYERNREBE B
WMHEEBERBETEREAMH

BERBHEK
AEETFEHER R HREREEEEN - LA
EIEENERE - MEHN  AEENAER
BRI EA3BUE _FILtRhEE  BE
£0.032MF — & bixE & F 75K K%0.518
M-St EE B8 - S#E1 RSN
MEERERABEFERAEEM  MESFKM
EBERAIMNE - ENERMAEREBHEMN
SEEHENRAZ— -
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GHG Emissions'

BERBHRE"
Scope 1 emissions? tonneCO,e 4.03 2.65 52.07%
BE1HERE? WE — L iRE &
Scope 2 emissions?® tonneCO e 31.21 29.39 6.20%
HE2HEMES %k e e
Total GHG emissions tonneCO,e 35.24 32.04 9.99%
l:l g /ﬂniﬁﬁxﬁpb_yi Ufﬂﬁi:%{tﬁﬁ%ﬁ
GHG intensity (by area) tonneCO ,e/sgm 0.032 0.013 145.19%
RERBEE (REmE) —aiREE K
GHG intensity (by employee) tonneCO ,e/employee 0.518 0.525 -1.29%
BERBEE(KRESR) —&aikmEE 1RBE
1 Emission factors were adopted from HKEX “How to prepare an ESG Report — 1 HHAFHEBEEEBX S {2 ESGH
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. & — W2 RRBEREIURENERES] -
2 Scope 1 emissions from the combustion of petrol from vehicle. 2 EE 1k G BEERGETVRELERNBER
8 Scope 2 emissions in 2023 from the consumption of purchased electricity of 3 EE 2 E 2023 F W ANETHEE EENEEE -
the office, emissions in 2022 and 2021 from the consumption of purchased 2022 F 2021 FREMAEREEHEHFE
electricity of the office and warehouse, and emissions in 2020 from the MBERE L K 2020F 5k B 2 EEBE B H A HE
consumption of purchased electricity of the warehouse. HWE -

BIIMEERERAR 2023FEHeE
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Air Emissions

During the Reporting Period, air pollutants generated by the Group were
mainly from vehicle fuel combustion, including 1.03 kg nitrogen oxides,
0.02 kg sulphur oxides and 0.08 kg respiratory suspended particles.
The increase of emissions of Sulphur oxides was mainly due to the
consumption of petrol for more frequent use of vehicles.

ZERBEN

BERA AEEELENZRSRMEIER
BE®HLE  2E1.03TRA|LY - 0.02
TrimAa Y %0.087F 52 /] | A BT B
o ALY TRERIMEE AN E IR
S {50 P R S BUTHE RIS N

Air Emissions* % Change
Z= R Bk 4

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 1.03 0.57 81.48%
BENY) T

Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.02 0.01 122.06%
nk=Rlat7) T

Respiratory suspended particles (RSP) kg 0.08 0.04 90.41%
BN 322tk T

Waste BEEY

The Group firmly adheres to the waste hierarchy principles, often
referred to as the “4Rs”: Reduce, Reuse, Recycle, and Replace. The
Group predominantly generates domestic waste and waste paper.
Approved sanitation service providers dispose of these wastes, which
are either sent to landfills or recycled. During the Reporting Period, the
Group generated a total of 0.44 tonnes non-hazardous waste and the
intensity was 0.394 tonne/‘000 sgm and 0.006 tonne/employee. As in
previous years, there was no hazardous waste generated during the
Reporting Period.

AEBMBAETEZEMERRA - BEATE
B4R RE: Bl A  BRA  BREREK
T ANEEEENETERAE R LEE
Mo L EMBERGEREEEXSESE
Yo S EREHERESRERER  RE S
N AEBHEL0MEEETESY  BE
0.394 M8,/ F J5 2K }2 0.006 E, 1 B - L21%
F—i REHPANTEELEEEEY -

% Change

Total non-hazardous waste generated tonne

EENEEEZMREE 7]

Non-hazardous waste intensity (by area)
BEREYEE (ZEE)

tonne/ '000 sgm
W, 5K

Non-hazardous waste intensity (by employee) tonne/employee

BEREVEE (RESR) WE, &8

0.44 0.56 -22.17%
0.394 0.228 72.90%
0.006 0.009 -28.79%

4 Air emissions from the combustion of petrol from vehicle. Emission factors

were adopted from HKEX “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”.
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EENEREE
S B & R R A AL %E%ﬁ”%
BY - SRS ERERREEREY

Responsible Resources Management

\

bl

The Group prioritises resource efficiency and promotes an eco-friendly
office environment, aiming at reducing resource consumption and 7
potential environmental impacts.

!

Resources Practices

BIR 18 6

Energy ° Require employees to switch off all electricity-consuming equipment before the end of the
day

° Set the operating conditions and temperature standards for air conditioners
° Post tips on conserving electricity to increase employees’ environmental awareness
° Perform regular maintenance of filters and fan coils for optimal performance of ventilation
systems
BEIR . ERET TR ERER
s REZFREBTHRMEIORERE
e RUHBERBIETR EPEIRSRERER
e THHEBBRRLEAKRE CRERGEIREIEE
Water ° Display water conservation tips and posters in hand-washing areas

° Enhance the daily maintenance and management of water equipment

° Promptly repair any damaged water supply pipes and facilities.

K o ERFRREEHKRTMER
o INEAKERMEH A EGEMEE
o REEBEEABIEMMIKEEMRIG

Paper ° Encourage employees to communicate through email and other online methods to
minimise paper usage

° Set printers and photocopiers to default to double-sided printing
° Use the blank side of the paper for drafting, printing, and receiving faxes

° Recycle used paper by transforming it into notepads
#RoR s HEEIFREHEZIRLHFAER BLAKE

o IITEMANIE ENHE R B R BARR B T T Ef
o ERMERAMBN—@E FEH JIHNRZKREERSR

o  HEAREKIERLEA BERERMNA

BOTHEERER AT 2023FFEHE
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Energy

During the Reporting Period, the total energy consumption of the Group
was 65.89 MWh and the intensity was 0.060 MWh/sgm and 0.969

B R
WMEMR  REBERERAS 565890
R B - 25 E 450.060 K FLES ¥ 75 2K 12 0.969

MWh/employee. KRR EE -
Energy Consumption % Change
BEIROH AE % &
Direct energy: petrol MWh 14.64 9.67 51.39%
BHERR A JKFL
Indirect energy: purchased electricity MWh 51.25 47.40 8.12%
EERER - SNBE S KR
Total energy consumption MWh 65.89 57.07 15.45%
RERHFMEEE JK L
Energy intensity (by area) MWh/sgm 0.060 0.023 159.12%
BEREE (REE) KELRE T K
Energy intensity (by employee) MWh/employee 0.969 0.935 3.63%
REREE (REE) KRB 1EE

Water 7K

During the Reporting Period, the Group sourced potable water from
municipal supplies. Throughout the Year, the Group obtained potable
water from municipal supplies. The total water consumption of the
Group was 141.50 m® and the intensity was 0.128 m3/sgm and 2.081
mé3/employee.

Water Consumption

R

Total water consumption m?

BAKE ST K

Water intensity (by area) m3/sgm
RKREZE (REE) MRS TR
Water intensity (by employee) mé/employee
RKEE(KREE) MHKEER

WMEHR  REEY T BREEEREAK -
REEARFE  NEBOKAKERKE TR
e - REEKLEKE B141.503 5 K
ZE A0.1283 5K, F 5K K%2.0813 F
KEE o

% Change

% 28

141.50 115.00 23.04%
0.128 0.047 172.31%
2.081 1.885 10.39%
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Climate Change and Resilience

The Group recognises that climate adaptation and resilience contribute
to its long-term sustainability. To this end, we intend to consistently
reassess and pinpoint opportunities for improved environmental

management.

This year, the Group incorporated climate-related risks into its risk
management system and annual risk assessment, with the assistance
of an independent external consultant:

Risk Type

[ B 2 B

Physical Risk

V) 3E LR

Description
it

Extreme weather conditions such as typhoons, heavy
rain, thunderstorms, and flooding may pose acute
physical risks to the Group. These conditions could lead
to project delays, damage to documents, materials,
equipment, and buildings, and even pose threats to
employees’ health and safety. Such events could harm
the Group’s assets and disrupt operations, leading to
restricted access, increased maintenance costs, and
higher insurance premiums.

e - &FF - BRMUKERHRRAMR AT LG AR E
EiER R ENYIERER - ZFBE A EHIRE TE -
X -TME - RELEEVRE EEHEINRER
LEBREE REZEMRSBETAEENEE B
BLEE  GHHAXR - #EXFENRRRE LIk -

Extreme weather, such as extremely hot weather, could
pose chronic physical risks to the Group. Potential
consequences could include a higher risk of heatstroke
for outdoor or workshop employees, leading to increased
turnover rates and work-related injuries. The demand for
cooling in the work environment may increase, potentially
raising power demand and operating costs for the
Group.
BmRBRRAEHE G AR AIESHASEEXNKRANY
BRER - BENRRAIGEFEFIIHEREIFZHNE
PRigon BEBERE N THEEHEM - THERTHOE
BB R EIEN AT M AEEANENFTRLE
BARK -

K%
REBRBD - SEEEYERERHEHR
EHMABERE - Al RO TE BT
EREEREREEEMNEE o

fLERE R

S EBISNBBRANBHT - AEEH
RIREBMARAALEREIERERTE
A

Risk Response

2, Bex P 4

Most of works done are performing
indoor, and the Group will also
comply to the bad weather
requirements that no work is needed
under bad weather condition.

RBPERINERGEZTANE
T AEBENEETELSRAR
T EBRHARRMA T FET

Most of works done are performing
indoor, and the Group will also
comply to the bad weather
requirements that no work is needed
under bad weather condition.

RBPERINERHEETAE
T AEBETNEETELRAR
EEBRHRRMATEHEL

BOTHEERER AT 2023FFEHE
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Risk Type

i

Transition Risk

BIE AR

Going forward, the Group will formulate necessary policies and
practices to identify and evaluate climate risks and opportunities
relevant to its business operations in a more in-depth way. We will also
develop appropriate responses and measures to address these climate
risks and opportunities.

Description
it

The Group must adapt to the tightened laws and
regulations imposed by the government or regulatory
bodies due to climate change. Additionally, it may face
the risk of potential litigation if it fails to comply with
these new regulations.

AEEABERBRALEE#ERRKRECMEENEZE
ER o BEIN  MARBEE T RRFIIEAS - AKE A B
i BTE R SR AR o

As climate-related disclosure requirements have become
increasingly stringent, non-compliance could negatively
impact the Group. This is particularly the case if the
Group’s internal data collection and management system
is insufficient in providing timely and comprehensive
data.

HREREREENREZ KA SERS  EREZFERA
EEHAKBENABERZE - WAKBNAZIERKSE
REBERTREAEHEFME2EMNEE  ZBRAS
FINERE -

Climate change could affect markets in numerous and
intricate ways, including shifts in supply and demand for
the Group’s products and services. If the Group fails to
recognise evolving trends, consumer preferences might
lean towards more sustainable alternatives. Additionally,
changing stakeholder perceptions of an organisation’s
role in transitioning to a lower-carbon economy could
impact the Group if it does not respond appropriately.
RIREZCARE NS REGEEENTAZED S 25
REEEMEIRBOHFTE - MAEERERBI T
B HEENRIAIREEANEARFEN
B ttdh FEBEEnHEEERERCHEELR
BAHEACNEETEE L  WAEE LML E
EOE TeEHAREENRTE -

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Risk Response
| B PE

The Group has timely update the
related laws and regulations from
governmental coordinator, news,
ESG consultant and different
means on daily basis, as well as
the communication within the
industry.
REETHBBBUTHAKE
- ESGE M & A [Rl3E 18 K BF 5 3
MEEERER  WETERNETR
e
In order to have a more efficient
way to keep timely and
comprehensive internal data for
future analysis and consideration,
the Group has routine scheduled
for inspection checking and
recording.
RTEABRERENEZEANA
HEEftBrotTkEE - A5E
EHIEMNITERE R TS -

The Group is continuously to
source the best quality of Compact
fluorescent lamp and water saving
system available with competitive
price in the market, these items
have also installed in the new office
premises in renovation.

AEBAEHEM S LRBEEE L
x - EREENEZRLKICENED
KEF ZFEERNTCREEHN
BEOFMAEA -

RERK AEEHHIELEOBRNE
B R A8 Bl B A SR S 2 E AR Y
AR E R A B - TP IR R B A E H H R
KAE M - LA FE S 3% 5 R AR B A8 o
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CONTRIBUTING TO THE COMMUNITIES

In our mission to make a positive impact, we are dedicated to pursuing
opportunities that allow us to understand the needs of stakeholders and
support the development of our communities. We embrace various
means such as sponsorships and donations, which provide direct
financial support to vital projects and initiatives. We also offer volunteer
services, where our team members can lend their time and skills to
causes that matter. Furthermore, we seek collaborations with other
organisations, combining our resources and expertise for greater
impact.

Beyond our organisational efforts, we also encourage our employees to
participate in community activities. We believe that everyone can make
an impact, fostering this service spirit within our team. By promoting
active involvement in our communities, we hope not only to contribute
to their growth and development but also to enrich the lives of our
employees through engagement and the cultivation of strong
community ties. Moving forward, the Group will formulate necessary
policies and practices to identify community needs and guide
community investment initiatives.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has generously offered the
lowest possible margin to the charity baby care center for their small
scale repair projects and routine maintenance work. We understand the
importance of providing a safe and well-maintained environment for
these infants to grow and thrive in, and so we have made a concerted
effort to keep our costs as low as possible for these necessary tasks.

In addition to our efforts in the non-profit sector, the company has also
extended financial support to the academic realm, specifically to
universities. We believe in the importance of education and the value of
scholarly events for the development of students and the academic
community as a whole. Thus, we have contributed financially to ensure
the success of these events and to support the continued growth and
enrichment of our society’s intellectual sectors.

Bl 8 4t &

BFMEmRELERBNEE  BABROIR
SREE ERMATHEANRBETOE
R XFHBROER - RAKDNEHREBE
FZEhN REBREALEHIRHEEN
Be X - WA RHERE RS - EH
MEGFKEREENEXERA FNEMH

AL © WS BT HEAMABA TE
BARMOERRE LM SEET A
ye-

BRAEA TOESN - BPInE B B T2 Eit[RIR
o RMBEE SEAHIRNELTE &
BB IR R RIS S o BB R THEGS
HEREE  RMAFETEESERENKE
MERELER - MEEE2ETEED N
BEETNHRBE SE8TINLE -5
% AEESHESEOBRELED - #E
HEFERITIEEHEREED

RBEMA - AEEREEAREN B R
EFRPLORM/NALEEEBE A THE
THE-BRRAT AZFERRH L
2 OHAERFORERRRETOEE Bt
BHEZFLENTEF —EZNHKA

BABLMRE -

PR TSRS R TAESN - RAFIRME
MR FRRAE)REE S - HME
EHENEEULAREMEHHELEME
ESMRBEROEE - Bt RAREES
X5 ERZFADMEKD XA
ENEMBHTE RRMEBFRMH I -

RTHEZERBRAQR
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KEY STATISTICS B AT BUE
Environmental Performance RIBEAN
Indicator i 2023 2022 2021
R By 2023 F 20226 20214
Air Emissions® Z= R 3 5
Nitrogen oxides (NOX) & .1t 1 kg T 1.03 0.57 0.53 1.98
Sulphur oxides (SOX) i& &1L 17 kg T 7= 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02
Respiratory suspended particles (RSP) kg T3 0.08 0.04 0.04 0.64
AR ASRE RERL )
GHG Emissions® ;8 Z R B H e
Scope 1 Direct GHG emissions’ tonneCOe M — AL it E & 4.03 2.65 3.72 3.05
HENVEZRAESREBHENR
Scope 2 Energy indirect GHG emissions® tonneCO,e i LR E & 31.21 29.39 28.97 8.26
HE2REZREREBINE
Total GHG emissions & qu/ ERBHME tonneCOe M A1 it E & 35.24 32.04 32.69 11.31
GHG intensity (by area) 2 E R EZE (REE) tonneCO ,£/sqm 0.032 0.013 0.015 0.005
—&y % WEE/FAK
GHG intensity (by employee) tonneCO ,e/employee 0.518 0.525 0.554 0.155
RERETE (REEB) ﬁk}xag/ﬁﬁ
Waste BEE Y]
Total non-hazardous waste generated tonne I 0.44 0.56 0.52 1.08
EENEESEEYAE
Non-hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonne/ 000 sqm 0.394 0.228 0.239 15
BEEZRVEE (RER) WE/ T HHK
Non-hazardous waste intensity tonne/employee i, /& & 0.006 0.009 0.009 0.015
(by employee) EZEENZE (REE)
Total hazardous waste generated tonne [ - - - -
EENEERENAE
Hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonne/sqmiE,/F 5 K - - - -
BEREZRYEE (RER)
Hazardous waste intensity (by employee) tonne/employee i, /& & - - - -
BEREYEE (REE)
Energy 8¢R
Direct energy consumption B %% 828 5 7% 14.64 9.67 12.88 10.54
Petrol /5 MWh Jk F B
Indirect energy consumption [ 4% 5t 7
Purchased electricity SN & /7 MWh JK 51.25 47.40 35.33 10.44
Total energy consumption 65 8 42 2 MWh JK L B 65.89 57.07 48.21 20.98
Energy intensity (by area) 2R (R EE)  MWh/sqmIkRLE/F 5K 0.060 0.023 0.022 0.010
Energy intensity (by employes) MWh/employee Jk FLE /& B 0.969 0.935 0.817 0.287
BEREE (REER)
Water 7k
Total water consumption 7K = m3 5K 141.50 115.00 130.45 287.23
Water intensity (by area) 7k % F (FER) m¥sqm iz 5K,/ ok 0.128 0.047 0.060 0.228
Water intensity (oy employee) /K% & (12(E8) m%employee L 5K (B8 2.081 1.885 2.224 3.935
5 Air emissions from the combustion of petrol from vehicle. Emission factors  ° KB B TE AR R o HEE F IR
were adopted from HKEX “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: BEEBXR SR REESGHRE — Kk
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. 2 RIRERERIERNERES ]
6 Emission factors were adopted from HKEX “How to prepare an ESG Report —  °© HMEAFRABEBEBR M REEESG R
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. % — Mitk2  RIREARERUSZERIERIESI ] -
7 Scope 1 emissions from the combustion of petrol from vehicle. 7 E 1R B EMRE I TREERNTEN
8 Scope 2 emissions in 2023 from the consumption of purchased electricity of ~ ® $EI225 B2023 F R NEHE BENENRE -
the office, emissions in 2022 and 2021 from the consumption of purchased 2022 F 2021 FREW R ER A EHEEHEE
electricity of the office and warehouse, and emissions in 2020 from the MHERRE L R 2020 F 5k 5 B EEBE B H A
consumption of purchased electricity of the warehouse. WE o
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Social Performance HEEW

Key Performance Indicators 2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F

BREARER

Total Employees®{E 8 & & °

By gender 4 7 Male S 57 52 50 63
Female [ 1 12 12 13
By age group F #4075 Under 30 30 5% A T 6 7 9 12
30-50 30 £50 5% 39 37 39 52
Over 50 50 5% A £ 23 20 14 12
By employment type (& & 48! Full-time % B 64 60 56 67
Part-time 3 5t 4 4 6 9
By employment level {1 /B 4} Senior management 9 9 9 9
BREBAE
Mid-level management 3 3 2 2
hLEEAES
Junior management 2 2 2 2
MHEBAE
Front-line employees 54 50 49 63
—REE
By geographical region i [& Macau 2 [ 65 61 59 73
Hong Kong & 78 3 3 3 3
Total #5+ 68 64 62 76
Total Subcontractor Workers" & & & T A #E 10
By gender % 3 Male 55 1% 67 33 40 11
Female 2 [ - 1 - -
By age group F 2 48 A Under 30 305 A T 12 7 9 -
30-50 30 =50 5% 48 24 28 9
Over 50 50 5% A £ 7 3 3 2
Total 5t 67 34 40 1
New Employee Rate'! $i{E & Lt & 11
By gender % 3 Male 55 1% 28.1%
Female 22 1 0%
By age group F ik 42 5 Under 30 305 A T 16.7%
30-50 30 =50 5% 25.6%
Over 50 50574 = 21.7%
By employment type (& & 48 % Full-time 2 B 25.0%
Part-time 3 B 0%
By employment level (& & [ 4% Senior management 0%
SREEAE Relevant info was not disclosed
Mid-level management 0% RAERBEHBEE
HREEAB
Junior management 0%
MBEBAE
Front-line employees 29.6%
—B3EE
By geographical region it & Macau 32 9 24.6%
Hong Kong & 7% 0%
Total #t 5t 23.5%
° Total number of employees at the end of the year, and there were no other RERNESRE  BXWEEMTA -
workers. 10 RERKFB R T ABE - 2819 B IRM

MEBTA -
HEELR=ZERHEE NS RNERNE
S48 x100% °

10 Total number of subcontractor workers at the end of the year, all of which are
full-time workers in Macau. n
" New employee rate = number of new employees of the category / total number
of employees of the category at the end of the year x 100%.
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Key Performance Indicators

Employee Turnover Rate'2 & T ifi % & 12

2023

2023 &

By gender £ 7 Male B4 15.8% 9.8% 37.2% 29.9%
Female &I 9.1% 0.0% 8.0% 0.0%
By age group F ik 48 5 Under 30 30 5A T 33.3% 0.0% 38.1% 32.0%
30-50 30 =50 5% 1.7% 7.9% 33.0% 16.7%
Over 50 50 5 _E 21.7% 11.8% 23.1% 48.3%
By employment type {& & 48 ! Full-time 2 8; 15.6% 5.2% 30.9% 28.8%
Part-time %% 0% 40.0% 40.0% 0%
By employment level {E & /& % Senior management 0% 0% 0% 0%
BREEAR
Mid-level management 0% 0% 0% 0%
HREEAE
Junior management 0% 0% 0% 0%
MBEBAB
Front-line employees 18.5% 10.1% 39.3% 30.4%
—RES
By geographical region i [& Macau /&9 15.4% 8.3% 33.3% 26.4%
Hong Kong &5 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total # &t 14.7% 8.3% 33.3% 26.4%
Health and safety@ER %2
Employee EE
Work-related fatality &l T T-# - - - -
Work-related injuries T/5{EZ - - 4 1
Work-related injury rate' - - 6.78 1.37
THEEREES
Lost days due to work-related injuries - - 33 2
ATIGERBAIERH
Subcontractor workers REE T A
Work-related fatality Bl T T-# - - - -
Work-related injuries T {512 - - 1 1
Work-related injury rate' - - 25 9.09
TEERLE™
Lost days due to work-related injuries - - 1 25
ATBERBELAIERH
12 Employee turnover rate = number of turnover of the category / total number of 12 BIRAR=ZERRRIAE NERNZE
employees of the category at the end of the year x 100%. Bl{E B 42 8ix 100% °
3 Work-related injury rate = number of work-related injuries / total number of 13 THEEAREER=TEHERERAL RERNEE
employees at the end of the year x 100%. 42 x 100% °
1 Work-related injury rate = number of work-related injuries / total number of 14 TEHEERER=TEEREAZ REXNEER

subcontractor workers at the end of the year x 100%. 7T A#EEIx100% °
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Key Performance Indicators

Employee Trained Rate's Z 3| {E & Lt & 15

By gender 14 5 Male S 36.8% 14.0% 60.4% 18.0%
Female 2 1% 27.3% 18.2% 72.7% 16.7%
By employment level (& & [ 4% Senior management 66.7% 6.0% 55.1% 12.7%
BREEAE
Mid-level management 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0%
HREEAE
Junior management 50.0% 33.3% 100.0% 0.0%
MmEBAE
Front-line employees 31.5% 83.3% 100.0% 83.3%
—RER
Total 3 &t 35.3% 14.8% 62.7% 17.8%

Average Training Hours'®

TR

By gender % 3 Male E 1% 1.49 3.54 7.33 8.14
Female 2 14 2.86 4.73 6.00 6.00
By employment level {E & /€ % Senior management 4.61 0.18 2.81 4.13
BREEAE
Mid-level management - - 2.00 -
HREEAS
Junior management 12.00 2.00 2.00 -
MREBAE
Front-line employees 0.89 35.67 29.42 13.70
—RER
Total 5 1.71 3.75 7.04 7.81
Suppliers it E
By category £8 7! Services fR % 85 - - -
Materials # 69 - - -
By geographical region i [& Macau /2 110 94 163 105
Others (Hong Kong, China) 44 35 31 39
Hi (F& - h &)
Total #£ 5t 154 129 194 144
Anti-corruption Training X 23513l
Total training hours of directors received 5 - 50 -
BEEXIIERH
Total training hours of employees received 2 - 10 -
1E B X5 420 21
Total &t 7 - 60 -

5 Employee trained rate = number of employees trained in the category/total 1% ZIRELR=28AZIEE AL REFEXR

number of employees of the category at the end of the year x 100%. BIRZ AR E B 42 8x 100% °
1. Average training hours = total hours of training received by employees of the — '® FHZIEE=ZEREEZ IR NEF
category / total number of employees of the category at the end of the year. RNEZ AR R B4R 5 -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE #HERERRE

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX B 32
5/ A

Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark

B —RiEERKPI Haut BR B

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BRERESRE

Governance Structure ()  Adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG 18
issues.

(i)  The board’s ESG management approach and
strategy, including the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material ESG-related issues
(including risks to the issuer’s businesses).

(i) How the board reviews progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.
SRR ) HEEEFSHESGHRENEE -
(i) EFESHESGEIRF &t REE - BIFNME B
PR EIREZNESGIHMZERE (BB EITAER
B EFR) B BAR o

(i) BEFSNAIRESGHBEFRERE WHET
Il BB FEIT AR B RAE -
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description
BHE - - —REERKPI it

Reporting Principles Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the
process to identify and the criteria for the selection of
material ESG factors; (i) if a stakeholder engagement is
conducted, a description of significant stakeholders
identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s
stakeholder engagement.

Quantitative: Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where
applicable) should be disclosed.

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any

other relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

PEE % SR A EEM  ESGHREENE : ()HHERESGRERBEIE
MEREZZERRNER : (NS ETHNRBB K2 E
BRI E R M ARRE 7 O M EIT AN SR T2
EH)BIERER o

Bt AEERYREORATE NER) FRANE
Bk BRR/IHELANAR  LARFIRAZ
CEGESPSY S E R

— M BT AREESGRE T HWEMRAH AR

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the
ESG report and describing the process used to identify
which entities or operations are included in the ESG
report.

bEE R 3 ] FRIZESG I EMEREE - Nt BRI PhL B BB K75
MAESGHmEHBIE

Page/Remark
BR B

16

16

BOTHEIERAMR AT 2023FEERE
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

A1 Emissions

A1 HER Y

General Disclosure Information on: 20, 36-41
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

—MREE FHERAZEREHMN KR THOEET  BFER
BEERZVNEESH

(@ BX: k&

b) ETHEITAGERZENRBAERAGNER -

Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 41

A1.1 PR iR AR M AR R BE R BUE -

Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 40
greenhouse gas emissions and intensity.
A1.2 B (BE) RREZ (BE2) R=RBHERREE -
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI i BR B
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. a4
A1.3 EENBEEBEENEERTE -
Al1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 41
Al.4 MEANEEBEZNEERTE -
Al1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to 37
achieve them.
A1.5 PRI S O BE R E B IR R RERE & B IRPAEREREV T 8K -
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 39, 41

wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A1.6 HilRERENEZTEEMN AL - REAPTRI L HR
ERIERAEDE L BRI B -
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Aspects, General
Disclosure and KPIs
BH - - —REERKPI

A2 Use of Resources

A2 &R M

General Disclosure

— R
A2.1

A2.1

A2.2
A2.2

A2.3

A2.3

A2.4

A2.4

A2.5

A2.5

Description
g

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BEREAER(BIERER - KREMEME) BBEER -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity.
REASSNEER SHEEEREEERTE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BFEKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

TR MR EA NGB R RAERE LB IRATH
EXEY 28R

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

i SKEGE R KR E R B FEERBE - A RAEIZE
K B IR R RERE L BARFTERER Y 2P 5% ©

Total packaging material used for finished products and
per unit produced.

HRmARBEERMHNRERNEEEEMIGE
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Page/Remark
BR B

42-43

43

43

37

There were no issues in
sourcing water fit for purpose.

SKEGE RKRR B RE -

The use of packaging
materials is irrelevant to the
Group’s operating
businesses.
BEMEEEREASERN
RS TSR -
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs
BHE - —RKIFERKPI

Description

i

Page/Remark
BR B

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

ASEER RXRARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on 42
the environment and natural resources.
—MEEE WIRBITABRERRAEREKRERNZENBR -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 42
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
A3.1 B EBRBHRRERRABERNEATEREEHTE -
A4 Climate Change
A4 R Ix#1t
General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant This issue is not
Disclosure climate-related issues which have impacted, and those material based on
which may impact, the issuer. the results of
stakeholder
engagement. The
Group will continue
to adjust the
management
approach and
information
disclosure approach
in accordance with
the materiality
principle.
—MEEE Bl REHERRAIAGHBETAEELENERARIKE REMNRBRESRE
HEEENBER - BIAER - LR A
BE - AKEGES
RIS Z M RAIFE
EBFERERKE
TV
A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues 44-45
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
A4.1 HIER KA G HBETAEELENERREEBE

H - REHTH -

BIIHEIERARAR 2023FEHRSE
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B1 Employment
B1{Ef&

General Information on: 20-21, 28-30
Disclosure
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

—RRIREE EEFMNEE  BEKEA  TERS - &R 5
e - Zork  RIEGUREMGEREF

(@ BX: &k

b) ETHEITARERZENRBEIELAGNER -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group 48
and geographical region.

B1.1 ZMR - EEEE  FRAJNKMEZ S HES L

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 49
geographical region.

B1.2 IR FEARI KR E D KBS MALLE o
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B2 Health and Safety

B2REHEZE
General Disclosure Information on: 20-21, 26-28
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
—MRIRE BRARMLZE2TERERREREMEBELEETN
(@ BER: &
(b) BEFHBEITABERZENEEERZRAOIRER
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 49
each of the past three years including the reporting year.
B2.1 BE=F (BREAREFE) BFRITHHABRLEX -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 49
B2.2 RIGEATIERE-
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 26-28
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B2.3 HEA PTER ANV B SR (2 PR ER 22 2 e - DA AR 1T Mo B
RAE -
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Aspects, General
Disclosure and KPIs

Description

Page/Remark

BH - —REERKPI

i

B3 Development and Training

B3 2 & & =3I

General Disclosure

—RIWE

B3.1

B3.1

B3.2

B3.2

B4 Labour Standards
B4 % T %8|

General Disclosure

—REE

B4.1

B4.1

B4.2

B4.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

BRARTES BT TIERE M AHE R MR - fiitt
EAES o

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category.
BRURIRESENEDNXIMEEA DL

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
RURRESERE S  BREETHIINNFIRE -

Information on:
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAM LB TSRS TH
@ BE: R

b) FETHBTAGEAZENRBERNSEM -

Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.

fadtie s B E PR AR R E T MoRHIST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

R ERBRARERE BB RARI S -
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31

50

50

20-21, 30

30

The Group did not encounter
such practices during the
Reporting Period.
AEBEBEREHARBE I
BMO% -
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B5 Supply Chain Management

B5 {5t fE 3 & 12

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of 34-35
the supply chain.

—RIRE EEHEENRERESRAROBR

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 50

B5.1 B DWHERRE -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 34-35
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B5.2 MG RMERNED - EERTE BB M HE
BEE  ARMEARITRERTE -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 34-35
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.3 it AR BRI e PRI Rt @R R A1 H] - A K AE
BT MBS X

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 34-35

preferable products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.4 HilEREHERRREESZBRFRERMRBHOED -
A RBBAMITRERTA -
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B6 Product Responsibility

B6 EmE{E
General Disclosure Information on: 21, 32-34
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
—MREE FAMRHEERNRENREE LS  BE  REEIL
BEEUARER A
(@ BX: &k
(b) BTFTHETABEARZENHBERZNADINER
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to The issue is irrelevant to the
recalls for safety and health reasons. Group’s operating
businesses.
B6.1 EEHACEZXEMBETRL2EEEEAMARNKYN ZFBEEENESEEERS -
A
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE - —HRHEERKPI ot BR B
B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints The issue is irrelevant to the
received and how they are dealt with. Group’s operating
businesses.
B6.2 BEEMNERRRBEORFEEUREETE - % EIRE B AR )8 SR TSR -
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 34
protecting intellectual property rights.
B6.3 et B R RIE AN BERE R EAVIER
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall The Group was not involved
procedures. in any recall procedures.
B6.4 M B EBRERFRERBKRERF ° REBNETF RAERBBGEFF -
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 50
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B6.5 VBB EERRERALRBEK - L RBEERTRER
Tk e
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B7 Anti-corruption
B7RES

General Disclosure Information on: 21, 33
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

— B EE BRI 9R  BEEREER
(@ BER: &

b) FETHBETAGERZENHMERLAIINEFR -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 33
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

B7.1 RBREHEETASEEERENBEHE TNE TLEF
ARMEBE MFARER -

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 33, 81
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B7.2 P e e R EBRAR T - A RABRBRITRER L

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 31
directors and staff.
B7.3 HmMESERETRHENOREFEI -
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B8 Community Investment

B8t ER &
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the This issue is not material
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and  based on the results of
to ensure its activities take into consideration the stakeholder engagement. The
communities’ interests. Group will continue to adjust
the management approach
and information disclosure
approach in accordance with
the materiality principle.
—MEE FAMR2ENER  EETREEMEHENTE X REMNZHEEE2ENER
WHERHEETEB GBREE Bt &N - LR N EE - NEEFHE
o BREEZHRAFEER
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. R AR o
B8.1 BEIEREE -
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
B8.2 EZIHBABAER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER INFORMATION

TRE

Bk EHAmE R

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and
quality of disclosure in order to enhance the value for the Company’s
shareholders (the “Shareholder(s)”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company aims to achieve high standards of corporate governance
which is crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in force
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (i.e. the new Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules with effect from 31 December 2023) (the “CG Code”)
as the basis of the Company’s corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Company has applied the principles of good
corporate governance and complied with the code provisions set out
under Part 2 of the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision C.2.1, which stipulates that the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (“Mr. Cheong”) is currently
the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. In view of the
fact that Mr. Cheong has been assuming the responsibilities in the
overall management and supervision of the daily operations of the
Group since the establishment of Kento Engineering Company Limited
(a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) in January 2011, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Cheong taking up both roles for effective management and operations.
Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from such code
provision is appropriate. Notwithstanding such deviation, the Board is
of the view that this management structure is effective for the Group’s
operations and sufficient checks and balances are in place.

PURPOSE, VALUES AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to ensuring that its business is conducted
in accordance with its culture and values in maintaining our integrity,
humility, teamwork, continuity and high ethical standards to achieve its
long-term objective which is a sustainable development for the Group.
By doing so, the Company believes that shareholder value will be
maximised in the long term and that its employees, those with whom it
does business and the communities in which it operates will all benefit.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

TRESRAEMER

The Company has always committed to promote the principles of good
corporate governance. These principles highlight effective board, good
management and internal control systems and its transparency and
accountability. The Board considers such commitment balanced the
interests of the stakeholders and the Group as a whole. The Company
ensures that the corporate culture and expected behaviours are clearly
communicated to everyone in the Group. Appropriate policies and
procedures are in place to promote and reinforce the need for
employees and others who deal with the Company to act with honesty
and integrity.

Having regard to the corporate culture reflected in the policies and
practices of the Company, the Board is satisfied that the purpose,
values and strategic directions of the Company are aligned with its
culture.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
in force during the year ended 31 December 2023 (i.e. the new
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules with effect from 31 December 2023)
(the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries of all the
Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she has complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
Year.

Pursuant to paragraph B.13 of the Model Code, the Directors have also
requested any employee of the Company or director or employee of a
subsidiary of the Company who, because of his/her office or
employment in the Company or a subsidiary of the Company, is likely to
possess inside information in relation to the securities of the Company,
not to deal in securities of the Company when he/she would be
prohibited from dealing by the Model Code as if he/she were a Director.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”). Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, in considering the
declaration and payment of dividends, the Board shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements
and future business growth and take into account the following factors
of the Group:

a. the Group’s results of operations;

b. cash flows and financial conditions;

C. operating and capital requirements;

d.  statutory and regulatory restrictions;

e. future prospects (if any); and

f. any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

ARB—BEHNEERIFEEERRA - %
FRARFABRMNESRS RUFNEENMA
MEBRFEREERAELEAES - EEER
REAETFEMNEEB T RAKRENES
M o AR ARG EEE REHRITRIEF
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EHRRRER - R K HN5s EA QR A ER
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

TRESREMER

The Board has discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders, subject to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”) and the applicable laws and regulations.
The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the
operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering overall group strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim
results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational
and financial matters. The management was delegated the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group.
In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in
this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, the Board consists of five Directors including two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leong Kam Leng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Kit
Mr. Law Lap Tak
Ms. Lee Sze Ming

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the
Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills and
experience for effective leadership. The biographical information of the
Directors is set out on pages 87 to 94 under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information
TtEERREMER

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contributions
to the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors namely, Mr. Cheong Ka Wo, Mr. Leong Kam Leng, Mr.
Chan Ming Kit, Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms. Lee Sze Ming, have
participated in continuous professional development and provided to

the Company a record of trainings they received for the Year.

The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is
summarised below:

Name of Directors

Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Leong Kam Leng 2R
Chan Ming Kit BoR &% £
Law Lap Tak EINE
Lee Sze Ming 2B

REN(EEFREENTE)

EE5ET

RIEEEEATATAKRECIAG &
BEZE2EBESEHR  REREHN
HA#MEXEE  BRBRSENBBELTHE
EEEHENNER -

EREF(AREMEE REREE K
BETE  BMERERFERLL)HE
DHEPBEHEEERR  WOAARRRHRKSE
RAFEADEZNEIRE -

DR ATESEEDELHEAL
6%

Attending
seminars/reading
materials
relevant to the

director’s duties
HE
ERESHEN
mEE EEYE

NSNS S

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer to be segregated.

Mr. Cheong is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of the fact that Mr. Cheong has been assuming the
responsibilities in the overall management and supervision of the daily
operations of the Group since the establishment of Kento Engineering
in January 2011, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Cheong taking up both roles for effective
management and operations. Therefore, the Directors consider that the
deviation from such code provision is appropriate. Code provision C.2.7
of the CG Code requires that the Chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without the
other executive Directors present. During the Year and up to the date of
this report, Mr. Cheong held two meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of the other executive
Director.

FERITHAHE

CEERTATABRXFEC2IERE £
FERITBAHNBERTRD -

RALEBRAARRERRITREBE - ERER
EHEBAEBEIRN20M11F1AKRTE—&
BEAEENEEEENEBSHTES &
EgRA HARAERIMEACA#ETE
BEBRCEET  WHFEREBNRET
e A EERBRBEZTEBRE
ZH o EERTATAIKRXEC27IER
o EEEEHMRITESHENBRLTE
FELEBYIFRNTEE —BRBITEHE R
AEEREEAREAY EHMHITES
WHELER  RAEAECEBUINITEER
TR EH °

BIIMEERERAR 2023FEHeE
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association.
Further details of the term of appointment of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report
— Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters Of Appointment” of this
report.

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
legal, accounting and finance. With their experience gained from various
sectors, they provide strong support towards the effective discharge of
the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-
executive Director gave a confirmation of his independence to the
Company, and the Company confirms it considers each of them is
independent for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies
of the Group, setting objectives and business development plans,
assuming responsibility of corporate governance and monitoring the
performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors, is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans established by
the Board and reporting on the Group’s operations to the Board on a
regular basis to ensure effective performance of the Board’s
responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s
senior management to fulfill their duties and they have been provided
with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial
position to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.
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The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure independent
views are available to the Board, including providing the Directors with
sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall seek, at the Group’s
expense, independent professional advice to assist the relevant
Directors to discharge their duties if necessary.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent non-
executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the Board, such
that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, are
given equal opportunity and channels to communicate and express
their views to the Board and have separate and independent access to
the management of the Group in order to make informed decisions. The
chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors without the involvement of other Directors at least
annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director will be
required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and abstain
from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the relevant
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the Board
meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided to
the Board during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the
Board and is committed to enhancing quality of opportunity in all
aspects of its business. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration against a range of objective criteria, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Company
will also take into consideration its own business model and specific
needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition of the
Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”). The Nomination Committee will make recommendations
to the Board on measurable objectives for achieving diversity of the
Board (if applicable) and monitor the progress on achieving the
objectives.

With regard to gender diversity on the Board, the Company recognizes
the particular importance of gender diversity. As at 31 December 2023,
the Board comprises one female Director and four male Directors.
Hence, we consider gender diversity has been achieved based on the
current female representation of approximately 20% at the Board level
and targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation. The Company will ensure that gender diversity is taken
into account when recruiting staff members of mid to senior level and
ensure that sufficient resources are available for providing appropriate
trainings and career development to develop a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board and maintain gender diversity.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and propose matters to be
discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas and accompanying papers
shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of Board meeting to
ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review the
documents.

The Board held 5 meetings and one annual general meeting during the
Year. The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings
and annual general meeting held during the Year is set out below:

EEEER
EXEEEBFANEFTEHRRTELN
REZREH MBEEFEEPTEZNAEA
ARERBTHELTOREE2BES
EERESARSEFEZARREZH/N
CEFFRETIWMNEE - RERMEXHE
REFEERAPZAMEL =ZRERES
NHERESAERBEMBEXM -

RAFE BFGHBITTERGHEL K
BREFAEG - TRHBINEEFTHERAF
ERTZEFEER MERBFREMIE:

Attendance/Number of
meeting held

HEBITEBRE

Annual

Board general

meetings meeting

Name of Directors EEEeE RREFAE

Executive Directors HBTES

Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) Ru=M (T EHFEEHNITE) 5/5 11

Leong Kam Leng P 5/5 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES

Chan Ming Kit PR &8 4 5/5 11

Law Lap Tak ENTE 5/5 1/1

Lee Sze Ming =EIE 3/5 11

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection by the Directors.
Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of relevant actions against its Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 21 August 2020 which currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lee Sze Ming (as
chairlady), Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Mr. Law Lap Tak. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include, but
are not limited to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition and
diversity (including the skills, knowledge, educational background,
experience and diversity) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board in the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; and (c) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In considering the composition of the Board, the Board diversity will
been considered from a number of perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director in accordance
with the Board Diversity Policy. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year to review
the structure, composition, size and diversity of the Board with
reference to the Board Diversity Policy and nomination policy and make
relevant recommendation to the Board, which included the re-election
of retiring Directors.

Name of Members

Lee Sze Ming (Chairlady) FRIE(FE)
Chan Ming Kit PR &8 4
Law Lap Tak ENE

RAFE REZEERTT -REH 8
tE2EEERZTEBRRRERABEE
MEZSNRE Al RERZTL X
MEESFEHABEBES ETeiEER
RIFE=E -

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
HE BT
BEAH

11
11
11

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with written terms
of reference on 21 August 2020 (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Ming Kit (as chairman), Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms. Lee
Sze Ming. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the model described in code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code in its terms of reference.

The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include,
but not limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all of Directors and senior
management personnel and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the policy on such remuneration;
(b) making recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; (c)
reviewing and approving management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (d) reviewing
and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules; and (e) making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year to
discuss and consider the remuneration policy of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group.

Name of Members

Chan Ming Kit (Chairman) PREGHEE (/)
Law Lap Tak EE
Lee Sze Ming 25

RAFE FHEEERTT - REH &
Ltk EEAEEEEREREEREN
FENBUR -

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
B RBeT
BRRH

11
11
0/1

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend
on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee taking into account
their skills and knowledge, their job responsibilities and level of their
involvement in the Group’s affairs, the performance of the Group and
the prevailing market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

The senior management’s remuneration for the Year falls within the
following bands:

Nil to MOP1,000,000
MOP1,000,001 to MOP2,000,000
MOP2,000,001 and above
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SEREBEAHBZENENEKR (WE) Kk
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BHREE AEENRAMATTTIREE
E-BEEREAETEENTIFBEHRGS
BRI EE10 -
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Number of

individuals

AE

£ %1,000,000/2 97T -
1,000,001 2 F9 7T % 2,000,000 2 F9 7T 3
2,000,001 2= FI 7T &2 A | -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference on 21 August 2020 and
currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Law Lap Tak (as chairman), Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Ms. Lee Sze
Ming. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but not
limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring
integrity of financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
and (c) reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditors regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in
the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 5 meetings to

° review the independence and the works done by the auditor;

° review the financial reporting system, compliance procedure,
internal control and risk management system, effectiveness of the
internal audit function and procedures and appointment of
external auditor; and

° review the annual results and annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022 and the interim results and interim report for the
six months ended 30 June 2023.
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Name of Members

Law Lap Tak (Chairman) BWNELE (FFE)
Lee Se Ming PR &4 14 55 A&
Chan Ming Kit EY

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
HE BT
BERH

5/5
5/5
4/5

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same
will be carried out annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee
the Company’s orientation program for new Director, to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has performed the above mentioned
corporate governance functions.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditors are set out below:

EHEERCAEAEENBEAREE
ROBEZHES  ATARRERREERE
EHATIRET -

EERMAE

TEERABESHEESRET -

CREABESEREENARALEKE
AHERRERABTEEERTARAE
MERREERT  EEARRHTESR
TTEVRATIZEFIRTE - BEREFEERER
EEENRIIRSESERR  #E  EH
MEZXERAREEREFENTATIRS
BFEM (A  UERBEHARARERE
SARE R

WAEE  EFRCRET LREEERBEE -

BB &

RAFE BN/ ENARBZEEMOME
ol

Fee paid/

payable

Bt EHER

MOP’000

FHEF5 T

Audit services e A b 1,650

Non-audit services* FEZRIE 334

Total: e - 1,984
* The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services. * FEEMEEEDIEB LR
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Chan Yat Lui as its Company
Secretary. Mr. Chan Yat Lui has confirmed that for the Year, he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The
biography of Mr. Chan Yat Lui is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company is held each year and at the place as
may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an
annual general meeting, is called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an EGM

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose of
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a
written requisition signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room
4801, 48/F, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen’s Road, East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Such EGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of the
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
convene a physical meeting, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong Room 4801, 48/F, Hopewell Centre, No. 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by post or by email to
ylchan@kento.com.mo.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director for
election as a Director, the Shareholder must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 4801, 48/F, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen’s Road,
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact information of the
Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding, the full name of the person
proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s biographical
details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the Shareholder concerned (other than the person to be proposed).
The Notice must also be accompanied by a letter of consent (the
“Letter”) signed by the person proposed to be elected on his/her
willingness to be elected as a Director.

The period for lodgment of the Notice and the Letter will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice by the Company of
the general meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Nomination Committee and the Board
to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting proposing such person to be elected as a Director.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman lIslands for Shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the Chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions to be set out in the notice of the AGM will be
voted by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
Shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the Shareholders in the
following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim reports to all Shareholders;

° Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results
on the Stock Exchange website, and issue of other
announcements and Shareholders’ circulars in accordance with
the continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

o The general meetings of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION
POLICY

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders an the Company has established various communication
channels with Shareholders, including general meeting, annual results
and interim results, annual and interim reports, announcements and
circulars and performance conference. Shareholders may also make
enquires with the Company through other channels mentioned above,
and provide comments and recommendations to the Directors or
managements at any time. Upon receipt of written enquiries from
Shareholders, the Company will make responses to the Shareholders
as soon as possible. In addition, the Company updates its website from
time to time to keep the Shareholders updated of the recent
development of the Company. In view of the above, the Company
considers the implementation of the Shareholders’ communication
policy during the Year was effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that year. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Board
has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
internal control systems of the Group are structured to assist in the
achievement of the Group’s goals, to safeguard the Group’s assets and
to ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records and
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems, and management
has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee (and the Board) on
the effectiveness of these systems for the Year. A review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems is
conducted by the Board at least annually.

Risk management

The Group has already reviewed its risk management framework and
processes and has implemented relevant measures resulting from this
exercise that aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular,
the Group has developed, approved and implemented a risk
management system, which is defined and supported by its endorsed
risk management policy. The system comprises the following phases:

o Identification: |dentify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Analysis: Analyze the existing control, likelihood and consequence
of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Senior management of the Group is responsible for the annual risk
reporting process. Independent external consultant assists various
members of the senior management to review and assess risks and
discuss solutions to address material internal control defects. Risks are
compiled, and ratings are assigned and mitigation plans are
documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by certain members of
the senior management and presented to the Audit Committee and the
Board for their review.
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Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business
aspects such as revenue management, expenditure management,
human resources and payroll, cash and treasury management, financial
reporting, compliance and information technology. The internal control
measures are supervised by management team including executive
Directors. The management team is responsible to identify risks and
internal control deficiencies, evaluate the internal control system of the
Group from time to time and implementing additional control measures.
Once any internal control deficiency was identified, the management
would take immediate steps to notify the Audit Committee the findings
and implement relevant internal control measures with assistance of any
independent consulting firm as appropriate. Results of the internal
assessments, internal surveys and routine inspections would be
reported to the Audit Committee of the Board, which is responsible to
review the financial information and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal controls system of the Group.

Internal audit function

The Group does not establish a standalone internal audit department,
however, the Board has put in place adequate measures to perform the
internal control review at different aspects of the Group.

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material controls
such as financial, operational and compliance controls for the Year. In
addition, the Board has appointed an internal control review consultant
to review the internal control systems of the Group on an on-going
basis. Such review shall be conducted annually. The Board considered
that the risk management and internal control systems of the Group for
the Year were effective and adequate.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information, the
Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside information with the
aim to ensure the insiders are abided by the confidentiality requirement
and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside information.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE-
BLOWING POLICIES

The Group has always adhered to high standards of business ethics,
preventing corruption through corporate governance, internal controls
and risk management, and is subject to ongoing oversight by the Board
of Directors. To ensure that all employees of the Group are able to
maintain a good sense of integrity at work, the Group has formulated
the “Employee Handbook” and the “Code of Ethics” that sets out
guidelines in areas such as anti-corruption and anti-bribery.

The Group also has a whistle-blowing policy that serves the purpose of
establishing whistle-blowing procedures for employees and other
relevant external parties of our Group, in order to report and escalate
any suspicious misconducts. In accordance with the policy, the Group
protects all whistle-blowers from any kind of retaliation. All the
information provided by the whistle-blowers will be strictly confidential.

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

The Group insists on the principle of fairness and voluntariness in
recruitment, and does not impose any restrictive requirements on
gender, ethnicity, nationality and region. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group had 68 employees in total.

The indicators on employees of the Group, including senior
management, as of 31 December 2023, are set out below:

Indicator
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The Group encourages gender diversity across its workplace. However,
taking into account the nature of the E&M industry where E&M roles are
generally taken up by male, such industry nature may make achieving
gender diversity across the workforce more challenging for the Group.
The Group is committed to maintain at least the current proportion of
female employees. We are committed to fostering a positive working
culture and striving to build an inclusive, equitable and diverse
workplace. The workforce is evaluated by performance on its
professional contribution, without regard to their differences or
similarities. To achieve diversity at workforce level (including senior
management), the Group has put in place appropriate recruitment and
selection practices such that a diverse range of candidates are
considered. The Group has also established talent management and
training programs to provide career development guidance and
promotion opportunities to develop a broad and diverse pool of skilled
and experienced employees.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on 21
August 2020, the Articles of Association was adopted. During the Year,
a special resolution of the members was passed on 24 May 2023 to
amend the Articles of Association and adopt a new Articles of
Association to comply with the requirement in the Consultation
Conclusions on Listing Regime for Overseas Issuers published by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2021.

The Articles of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo, aged 44, was appointed as a Director in October
2017 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17 April 2020.
Mr. Cheong is the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
and a director of all of the Company’s subsidiaries. He is responsible for
the overall management and supervision of the daily operations of the
Group. Mr. Cheong is entitled to a remuneration of MOP3,060,000 per
annum.

Mr. Cheong has over 20 years of experience in the electrical engineering
industry. Prior to establishing Kento Engineering in January 2011, Mr.
Cheong worked as an electrical engineer in various construction
contractors in Macau, where he commenced his career in the electrical
and engineering industry, including his role as an engineer at CAA City
Planning & Engineering Consultants Ltd. (38 iR 22 TIREK A
R 2 7]), a company engaged primarily in urban planning, transportation
planning, urban renewal studies and cultural heritage studies from
October 2001 to January 2003, where he was responsible for E&M
system designs. From January 2003 to June 2004, Mr. Cheong was an
electrical engineer of Consolidated Engineering Co., Ltd. (& T2 AR
‘A 7/]), a company experienced in electrical and mechanical engineering
projects involving installation and maintenance of air conditioning
systems and electrical engineering works, where he was responsible for
management of electrical and ELV system engineering works. He was
also a technician of Institute for Tourism Studies (&9 ik 2 2 %), a
public education institute under the Macau government from July 2004
during which he was responsible for the management of engineering
works. Mr. Cheong then resumed his role at Consolidated Engineering
Co., Ltd. as an electrical engineer from May 2006 to December 2009,
where he was then responsible for management of electrical and ELV
system engineering works. From January to December 2010, he served
as an electrical engineer at San Ka U Engineering Co., Ltd. (¥73# T2
A BR A Fl), a company primarily engaged in electrical and mechanical
engineering projects where he was responsible for the management of
electrical and ELV system engineering works.

Mr. Cheong obtained his bachelor degree in electromechanical
engineering from the University of Macau (Universidade de Macau) in
July 2001.
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Mr. Leong Kam Leng, aged 52, was appointed as a Director in
October 2017 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17
April 2020. Mr. Leong is also a director of all of the Company’s
subsidiaries. He is responsible for the strategic planning of the Group.
Mr. Leong is entitled to a remuneration of MOP600,000 per annum.

Mr. Leong has over 30 years of experience in the electrical engineering
and maintenance industry. Prior to establishing Kento Engineering in
January 2011, Mr. Leong worked as a manager in Decoracao E
Engenharia Decol, Limitada (3 F| & E W& 5 B R 22 7)) in Macau, a
company engaged in the sale and distribution of air conditioners, from
January 1991 to December 2010, where he was responsible for on-site
management and operations. Mr. Leong has also accumulated more
than 20 years of management and operational experiences in the E&M
engineering services industry under several business ventures in Macau
which he has founded.

Mr. Leong obtained a diploma on electromechanical techniques of
industrial maintenance secondary technical — professional education
(curso de técnicas de electromecéanica de manutencéo industrial do
ensino secundario complementar Técnico — profissional) from the
Luso-Chinese School of Technical Professional (Escola Luso — Chinesa
Técnico — Profissional) in June 2007. Mr. Leong obtained a
professional diploma in interior design from the University of Macau in
July 2008 and a certificate in construction safety supervisor
(Encarregado de seguranca na construcao civil) from the University of
Macau in February 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Law Lap Tak, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 August 2020 and he is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$144,000 per annum. Mr. Law held various positions
in an international accounting firm from July 1992 to October 1999
where he last served as a manager, responsible for audit planning and
control as well as supervision of audit staff. He joined China Rare Earth
Holdings Limited (previously named Yixing Xinwei Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
769) which is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sales of rare
earth and refractory products, as financial controller and company
secretary from November 1999 to August 2023, where he supervises
the overall financial management including corporate accounting,
financial reporting and regulatory compliance of the company where he
has been familiar with relevant law and regulations of a listed company
as well as the obligations and duties imposed upon directors.

Mr. Law earned his bachelor degree in business administration in
accounting from Hong Kong Baptist University (previously known as the
Hong Kong Baptist College) in December 1992. He is currently a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(previously known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) (since
November 1996), a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (since July 2001) and a member of the Institute of Public
Accountants in Australia (since March 2013).
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Ms. Lee Sze Ming, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 August 2020 and she is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$144,000 per annum. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of
experience in legal profession specialising in employees’ compensation,
personal injuries, property damage and conveyancing. Ms. Lee joined
Messrs. Lau Chan & Ko, a law firm in Hong Kong specialising in
property and conveyancing from August 2000 to September 2006
where she last served as a partner being responsible for handling
property related transactions, employees’ compensations and personal
injuries claims. She was also a partner of Messrs. Fongs (previously
known as Messrs. Fong Chan & Lee), a law firm in Hong Kong
specialising in conveyancing from September 2006 to February 2009
where she was responsible for handling property related transactions,
employees’ compensations and personal injuries claims. Ms. Lee is
currently a partner of Messrs. Rita Law & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong,
having joined the firm in March 2009 where she is responsible for
overseeing the litigation department, dealing with high value personal
injuries and employees’ compensation cases and providing legal advice
to the general public, and has developed an understanding of the legal
framework and areas of concerns of the construction industry.

Ms. Lee obtained her bachelor of laws and postgraduate certificate in
laws from The University of Hong Kong in December 1994 and
September 1995, respectively. Since December 1997 she was admitted
as a solicitor in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Chan Ming Kit, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 August 2020 and he is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$144,000 per annum. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, corporate finance and business valuation.
Starting from January 1993, Mr. Chan took on various roles at different
professional accounting firms, including as senior manager at various
offices in Hong Kong and the PRC of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst & Young where he was responsible
for auditing works and financial services for clients. From October 2006,
Mr. Chan took his role as director of business and financial valuations
department at Sallmanns, a corporate valuation and consultancy firm
where he was responsible for development of business valuation
services. He later assumed the position as director of Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (previously known as
Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited) in February 2008, upon the
merger of Sallmanns with Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, and was
responsible for the development of business valuation services and has
experience in providing valuation and consultancy advices to clients
including development consultancy, feasibility studies, market studies,
cost analysis and business valuations for various industries, including
the E&M industry, which enables him to understand and evaluate the
various factors, including costs, timeframe, materials, design and
methods, that are relevant to the E&M industry. Mr. Chan is now serving
as regional director of Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, being part of Jones Lang LaSalle, a Fortune 500
company and a leading professional services firm specialising in real
estate and investment management.

Mr. Chan is currently a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since December 2010 and a fellow
member of CPA Australia since May 2009. He was also elected as a
professional member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and
elected as a fellow member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
in February 2014 and July 2016, respectively.

Mr. Chan gained his bachelor of commerce from the University of
Melbourne in Australia in December 1992.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang Hong Lun, aged 41, is the head of heating, ventilation and
air-conditioning (“HVAC”) department of the Company since March
2012 and is primarily responsible for management of HVAC systems
works. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chang Hong Lun was an air
condition engineer at an experienced electrical and mechanical
engineering company, Consolidated Engineering Co. Ltd. (FE T2 A
B2 A 7]), from October 2006 to December 2009, where he was
responsible for management of air-conditioning system. From January
2010 to October 2011, Mr. Chang Hong Lun also served as an air
condition engineer at San Ka U Engineering Co. Ltd. (T2 TI2GR
‘A A]), a company primarily engaged in electrical and mechanical
engineering projects where he was responsible for management of air-
conditioning system. Mr. Chang Hong Lun obtained his bachelor’s
degree in electrical and electronic engineering from the University of
Macau (Universidade de Macau) in October 2006. Mr. Chang Hong Lun
has become a registered professional engineer (“RPE”) in Macau since
2009.

Mr. Tai Hoi Tun, aged 42, is the head of electrical department of the
Company since December 2011 and is primarily responsible for
management of LV systems works and ELV systems works. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Tai was a mechanical engineer at Shun Heng
Construction Company Ltd. (il H# 2 £ 5 R 2 7)), a company mainly
involve in civil construction where he was responsible for management
of sub- contractors from May 2005 to August 2007. From September
2007 to December 2009, Mr. Tai was an assistant engineer in an
electrical and mechanical engineering company, Consolidated
Engineering Co. Ltd. (3% & T2 5 R 2 7)), where he was responsible for
management of electrical works. From January 2010 to December
2011, Mr. Tai also served as an E&M engineer at San Ka U Engineering
Co. Ltd. (&= # T AR A 7), a company primarily engaged in
electrical and mechanical engineering projects where he was
responsible for management of E&M works. Mr. Tai obtained his
bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering and automation from the
South China University of Technology in July 2004. Mr. Tai has become
a RPE in Macau since 2008.
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Ms. Wong, Joyce Kit Sin, aged 41, was appointed as the Group
finance controller on 25 November 2019 and is responsible for finance
management of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wong held
various positions since April 2006 at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, a
professional accounting firm, where she left as a senior auditor in May
2008. From May 2008 to June 2011, Ms. Wong was an internal auditor
of Galaxy Casino, S. A. ()1 #1R 4435 1% {n B FR A A1), a subsidiary owned
as to 90% by Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 27),
where her job duties include plan and budget audit assignments and
developing audit programs. Ms. Wong then joined Orient Town Project
Management Ltd. (2318 B 12 A R A 7)), a property development
company from July 2010 to May 2011 as assistance finance manager,
where she was responsible for treasury management, preparation of
financial reports and monitoring accounting control. She was a finance
manager at Ponte 16 Group, a hotel-casino resort held as to 51% by
SJM Holdings Limited (stock code: 880) and as to 49% by Success
Universe Group Limited (E /23R 3k B IR 2 7) (stock code: 487), from
June 2011 to October 2015, where she was responsible for preparation
of financial statements and analysis report for hotel operations. From
October 2015 to September 2018, Ms. Wong was the finance manager
of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (/7 B8 4p % R AR A7)
(stock code: 688), where she was responsible for overseeing all finance
matters relating to property development projects and hotel business in
Macau of the company. From December 2018 to August 2019, she
served various positions with her last position as assistant financial
controller of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited (22 M & &2
% B R A F]) (stock code: 711), where she was responsible for
formulating financial models and tax planning for the new projects of
the company. Ms. Wong obtained her bachelor’s degree in business
administration in accounting from the University of Hawai’i at Manoa in
August 2005. She was admitted as a member of the CPA Australia in
June 2016.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yat Lui, aged 40, was appointed as the company secretary
on 17 April 2020 and is responsible for company secretarial matters of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan served various
positions with his last position being audit supervisor at Yiu Cho Yan
Certified Public Accountant from June 2005 to May 2011. From June
2011 to November 2014, Mr. Chan was a senior accountant in the
corporate recovery department in KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Certified Public
Accountants and was subsequently promoted to manager in the same
firm. From January 2015 to December 2015, he returned to Yiu Cho Yan
Certified Public Accountant serving as an audit manager. He served as
the financial controller and company secretary of Super Strong Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 8262) from January 2016, and resigned from the
position of company secretary and financial controller on 26 September
2017 and on 13 October 2017, respectively. He was also a company
secretary of Shanghai Realway Capital Assets Management Co., Ltd., a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 1835), from November 2018 to October 2019.
Since November 2019, Mr. Chan has been appointed as a director of
Frank Forensic and Corporate Recovery Limited, a company primarily
engaged in providing financial investigations, forensic accounting,
expert witness and litigation support, corporate rescue and recovery,
and internal compliance advisory services where he is responsible for
leading company liquidations, personal bankruptcy cases, forensic
investigations, receiverships and compliance advisory engagements.
Mr. Chan has been a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 2010, and is currently a
certified tax adviser (non-practising) of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chan obtained an associate degree in business
administration in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 2005.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present this report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering services works in
Macau.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development, as well as a discussion on
the Group’s performance during the Year are provided in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 8. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the Group’s operations, many of
which are beyond the Group’s control, including but not limited to those
relating to its business and the industry. Some of the major risks facing
the Group include the following:

o the gross profit margin depends on the tender price of each
project, which in turn is based on the estimated costs and time to
be involved

° the Company requires various registrations, licenses and
certifications to operate the Group’s business in Macau

° personal injuries, property damages or fatal accidents may occur
at work sites

° any changes in environmental requirements may increase the
Group’s compliance costs

° the Group operates in a competitive E&M services industry
Detailed discussion of the risk factors is set out in the section headed

“Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 August 2020
(the “Prospectus”).

EEMAREAREE
REZRAMERE -
TEXRK
ARBR—FKKERR MEHMBRQ
FERPIIR MMM E T2 IRTS -

[l AN 65 B A JE Y

RIEE

£ e

REBARFENEBFORE - AEBARKES
EROFWARANEEARFRERIRO
BENESAIEEEN®ENN ]~ -8
AREFRIAK  SHEELEHAEEBKNTE
MEZEMF -

7 EE
AEEEEE S BUHOAFEEEES N
HIR AR BB S -

TERRBETAPEE

AEEMEESRETRAR  HFFZER
W IEAKBEPTREIES] - BIFENRNEEF
MR RITRABR o 75 B A0 &
DEIZBRBEENATSEA:

e EANXETEEEBEMNREFEEME
M RARE TR A b 5T A & B 5T

s ARAFTEZEIEM BRIIFE -
PATO R PIAR & AN 5 B 1) 75

o T{FMEAIREEEATS
Kk Ean Z b

= -MER

s REFRENEIMNEIHAIEENAZHE
H) & B

e AKERBFHNNEERBITERE
&

FHERBAEAZMNFAENHENALQF B
A2020 8 A31 HWABRER ((BRER])
[EfeEZ=E]—&r -

BUIMEERBERAF 2023 FEHE

95



96

Directors’ Report

EERE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Environment, Social and Governance Report of the Company for
the Year contained the information required under Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules is set out on pages 16 to 65 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets
of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring
environment to employees and emphasis the personal development of
its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers,
subcontractors and suppliers. The Group aims to continue providing
quality services to its customers and establishing cooperation strategy
with its subcontractors and suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 119.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: HK1.08 cents per Share).

As at 31 December 2023, there was no arrangement under which a
Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation (2022:
Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR THE AGM AND THE FINAL DIVIDEND

The 2024 annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) is
scheduled to be held on Friday, 24 May 2024. For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Friday, 17 May 2024 to Friday, 24 May
2024 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of the
Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 16 May 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately MOP82.4
million.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the Year are set
out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any
of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when this Directors’ Report
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 196 of this report.

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors for the Year and up to the date of this report is set
out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Leong Kam Leng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Kit
Mr. Law Lap Tak
Ms. Lee Sze Ming
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Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Further,
pursuant to Article 83 of the Articles of Association, any person
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment, and shall be eligible for
re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Leong Kam Leng and Mr. Chan Ming Kit
shall retire from office at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has renewed his service agreement with
the Company, and each of the INEDs has renewed his/her appointment
letter with the Company, for a term of three years commencing from 11
September 2023 which can be terminated by either party with three
months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence for the purpose of
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms it considers that
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of,
the Company or in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS ’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement and
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
or an entity connected with such Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly subsisted at 31 December 2023 or at any
time during the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Group, or any
of its subsidiaries, and any of the Company’s controlling shareholders
or any of their subsidiaries during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements do not fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are not subject to the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with all applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT EENRM RAEER G HE
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND mRKE
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the #R2023%12A31H EFN AR HZSIT
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying B A8 R ARG HEMAE LB (FERE
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation B %FIE 571 E &5 RS G0 ((H5 R
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, & &4l ]) FHXV D) B - BRAR () & B4
Cap. 571 (Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the FEF @ HERIEES L EEMEXVEET
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part 2 8 7> Z87B &N 7K 2 &) K B 22 AT 89 1 25 8004
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are & (BREEEREZESFLBESENNZEE
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which X & EE AEANERIKAE) » SR
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the 15 & % & B & (5 17] 58 352 15678 B i sz 16
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the & MEVERIAR » SIRIFEHEST BIE

Model Code, are set out below: TFERESIORBEFINT ¢
Interest in Shares of the Company RARABRMGD P HER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest shares (Note 1) interest Wete 2
FRER
EEsA HEmtE RGEE #EY BN H D #E2
Mr. Cheong (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
R&EE (BY7F 3) ZEHEE R
Mr. Leong (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
R (Bt 4) R REE R
Notes: Btat -

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the Company. (1) [LIKREXBBATRBDFAENTAE -

@ Based on 500,000,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December (2) E X 2023F12A31AARQRAIEEITH

2023. 500,000,000 % f% 22 ©

(3  Macau E&M Group Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Cheong. By virtue of the (3) HIHMEEEERAAMAREEZEHE -
SFO, Mr. Cheong is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company R 75 BRG] - oR S8 £ W AREROR T
held by Macau E&M Group Limited. Mr. Cheong, an executive Director, is also BEEEERAFAFANARARGTHE
the sole director of Macau E&M Group Limited. Bm T ESFREENARIKEERS

RARME—ES -

(4  Macau E&M Assets Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Leong. By virtue of the (4) RIHMEELEEAR QMR EEZEHE -

SFO, Mr. Leong is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held R 5 R BRG] REEWARERORIT
by Macau E&M Assets Limited. Mr. Leong, an executive Director, is also the WMELEEERARNFAENETRARRORES
sole director of Macau E&M Assets Limited. Bm T ESREENARRIKEEES

RARME—ES -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors or chief executive of
the Company were aware of, persons (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Name of substantial shareholder Nature of interest

FERRES

BEME

Macau E&M Group Limited
BIIKEEE

Beneficial owner

BEREREA

Ms. Lo Chao leng (Note 3)
BHORZ L (F7E3)

Interest of spouse

Fo Bt as

Macau E&M Assets Limited
BTHERE

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Ms. Leong Kam In (Note 4)
Rt (Hat4)

Interest of spouse

[ e

Mr. Tam Chi Wai (“Mr. Tam”) (Note 5)

EEEEE(TERE]D (HiE5) RESEEE R

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

One Wesco Inc.

Ms. Law Ming Chu (Note 6)
‘AR T (K17F6)

Interest of spouse

[N

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Interest of controlled corporation

B EXXCRTIER &SN - R20283F12 A31H -
MEARAEERETBZITRAEBRAAF
SEMEEBEE (EELBHFLPERDIE
XVER) BRtn ~ HERE AR R ERET EHR
BESRIERGIZEXVEET 85 B AHM
SARPMBRANERIOAR (BRRE
B RHERIIN ARG EFREFRL
BEREANED AR  HABLRRE
5 LB GG 352 167 B M & AL M A4
BIORR  IRBRETAANEARRE] R
BT RSORE

ETERRRNR A R EBERAD
THEERAR

R2023F 12 A31H MARAEZEFTHES
ITERABFATA  THAL (RRRIEEH &
STHABBRIN) RAR R B =k A8 B R
DHRBREREESNEEEMEXVIIEL
NEIDIARMANRFEEOERSIAE -
RIREES M EEDIE 3365 Em AN T
FENECMATRSMOERSAR

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
shares Note 7) interest Wete 2
FRER

BOBE 20 WHE D w2
198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
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Name of substantial shareholder

FERRESR

Mr. Tsang Yuen Wai, Samuel
(“Mr. Tsang") (Note 7)

SIRE £ - Samuel ([ B k4 ])
(Htex7)

Bridge Capital Limited

Ms. Li Sau Fun (Note 8)
FHERLL(HES)

Nature of interest

BEtE

SIESEE RS
Beneficial owner
EEMEA A

Interest of spouse
fic B 1 &

Interest of controlled corporation

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
shares Note 1) interest (ete 2
KR

R EE @2 B E D #we2
47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
47,316,000 (L) 9.5%

Notes:

()
@)

©

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Based on 500,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.

Ms. Lo Chao leng is the spouse of Mr. Cheong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lo
Chao leng is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Cheong is
interested.

Ms. Leong Kam In is the spouse of Mr. Leong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Leong
Kam In is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Leong is
interested.

One Wesco Inc. is wholly-owned by Mr. Tam. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tam is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by One Wesco Inc..

Ms. Law Ming Chu is the spouse of Mr. Tam. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law
Ming Chu is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tam is
interested.

Bridge Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Tsang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Tsang is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Bridge Capital Limited.

Ms. Li Sau Fun is the spouse of Mr. Tsang. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Li Sau
Fun is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tsang is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any interests
or short positions owned by any persons (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2023.

B EXCRTIEE A
i%l?ﬂ

FRILIEZBALTRENHHOTE -

£ 72023 4 12 A 31 H 500,000,000 % 2 2 17
Betn o

BMRZ L RREENES - RIFE S R
EEG - BMORZ T RIRERREEHE R
mE B R A

ﬁﬂutﬁi%%?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ RiRES L
EEA REBXIHBRERRELEHERE
mE B R A

One Wesco Inc. BB £ 2 EHA - RIEEF
K ERE &G - 38 5t £ #18 E 7 One Wesco Inc.
BENRDTHEEER -

AR T RBREENES - REBEFES R
EEG BRRZ I RREREEERERE
mE B A

Bridge Capital Limited A 2 5 =2 & A 1R
BEF LS 54 %R (ER Bridge
Capital Limited 8 B % (0 F ¥ A = o

FEBZLT AL RENRLSE - RIEFH L
BIEF THEF LT HERIER G E BB E
IR P s o

M2023%12 A31H -
REMAL (KRR ESEHES

TTRA BERSN) RA R B 1) RARRE A 4n o
i%ﬁ*ﬁ%%mﬁﬁﬁﬁi"iﬂﬂﬁll%xv*ﬁfﬁ2&%3
DEARMAR BB REEIORR - HIRIE

EH LA

5 {55 336 R B AR R FEH

BRMACEMERIRR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 August 2020, the Company adopted the Share Option Scheme
which became effective upon the Listing and is subject to the
requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. As of the date of
this report, no option has been granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Share Option Scheme

(1)

(2

(3)

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will
provide the eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with the view to motivate the eligible
participants to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group and attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-
going business relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
the Group.

Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to any
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, any directors (including non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other
persons who in the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for such number of new shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (6) below.

The maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue on the date of
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(being 11 September 2020, the “Listing Date”), i.e. 50,000,000
Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date of this report.
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4)

(5)

The maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to approval by the Shareholders in accordance with
the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Acceptance and exercise of options and duration of
the Share Option Scheme

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by
the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the Listing Date. Subject to earlier
termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the Listing Date.

As at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately 6 years and 6 months.

(4)

(5)

E2RENBAHESR

EEERL BB IEER12E A #HER
R R AR At 8 R AN & BE ] E R A
BERNEBRAER2EERENG
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(6)

(7

8

Subscription price for shares

Subject to adjustment under the Share Option Scheme, the
subscription price of a share of the Company in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
but shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities; (ii) the average of the official closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Number of options available for grant

The number of options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 were
50,000,000 and 50,000,000, respectively.

Performance target

A grantee may be required to achieve any performance targets as
the Board may then specify in the grant before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus under the section headed
“Statutory and general information — D. Other information — 1.
Share Option Scheme”.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Macau E&M Group Limited, Macau E&M Assets Limited, Mr. Cheong
and Mr. Leong (together, the “Covenantors”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition on 21 August 2020 in favour of the Company
(for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries from time to time),
under which each of the Covenantors has jointly and severally
undertaken to the Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure that
none of their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group) shall, during the period that (a) the shares of the Company
remain listed on the Stock Exchange; and (b) either the Covenantors
and their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group), individually or jointly, are entitled to exercise, or control the
exercise of, not less than 30% of the voting power at general meetings
of the Company and not less than 10% of the voting power from the
substantial shareholders of the Company; or (c) any of the Covenantors
or their respective close associates remains as a director of any
member of the Group, directly or indirectly, either on their own account,
in conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, participate or be interested,
engaged or otherwise involved in or acquire or hold (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether for
profit, reward or otherwise) any business that directly or indirectly be
involved in or any business that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking and any other new
business which the Group may undertake from time to time after the
Listing.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with
the non-competition undertakings during the Year. The independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and the
confirmation provided by each of the Covenantors as part of the annual
review process. On the basis that: (i) the Company has received the
confirmations from all of them regarding the undertakings; (i) there was
no competing business reported by them; and (iii) there was no
particular situation rendering the full compliance of the undertakings
being questionable, the independent non-executive Directors are of the
view that the undertakings have been complied with and been enforced
by the Company in accordance with the terms.

T F ARG

BIHERE  BIREEE  ReMELE
MRERFELE (FHEREAN]) 12202048
A21 BRI AR R (BEA G RIER/ED
ROESHBRBINZEAN) BREBEANTE
FRE B FRBAKRRERRAR
AEG BTEREEEZENETBEA
(AEEX B QBRI BT ER (@A RF
BRI Pr £ ()2 HEARKE
EEMETBREA (KEEKERBKIN)
18 71 =k B B R 1T {8 S AR Bl 7T (£ AN 2 B
RREFPNIOBLERRARAEER
RADR10% I EHE - (o) EMREARK
REZSENETBREAD/AKEITAX
BRAREENHEAN - 817 ER - KKR:K
BEBREMAL BRARFERLHEE (B
REE)ET SEINETHEARS K
EFREMT RS R RRBERFTE (ERIT
MATEREDUBR - ABA  RIBHEAM
SOREER/TEN BHRKEMEDN) H
BEIABESIRIUFTERXIEEHAKHE
MEBRLERANEER ETERAETE
ETOEMEMHEBBRBEF AR
Pt T B (0] 2675 ©

REAERAARRBERBRERANFEEET
THFAR - FWUFUTEFCEHERH
AHERBRARBEEFRENER  FRFE
EHEFO—D ER:()ARADUE
PrA B Bk S AGR RV RERR B ¢ (i) I 5 I AR R
WEABEFRS Ri)RBEETASER
o RREREBITRAEFERRE - Bk
HITEZRRARBEETAR Y ERE
BRAGRIIT

SOIHEBEIRRAR AT 2023FEERE

107



108

Directors’ Report

EERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective close associates is or was
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s business) that
competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time during the Year and up
to the date of this report.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any disclosure obligation under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this report, the Company is not
aware of any change in any of the information of the Directors required
to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2)
since the last published interim report and up to the date of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No other equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2023 are set
out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has a bank mortgage borrowing of

MOP12.8 million in related to the office premises acquisition on 1 July
2022.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 29.6% and 85.1% of the Group’s total revenue
respectively.

During the Year, the largest subcontractor and the five largest
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 31.1% and
73.8% of the total cost of sales of the Group respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 39.0% and 62.7% of the total cost
of sales of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group enters into employment contracts with its employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Hong Kong and Macau.
The remuneration package that is offered to employees generally
includes salary, allowance, benefit-in-kind, and fringe benefits including
medical insurance and contributions to pension funds and bonus. The
Group also operates the Share Option Scheme to incentivise its
employees, details of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” on pages 104 to 106 of this report. In general, the
Group determines salaries of its employees based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority. The Group has, from time to time,
provided training to its employees on various aspects including but not
limited to project management, occupational health and safety,
environmental protection, and accounting and finance. The Group
believes that the quality and safety of its staff play a crucial role in its
operations. It emphasises the importance of health and safety with its
employees and staff members, and provides on-site training to its
workers. All its workers are required to obtain certified training on
occupational health and safety before entering the construction sites.
As the Group is a main contractor for some projects, it applies for work
permits for its non- Macau resident workers on a project-by-project
basis.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 65 (31 December 2022: 61)
employees in Macau, comprising 47 Macau residents and 18 non-
Macau residents (31 December 2022: 42 Macau residents and 19 non-
Macau residents). During the Year, the Group recorded staff costs of
MOP23.7 million (previous year: MOP23.5 million).

During the Year, the total contributions paid or payable by the Group to
the defined contribution retirement benefits schemes were charged to
the profit or loss, at rates specified in the rules of scheme. At 31
December 2023 and 2022, there were no forfeited contributions which
arose upon employees leaving the schemes.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for Year are set out in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived his/her emoluments or has agreed to
waive his/her emoluments for the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date
of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 21 August 2020 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to,
(a) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half- year report
and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c)
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Law Lap Tak (as chairman), Mr. Chan
Ming Kit and Ms. Lee Sze Ming. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.
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AUDITORS

There has been no change in the Company’s auditor since the Listing
Date. The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company for the subsequent year
is to be proposed at the AGM.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There were no important events affecting the Group that had occurred
after 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

By order of the Board

Macau E&M Holding Limited
Cheong Ka Wo

Chairman

Macau, 21 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % BLAT R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MACAU E&M HOLDING LIMITED
BOIMEERABRAF

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Macau E&M
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 119 to 195, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AT 3R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

RRETEE

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

BRIRSHONKE

We identified the revenue recognition of on-going
electrical and mechanical engineering works as a key audit
matter due to significant management judgements and
estimation are required in the determination of the total
outcome of the contracting service contracts as well as
the progress towards complete satisfaction of contracting
service.

MR EREREEEABRE S NNBERKABRE 2T
THERRELERHE LA - Bt RIS R ETTH A%
BEIRKEAN REREAFE -

The Group provides services for electrical and mechanical
engineering works. The Group has recognised revenue
from electrical and mechanical engineering works of
MOP124,738,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
as disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EEERHRETERYE - SESXECHEIEZE 2023 F 12
A 31 BIEFEHKE TR & 124,738,000 J2FI7T -+ 7F
BEENRE P ERERMEES ©

BRETSEE

RRETFHEERERMANEXHE - RBA
HABGEMBRRNEBIRREENSE
R BLFERIELHFEVBRRERBET
BRIUWEKERLNE S METERER - A
" EHELEREREBNER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REAEEE TN AR

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition for
construction contracts included:

B TR KRR ONITABRRF 8218

° Obtaining an understanding of the relevant key
controls over recognition of revenue from
construction contracts;

o THRHERTIZEAMWEMERERIEHIERE

o Assessing the Group’s revenue recognition practices
to determine if they are in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards;

o M BEEENWRFEREN - UETEEMNEIEN

GEpes)

BOTHEIERAMR AT 2023FEERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AT 3R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETEE

As set out in notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognises contract revenue of
electrical and mechanical engineering works according to
the management’s judgements and estimation of the total
outcome of the contracting service contracts as well as
the progress towards complete satisfaction of contracting
service which is measured based on the Group’s efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation
relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation.

WNE A M BHRERMT4RME X EXERBEEEEYH
EERBEHNBERREARREZEIEERELN
HE R A RRAREIRAORS BRI EER &
SERMERNBEEMNENBS NRRARBHERELD
BEEMBIRALERE -
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FARETEZTE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREFTHROMERN

On a sample basis,
AR R &R

° Agreeing projects contract sum to signed contracts
and variation orders;
e HERIWNAHONEERESHTETEESHNESRE:

° Assessing the reasonableness of the estimates used
by the management in arriving at the total budget
cost, agreed the estimates to supporting documents
and performing review of completed projects;

e FHMEEREAEBERENARAMIRELSE
18 7 ¥ S 45 S SR B e Rk IR B ETT B B eV (R AT

° Comparing the actual cost incurred during the year
to the supporting documents of subcontractors,
suppliers and direct labour to ensure the validity and
accuracy of the costs;

e BFEANERKAHERSBE HEFREEXRSIHNE
B HEATEL R - DARRAR A R 0 8 201 I R He 1

° Visiting the construction sites and interviewing the
project managers, or tracing to final accounts of the
construction projects to understand the completion
status of the relevant construction project; and

e HREEZFEMA WHERKLEEA FCEHEER
ENEERENATHEBZERENTIER &

o Evaluating the reasonableness of progress towards
complete satisfaction of construction contracts to
test the accuracy of revenue recognition for the year.

o FMETIRESHNREERSSE  MARFAI
MR EREE -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AT 3R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AT 3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE #% S H 5 B 5 &=

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.
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B A% AT 3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Man Ka Lai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEeBRBERAEMEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 &
MOP’000 MOP’000

FHEFIT FHEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(REX) (&%)

Revenue W as 5 128,283 143,046
Cost of services PR 75 A AR (120,899) (117,968)
Gross profit EF 7,384 25,078
Other income HAipug A 6 3,805 1,769
(Impairment losses) reversal of under FEHEEEREREA T2

expected credit loss model, net CRIEER) &R - F& 8 (112) 126
Administrative expenses TBRISZ (14,861) (16,077)
Finance costs A& B AR 7 (19) 372)
(Loss) profit before tax ML AT (E548) ' A (3,803) 10,524
Income tax credit (expense) Fris®iEe (FA%) 11 44 (1,212)
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FE (EE) &N &

(expense) income for the year 2 (B WA BEE 9 (3,759) 9,312
Basic (loss) earnings per share BRER(FEE) &ZF CEPIL)

(MOP cents) 13 (0.75) 1.86

BIIMEERERAR 2023FEHeE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
202312 A31H

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 &
MOP’000 MOP’000
F 5T FHEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(REX) (&%)

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - E KRR 14 38,051 36,451
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 15 177 815
Deposits and receivables & MEBGRIE 17 - 960
38,228 38,226

Current assets REBEE
Contract assets arEE 16 49,264 41,907
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EHAME TS 17 30,383 59,947
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITER 18 42 1,615
Short-term bank deposits RHERITER 18 27,025 98,450
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeFEY 18 114,732 19,727
221,446 221,646
Current liabilities REBEE

Contract liabilities EHEE 19 2,310 -
Trade payables and accruals B S ENFIERERSEA 20 38,884 29,931
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 102 603
Bank borrowing H|ITHER 22 516 511
Tax liabilities HMEAE 34 1,012
41,846 32,057
Net current assets REBEEFE 179,600 189,589

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowing RITER 22 12,304 12,812
Lease liabilities HEB®E 21 77 227
12,381 13,039
Net assets EEFHE 205,447 214,776

Capital and reserves BEAXRFEE
Share capital [E&N 23 5,150 5,150
Reserves 1 200,297 209,626
Total equity B 205,447 214,776

The consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to 195 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

F119E 195 B ML A BB HRERE K 2024 F
SHOIHESEESHENRRENE  WHT
PIEENRKREE

CHEONG Ka Wo LEONG Kam Leng

REM RER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

Share Share
capital premium

kx  ROBE

MOP000  MOP’000
TRFiT  TRMAT

Legal Other Retained
reserves reserves  earnings Total
EEMRE  HttRE REEA st
MOP’000  MOP'000  MOP’000  MOP’000
FRFT TRt FRFAT  TRAT
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(HieE1) (Hizt2)

At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1H 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 155,252 236,410
Profit and total comprehensive A3 ¥ )2 2 Eliz5 4858

income for the year - - - - 9,312 9,312
Dividends paid (note 12) BRBRE (HE12) - - - - (30,946)  (30,946)
At 31 December 2022 2022612 A31H 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 133,618 214,776
Loss and total comprehensive FRNBBLZEMAZESE

expense for the year - - - - (3,759) (3,759)
Dividends paid (note 12) ERRE Hriz12) - - - - (5,570) (5,570)
At 31 December 2023 72023412 531 A 5,150 111,487 30  (35500) 124,280 205447
Note 1:  In accordance with provision of the Macau Commercial Code, the subsidiary ~ M/iF 1 - RIBIEPIE AT RRPISBITRE

Note 2:

incorporated in Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) is required
to transfer a minimum of 25% of the profit after taxation each year to the
legal reserve until the balance meets 50% of its registered capital. The
reserve is not distributable to shareholders.

Other reserves represent the difference between the carrying amount
MOP60,000 of total equity of Kento Engineering Co. Ltd (“Kento”) satisfied
by the way of issue of shares by the Company for acquisition of Kento by
Macau E&M Company Limited, pursuant to the reorganisation which was
completed on 4 December 2017 in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

2023
2023 &

MOP’000

FRPIT

2022
2022 £F
MOP’000
FRFIT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEE
(Loss) profit before tax BrEL AT (E518) % A (3,803) 10,524
Adjustments for: FUATIEEEL A%
Finance costs BE B A 19 372
Depreciation of LATIEE MITE
— Property, plant and equipment — W BELEE 1,094 183
— Right-of-use assets —EAREEE 348 1,514
Loss on disposal on property, HEWME MENMKEZEE
plant and equipment 1 -
Impairment losses (reversal of) FEHEEEEEAT ZRESE
under expected credit loss model, net (%[E) - F58 112 (126)
Gain arising from early termination RAKIEHESNEANKE
on lease contract (9) -
Bank interest income RATHFI B WA (3,648) (1,759)
Operating cash flows before LEEREPINKERERE
movements in working capital (5,886) 10,712
Decrease (increase) in trade B 5 N CH b FE YR IE R > (38 0)
and other receivables 30,510 (9,173)
(Increase) decrease in contract assets ESHVEE (Em) F (7,333) 3,515
Increase (decrease) in trade B SN FRIE R FERHE A O )
payables and accruals 8,953 (3,660)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities AHaEENCRD) 2,310 (402)
Net cash generated from operations LTSRS T 28,554 992
Income tax paid BB (944) (3,388)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETHFAES (A RS FHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 27,610 (2,396)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Interest received 2R 8 3,536 1,334
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WMENMEKE (2,695) (36,333)
Redemption of short-term bank deposits i O 58 BRER 1T 17 3K 173,759 124,535
Placement of short-term bank deposits TR BRITER (102,334) (98,450)
Redemption of pledged bank deposits EE S ERRITER 4,871 1,874
Placement of pledged bank borrowing FEACHEMRRITER (3,298) (1,615)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REZBRE(FFRA)REFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 73,839 (8,655)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

2023
2023 &

MOP’000
FRPIT

2022
2022 fF
MOP’000
FRFIT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES Rl ESEE
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMAEAE (352) (1,057)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEBERNE (8) (48)
Dividend paid to shareholder BRREZKE (5,570) (30,946)
New bank loan raised EETHRITER - 13,546
Repayment of bank borrowing EERITIER (503) (223)
Interest paid for bank borrowing BARITRESRFE (387) (129)
Subsidy from government on B BB IRIT 8 S B

mortgage bank borrowing 376 -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RMEEBFARSEE

ACTIVITIES (6,444) (18,857)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) REeRASEEYWEMCED) B8

IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 95,005 (29,908)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FONRERESEEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 19,727 49,635
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREGRESEEY

AT END OF THE YEAR
Represented by cash and cash equivalents NIRSRESEZEEMEY 114,732 19,727

BIIMEERERAR 2023FEHeE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —BER

Macau E&M Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and registered in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 24 October 2017. Its registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is located at Avenida da Concérdia, nos 175-
181, Edificio Industrial Wang Fu, 10 Andar B e D, Macau.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries (together with the Company referred
to as the “Group”) are engaged in the provision of electrical and
mechanical (“E&M”) engineering works; and maintenance and
repair services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Macanese
Pataca (“MOP”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“lIASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January
2023 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 17 (including the June
2020 and December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Insurance Contracts

Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two
model Rules

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 8
Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments define accounting
estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty.
In such a case, an entity develops an accounting estimate to
achieve the objective set out by the accounting policy. The
amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates, and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors.

The application of the amendments in the current year had
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“lFRSS”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)

2.2 Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to
accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“lFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
IAS 28 between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback?

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Amendments to IAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements?

IFRS 7
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
these new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“lFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of
the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at
the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that the classification should not be
affected by management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments
have been modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which an entity is
required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants which
are required to comply with only after the reporting period do not
affect whether that right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“lFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”) (continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if the
entity classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those
liabilities is subject to the entity complying with covenants within
twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying
the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the
2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early application
permitted. If an entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier
period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should
also apply the 2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2023, the application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

3.2 Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEVMBERRREKRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SATHERERNREEE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ()

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 ERGFHHEXER (&)

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHANKER
Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating AEBEBEEFPAHNNERTER
to contracts with customers is provided in note 5. BRI E RIS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE

2023F 12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current
income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHBRREKRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TBERERNEREE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL (%)

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 ERGFHHERER (&)
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEVMBERRREKRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SATHERERNREEE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL (&

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 ERETFBERER &)

134

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generated unit for impairment, corporates
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating units
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRERRREKRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SATHRERNNEREE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ()

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 ERGHBERER #)

136

(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRERRREKRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SATHRERNNEREE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ()

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 ERGHBERER 1)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including
deposits, other receivables, interest receivables, trade
receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) and contract
assets which are subject to impairment assessment under
IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(i)  Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(o) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

S
> |

EI,‘I_'

Eop
HE
I S

X
=

3 %
2 bl
i >t
fi

(&

3.2 EXRETBERER #)

SRIA#E)
EHEE (&)
THEERENEENRE

(&

(i) EEREZEZMEEE)
© ERANERARE
98 8 R B 755 IR 2
RBERANRERE
RARBERATE

AEE B

(d) FERABAIRERES
ETHMMHES

35{_

e MBRBEHZEH
BEMEETISHEK °

(iv) HSHBUR
RNEBR LA TE R T MR
CREE: EBEAMEKH
HFHhEHRENBRER
mERWMETRE  WHF
FEZBRUEAFER
FrosifMB S EBKER
MEEAME (AR EE
ERE) - BEAEEMHK
WA REREER (M
BiE) e EEMBEA A
MEZRREEEDHLOR -
WEBRRIEEREE -
EAIBE 12 U B /) SR IE R 18

Sz 27
B o

BIIHEIERARAR 2023FEHRSE

143



144

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and contract
assets are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

[N
g

W S
Eop
HE

3.2 EXRETHBERER ()

@I A (E)

TEEE (&)

THEERGVEERE

(&)

(v) FEHIEEBBE=ERER
FFTEESEEEBRE
HEHPER - EHBEX
(BEHBNEBERE) X
BEHRBRWOER - -FHE
MR RENBBERENE
FAE b U M ATRE IR E R o
FEHEEBBEN G R
— B NR N R M =R 0
SR ORBELEERAORARD
HERRETE AEE -

—mRmE - EHEEEE
ERBEAORTERNARE
ErMpmaaiensn
REBEBKINNAER
TREZHENEZR Y]
15 HE B8 B HE R B0 B IR M K
g -

ETEZREFERA LD
BEMNEZHEREERE
TEERBARER M
EEER (AT RERL
HER) RIZEBEEERE

RERTHETNE A&H
KB 9 S E AT
e

o EER

o EBAMMKE - RE
RiTH R

e HEMEEFRUEA
ES) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables and bank
borrowing) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

146 Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

32 EREHHBEER #)

SRIA#E)
EHEERER
DERBER LR

EBEEaR T AERRBREOLHA
AheMABREERTANES
TERTRAGIES -

#aT

BaTARTREREHRMAE
BERNEETHEANBEDN
EAEH c ARBBEITHRAT
ﬂﬁaqﬁlﬁﬁ?%fklﬁ?ﬂ&%ﬁ%%ﬁ

REEK AT EN @A E

TREE(BRESRNREAR
RITRE ) BER KRB ERA RX
AT E -

HIktER @A E

EHEEAKENEEEET

RSB R AEERIEER

THEE KUIBINEHAE

EEEEEEEEH&JEHREZFEEJE’\J
ZREN B R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE

2023F 12 A31HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3.2, the management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Construction contracts in respect of electrical
and mechanical engineering works

The Group reviews and revises the estimated total costs to
complete the satisfaction of electrical and mechanical engineering
works and the margin of each project as the contract progresses.
Budgeted costs and margins are prepared by the management of
the Group on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management of the Group. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management of the Group
conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.
Such significant estimate may have impact on the profit
recognised in each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. A TREIENETE

148

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Construction contracts in respect of electrical
and mechanical engineering works (continued)

Recognised amounts of revenue from electrical and mechanical
engineering contracts and related receivables reflect the
management’s best estimate of each contract’s outcome and
progress towards complete satisfaction, which are determined on
the basis of a number of estimates. This includes the assessment
of the profitability of on-going electrical and mechanical
engineering contracts. For more complex contracts in particular,
costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to
significant estimation uncertainty, the actual outcomes in terms of
total cost may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
each reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years and adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date. The amount of revenue from construction
contracts in respect of electrical and mechanical engineering
works during the year ended 31 December 2023 is
MOP124,738,000 (2022: MOP139,573,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

Except for certain trade receivables and contract assets with
individual significant balances, which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables and contract assets
are grouped based on internal credit ratings as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The internal credit
ratings are based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the contract assets, trade receivables and ECL
are disclosed in notes 16, 17 and 28b respectively.

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of trade receivables
(net of allowance for credit losses) of the Group were
MOP27,805,000 (2022: MOP40,780,000) (note 17). At 31
December 2023, the carrying amounts of contract assets (net of
allowance for credit losses) of the Group were MOP49,264,000
(2022: MOP41,907,000) (note 16).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wz ko HER

INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue represents the amount received and
receivable for revenue arising on E&M engineering works and
maintenance and repair services.

For the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the executive directors of the Company, who are
also the directors of Kento Engineering Company Limited, the sole
operating subsidiary of the Group, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM?”), review the overall results and financial
position of the Group as a whole prepared based on accounting
policies stated in 5(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies.

Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment
and no further discrete financial information nor analysis of this
single segment is presented. No analysis of the Group’s assets
and liabilities is disclosed as such information is not regularly
provided to the CODM for review.

() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

AEEMRSERERETZARR
& RS RIS W 1) B U N R UK IR

RERDBERRBEFEME AR A
MMITES (MAAKERE—2ENEB
ARABRETIRERABMNES A1
ZRERRE ((EREEBEREE)))F
BIRESMHEFFPAENENEE LS
ERABRAA SRR AN AEH
BREXE MBI

At AEEES—EE K& E
WEZIZE— DB HE— P ARY
BEREDT A EEERBASE
BEMABOSN RAEHEENL
BEHRHTERZLERRENRES -

() REFFEHNNNREZEZ

i)

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 &
MOP’000 MOP’000
F 55T FRFIT
Revenue from construction contracts BEASHWKE
Electrical and mechanical engineering works WE TR 124,738 139,573
Provision of services =R
Maintenance and repair services RERHEIEN 3,545 3,473
128,283 143,046
Timing of revenue recognition KRR REE
Over time BERFRIHER 128,283 143,046
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(i

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies

Construction contracts

The Group provides electrical and mechanical engineering
works to customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the Group
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced.

Progress towards complete satisfaction is measured based
on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation (i.e. contract costs incurred for work
performed to date) relative to the total expected inputs to
the satisfaction of that performance obligation (i.e. total
estimated contract cost), that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled using the most likely amount. The
estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
construction contract only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(i

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies
(continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same
contract, is recognised over the period in which the
construction contracts are performed representing the
Group’s right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges from
one to two years from the date of the practical completion of
the construction. The relevant amount of contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability
period expires. The defect liability period serves as an
assurance that the construction services performed comply
with agreed upon specifications and such assurance cannot
be purchased separately.

When the Group receives upfront payments or cash
advances before construction activities commence, contract
liabilities will arise at the start of the relevant contracts, until
the revenue recognised on such relevant contracts exceeds
the amount of the cash advances.

Provision of services

The Group’s maintenance and repair services involve the
provision of services on the low voltage systems, heating,
ventilation and air-conditioning systems and/or extra low
voltage systems to customers.

The Group provides such services as a fixed-price contract,
with contract terms generally ranging from one year to three
years. Revenue from fixed price contracts for delivering such
services is recognised over time, when the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits from the
Group’s performance. Such services are recognised using a
straight-line basis over the term of the contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)
(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

At 31 December 2023

5. Wz RkoHER @

(i) 7EEFEFANRERE
B  EE

DEERBBHOEL CREKK
By RIERE) R 5B K
AU TR RS T

A2023F12H31H

Electrical
and
mechanical Maintenance
engineering and repair
works services
RER
BETRE HAZ RS
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFI T FHFIT
Within one year —FNR 67,277 2,309
More than one year —F A BN HBBmRF
but not more than two years - 1,859
67,277 4,168

At 31 December 2022

R2022412 A31H

Electrical
and
mechanical Maintenance
engineering and repair
works services
RER
HE TR HAE IRTS
MOP’000 MOP’000
FIRFIT TEFIT
Within one year 133,266 7,360
More than one year but not —FAFETBBWF
more than two years 24,652 145
More than two years - 60
157,918 7,565
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5.
INFORMATION (continued)
(iv) Geographical information

The Group’s revenue is all derived from operations in Macau
and the Group’s non-current assets are all located in Macau.

(v) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers in respect of electrical and
mechanical engineering works and maintenance and repair
services of the year contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

Customer A ZEA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C ZFC
Customer D ZFD

WKk oEHER @

(iv) tEER

ZS SLED €SP =Y SEASENES
BRAKERERSDEEDUR
P o

ITEEFEH
FR - (7R BRI 10% 1)

BETRERRERBERBEP
MR E SIS

2023 2022
2023 &£ 2022 &

MOP’000 MOP’000
FTRFIT TRFIT

38,035 N/A A A -

30,713 50,320
15,213 N/A A~ F
N/A & A * 24,950

*

The correspondence revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

* R L i 2 N e A A R UK
THBHE10% °

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Htgr A

2023 2022
2023 F 2022

MoP’000 MOP’000
FRFI T TRFIT

Bank interest income IRITF B YA 3,648 1,755
Interest income from trade receivable B 5 rWEIER WA 127 -
Others i) 30 14

3,805 1,769
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMERAX

2023 2022
2023 F 2022

MOP’000 MOP’000
FTRFIT TRFIT

Interest on: ATREIBEZHE
— imputed interest income on — B RWFIESER
interest-free from trade receivables HWERMEIA - 195
— bank borrowing (note) — RITE R (M) 11 129
— lease liabilities —HE&aE 8 48
19 372
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, the interest on bank Biat : 8 ZE 2023612 A31 B IEFE - R1T7f&
borrowing MOP387,000 (2022: MOP129,000) was net off by the | £387,0008 P9 T (2022 4 :
government subsidy MOP376,000 (2022: MOPil) . 129,000 2 9 7T ) LA BT # B 376,000 2

FITCHLEH (2022 5F - TRPIT) ©

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (REVERSALOF) 8. i EEFBEERT 2
UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS BWAEEE (BE) - FEE
MODEL, NET

2023 2022
2023 F 2022

MOP’000 MOP’000
FHFI T THBFIT

Impairment (reversed) losses recognised on: gt A T B R & (8 @) &8

— Trade receivables — B SR FIE 136 (46)
— Contract assets —ANAE (24) (80)
112 (126)

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b. BEBEMFTHFFIBENHE28b ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

9. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging (crediting):

9. FA(BE) =T

2023
2023 F

MOP’000
F AT

FR(ER) & A& Gt A)

THBBERRER

2022

2022 £F
MOP’000
FHEFIT

Directors’ emoluments (note 10(a)) E=2W< (K2 10a) 4,109 4,109
Other staff costs: Hi8 Ik :

— Salaries and other allowances — Fre R E A ERL 19,474 19,282

— Retirement benefit scheme — RREFET B

contributions 88 90
23,671 23,481

Less: amounts included in cost of services ¥ : 5+ AR TEAK AN ) 3018 (15,704) (15,532)
Total staff costs BME TR 7,967 7,949
Auditor’s remuneration = E AT EN &

— audit services — F|ZART 1,650 2,002

— non-audit services — IEE RIS 334 358
Depreciation of e

— Property, plant and equipment — ME BB MERE 1,094 183

— Right-of-use assets —EAREEE 348 1,514
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10.EENEEMS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors (a) £
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RIBER ETHRBRES QARG
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong PEENEAFEESRERTTH
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: ABHMOT :
Year ended 31 December 2023 BZ2023F12A31HLFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fee allowances contributions Total

FER BIKEA
ik H iR s EIfR st
MoP’000 MoP’000 MoP’000 MoP’000
TRFIT TRFIx TRFIx TRFIx

Executive directors (Note a): BOTES (Hita)
Mr. Cheong Ka Wo RRMELAE
(“Mr. Cheong”) ([REE]) - 3,060 1 3,061
Mr. Leong Kam Leng REREE
(“Mr. Leong”) (TR%%]) - 600 1 601
- 3,660 2 3,662
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
directors (Note b): (Fi&tb) -
Mr. Law Lap Tak BinELE 149 - - 149
Ms. Lee Sze Ming FRBRTL 149 - - 149
Mr. Chan Ming Kit BReff A 149 - - 149
447 - - 447
447 3,660 2 4,109
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10.EEREEME »
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors (continued) (@) EF @)
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fee allowances  contributions Total

ek RIRER
ik H At 228 TR a5t
MOP’000 MOP000 MOP’000 MOP000
TR TRFIT TRFIT TRFIT

Executive directors (Note a): HITEE (Hita):
Mr. Cheong REAE - 3,060 1 3,061
Mr. Leong REE - 600 1 601
- 3,660 2 3,662
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors (Note b): (Fietb) -
Mr. Law Lap Tak BIwELE 149 - - 149
Ms. Lee Sze Ming ZBIE L 149 - - 149
Mr. Chan Ming Kit (3713 149 - - 149
447 - - 447
447 3,660 2 4,109
Notes: Hiat
(a)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their (a) FHMITEENMEARERE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the BARRRAE B EBRER
Company and the Group. Mr. Cheong is also the chief executive BEIE o REETARNEER
of the Group for both years. MEFEZEERITE °
(b)  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown (b) ERBURRTEZFAOME AR
above were for their services as directors of the Company for ERMEFEREERRARESAHN
both years. RHRBHIME -
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
include one (2022: one) executive director. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2022: four) individuals of the Group for
the year are as follows:

10.EEREEME »

b) EE

AEBRAFENRAATS M
AL BE—F (2022%F : — %)
BITES - ASEHEBNAE
(2022 %F : [UE) EARAFEH

BemT
2023 2022
2023 £ 2022 ¢
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHFI T FELIT
Salaries and other allowances e M HE A ERL 2,934 2,934
Discretionary bonus (Note) BIBIEAL (B at) 1,995 2,845
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & k78 Fll 51 21 2% 4 4
4,933 5,783

Note: The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the duties
and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group and
the Group’s performance.

The number of highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Kiat - BBTEA T2 ZE A BN ER
ATHBBREFARREED
RIRMEE °

FIN R TEEBWIEARAF
ExzeaFHEEHBANT

2023 2022

2023 F 2022
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T % 1,500,000 78 7T 3 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T & 2,000,000 78 7T - 2

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to joint or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. No director has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

11.INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

11.AEH (BER) X

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFIT FEPIT
Macau Complementary Tax BPIETISE AR
Current tax charged BER R 1E - 896
(Overprovision) underprovision in BEFE (BEEE BETR
prior years (5) 231
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBMFH
Current tax charged BNHAFR 18 34 85
(Overprovision) underprovision in MEFE (BEEE) BETE
prior years (73) -
(44) 1,212

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and
registered in Hong Kong. The Cayman Islands tax is exempted,
but the Company is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and it is
qualified for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2
million of the assessable profits is taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

The Company’s operating subsidiary is subject to Macau
Complementary Tax at a rate of 12% on the assessable income
exceeding MOP600,000. No provision for Macau Complementary
Tax has been provided as a subsidiary of the Company incurred
loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

RARRHAEHSTMANLERES
A -HERSHENRSE  BERAA
ABHMEBFEB LS FE AR
FIMER EARB RNE2B BB T
28.25% BT - #A T ERT & A 1%
16.5% @ FL ©

R m) B Y 8 A 578 3k A8 S 600,000
SB P9 7T A FE SR B U LA 129 A9 7R 2R 48
MRPIFTS I - ARNE £2023F
12A3 BIEFEARG —EHBAR
SRS EE At WwESBPIFE/H R
TRatiesE o
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

A e
11.INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 11.rE8 ER) B X @
(continued)
Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) FAMEHHAX I EGEEE REAM
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss 2EKEFRARKRBAT (BE) &
and other comprehensive income as follows: R

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F

MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFET PRI

(Loss) profit before tax B AT (E518) & A (3,803) 10,524
Tax charge at Macau Complementary 12% MBI TS ARG E W

Tax rate of 12% MEZH (456) 1,263
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR EHMIEA S 2 MIBFE

for tax purposes 171 99
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARBMBA ZHIBZE

purpose (416) (328)
Tax losses not recognised AERTIAEE 751 -
Special complementary tax incentive 5B F B R e e - (72)
(Overprovision) underprovision in prior years 387t F [& (FBFEEE) BET T (78) 231
Effect of different tax rate of FHMENEEERLENEENT

entity operating in other jurisdiction R R & (16) 19
Income tax (credit) expense for the year FRMEHR (ER) A (44) 1,212
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses RMEBAR NEBNRB A EE
of approximately MOP6,262,000 (2022: MOPnil) available for offset 15 476,262,000 )29 7T (20224 : T )&
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in FI7T) AT AR SE R A FI o f A AR 2R
respect of these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future pil B R N = IR i o =
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of EHEERRELEHIBEEE - RERB
approximately MOP6,262,000 that will expire on or before 31 TE 5 18 B 1R 8 7 2026 F 12 A 31 H =k
December 2026 (2022: MOPnil will expire on or before 31 2 B E BB Y &5 18 496,262,000 8 P9 7T
December 2025). Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely. (2022 4F : TR PFIT #5172 2025 F 12 A

31H= 2RI B HR) o HfhE5i8 o] &R
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

12.DIVIDENDS

12. 1R &

2023 2022
2023 F 2022

MOP’000 MOP’000

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the A EER AP KA

FRFIT THFIT

Company recognised as distribution AAREBRRIRE -

during the year:

2022 Final — HK1.08 cents 2022 FRH — 1.08 7L

(equivalent to MOP1.11 cents) (FAER1.118P91L) (2022 4F -

(2022: 2021 final — HK2.03 cents 2021 £ RH) — 2.03 11l

(equivalent to MOP2.09 cents)) (FBZE 74 2.0938F911)) 5,570 10,470
2022 Special — HK$nil 2022 F 5 R — T IT (2022 F -

(2022: 2021 special — HK3.97 cents 2021 155 — 3.97 1l

(equivalent to MOP4.10 cents)) (FHER 4.1008F910)) - 20,476

5,570 30,946

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, no final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK1.08 cents
in an aggregate amount of MOP5,570,000, approximately
HK$5,400,000) has been proposed by the directors of the
Company.

RBERE AR AEEMERE
Z£2023F12A31HIEFERESTIK
REARS B (2022 4F : 1.08781l - 5B A&
5,570,000 297t (475,400,00087T)) °

BIIMEERERAR 2023FEHeE
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

13.BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.8#KREX (&i8) ZF

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share attributable to RAFEBAREERERN (BB &
owners of the Company is based on the following data: MIVRATBURETE -

2023 2022
2023 &£ 2022 &
MOP’000 MOP’000

FHEFIT FEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(REX) (&%)

(Loss) Earnings (E#8) &F
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of STESRER(EE) BFN
calculating basic (loss) earnings (E518) B F|
per share (3,759) 9,312
’000 ‘000
F i Fhg
Number of shares R4 EE
Weighted average number of ordinary FTEERERATR
shares for the purpose of calculating TR
basic earnings per share 500,000 500,000
No diluted (loss) earnings per share is presented for both years as BAMEFEELEERTELEL®
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years. f& - R 25 WAEFE 2 G EE

(B1R) &7
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
premises

BOBH
MOP000

THFg 7
R[]

Leasehold
improvements
BENREE
MOP’000

Motor
vehicles
EL]
MOP’000

-

14.9% - BERRE

Office
equipment
BARE
MOP'000

Furniture and
fixtures
BARKE
MOP'000

-

Machinery Total

HEh At
MOP000 MOP’000

-

coST RA&

At 1 January 2022 7202241 A 18 - 1,429 269 254 47 9 2,378
Additions RE 35,748 550 - 14 21 - 36,333
At 31 December 2022 142022412 A31H 35,748 1,979 269 268 438 9 38,711
Additions RE - 2,656 - 39 - - 2,695
Disposal e - (1,430) (140) - (18) - (1,588)
At31December2023  32023E12 318 35,748 3,205 129 307 420 9 39,818
DEPRECIATION wE

At 1 January 2022 H2022%1F18 - 1,323 154 214 377 9 2,077
Provided forthe year ~ FE#E - 108 26 21 28 - 183
At31December2022 3 2022E12 318 - 1,431 180 235 405 9 2,260
Provided for the year ~ EF#&E 715 320 2 17 16 - 1,094
Eliminated on disposals 5 i\ &€ B4 44 - (1,429) (140) - (18) - (1,587)
At 31 December 2023 142023412 A31H 715 322 66 252 403 9 1,767
CARRYING VALUES  ERE{E

At 31 December 2023 2023412 A31H 35,033 2,883 63 55 17 - 38,051
At 31 December 2022 12022412 A31H 35,748 548 89 33 33 - 36,451

M- BERERETINEGR A EM
FHANBRERIATEMNENE

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates

per annum:

Office premises 2% EENEA 2%

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful lives and HEMEEE AEAF S AE
the term of the lease HR (AREE

Motor vehicles 20% ] 20%

Office equipment 20% EENSEC ] 20%

Furniture and fixtures 20% REREE 20%

Machinery 20% T, 20%

Hiet 2022 F RERWREMRIFES BT
2023 FHIAYTE

Note: Office premises and carpark were not in use during the year 2022, hence
the depreciation started in 2023.
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

15.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15.FAEEE

Office
premises Warehouse Car parks Printers Total

N BRE FEE FTENH et
MOP000  MOP’000  MOP’000 ~ MOP’000  MOP’000
THRFT  TRFIT  THEFT  TEFT  TEFT

COST Bz
At 1 January 2022 202241 A1H 2,804 2,380 210 329 5,723
Additions NE - 536 - - 536
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 2,804 2,916 210 329 6,259
Additions NE - - 187 44 231

Disposal k= (2,804) (2,916) (139) (329) (6,188)
At 31 December 2023 72023912 A31H - - 258 44 302
DEPRECIATION wE

At 1 January 2022 1202241 818 1,721 1,791 113 305 3,930
Provided for the year FERE 431 990 71 22 1,514
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 2,152 2,781 184 327 5,444
Provided for the year FERE 131 135 76 6 348
Eliminated on disposal 7 H & Bl 4 (2,283) (2,916) (139) (329) (5,667)
At 31 December 2023 2023412 A31 8 - - 121 4 125

CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H - - 137 40 177

At 31 December 2022 M2022412 A31H 652 135 26 2 815
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

15. 5 FAEEE @

2023 2022
2023 F 2022

1 5.R|GHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

MOP’000 MOP’000
THRFIT TRFIT

Expense relating to short-term leases HEHEEFSENRAX 69 266
Total cash outflow for leases (Note a) MERS RN B (Hita) 429 1,371
Additions to right-of-use assets (Note b) RNEFREEE (Kitb) 231 536
Notes: Hiat -

(@) Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
liabilities and short-term leases. These amounts are presented in
operating or financing cash flows.

(b) Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases entered
and lease modification.

For both years, the Group leases office premises, warehouse, car
parks and printers for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of one year to five years (2022: one year to five
years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car parks
and apartments. At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to
which the short-term lease expense incurred during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into
new leases for the use of one printer and two carparks (2022: nil).
Lease liabilities of MOP231,000 (2022: MOP536,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets attributable to new
leases entered into. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes. These are the major non-cash
lease related transactions for the previous year.

@ ZEBEEHERENEAS LRSI
UREHEE ZEcEIRBERS

mERET -

(b) ZeBERENETOREEENERE
BEREEE -

REEFE  NEEHHEERLYE
RE -FHEERITHOBANEZE -
MEAGHNBEEHNRB1FESHF
(2022 - 1FE5%) - HEKRIE
BEEMNEETEERE B28EN
R B 1R 3R R A6k 1 = OB TE R A M RT A
THREHENRER  NEBER
BHMERLETER QA BRHATH
Hif -

REBTHREESRABI M EH
FAE - H20234F %2022 12 A 31
H SfEEAaEUNEHEER
YHRFREENEHHAEHAES -

HE2023F12A31HILFEE A&
EER— e kM EEES
(20224 : F) 5] A E ° 231,000
S8 P9 7T (2022 £ : 536,000 F9 JT) #Y
HEABEDNEEHHEENERBER
BEEWR - HEWRSE L EENEM
RERT REBEAEBZHELE
FREREZRIN - HEEETATA
EEERENER - ZERZABE
FEFZIRAERBERS -

BOTHEERER AT 2023FFEHE
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

16.CONTRACT ASSETS 16.5WEE
The contract assets arising from electrical and mechanical METRUALRERBEERBEED
engineering works, and maintenance and repair services are as BREEWNT
follows:

2023 2022
2023 F 2022
MOP’000 MOP’000

FEFIT TFREFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(REX) (&%)

Contract assets from contracts with BEAHNEEMNEHNEE
customers 49,294 41,961
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 28b) i : 1& B E 1B & # (K17 28b) (30) (54)
49,264 41,907
Represented by: KK :
Electrical and mechanical HE T2
engineering works 49,207 41,721
Maintenance and repair services RE N HEIE RS 57 186
49,264 41,907
Analysed as current AT A BN ER
Unbilled revenue PNGE L € 32,035 38,116
Retention receivables EWRE S 17,229 3,791
49,264 41,907
As at 1 January 2022, contract assets amounted to MOP45,342,000. MN2022F1A1H AHNBEA
45,342,000 8 97T °
The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to AHNEEXTZHEAREERZ THEM
consideration for work completed and not billed because the RAAEZMNIRKMRENEFEE -
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance in BZESRBRMNUANEENHEBIR
satisfying the respective performance obligations at the reporting RIBITHE TR LA RRE REE RS
date on construction contracts in respect of electrical and MEEANNSERNET RGN -
mechanical engineering works, and maintenance and repair EBREFMKAEIFEEGR  ANEESE
services. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables BEE S EWKIE -

when the rights become unconditional.

Change of contract assets as at 31 December 2023 represents MR2023F 12 A31HANEELFIE
the contract revenue recognised ahead of the accumulated ERAEERENBAN G LN -

progress billings.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

1 G.CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group requires
certain customers to provide upfront deposits and typically net
offs the deposits with first payments. Unbilled revenue included in
contract assets represents the Group’s rights to receive
consideration for works completed but not yet billed because the
exercise of such rights is conditional upon customers’ satisfaction
on the contract work completed by the Group, customers’ or
external surveyors’ issuance of certification on the works or the
payment milestones being met. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains
certification of the completed contract works from customers or
external surveyors or meets payment milestones.

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period ranging from
one year to two years for 5% to 10% of the contract value. This
amount is included in contract assets until the end of the retention
period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on satisfying the defect liability period of individual
contracts. The Group typically reclassifies contract assets to trade
receivables when defect liability period expires.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating
cycle.

At 31 December 2023, retention money held by customers for
contract works amounted to MOP17,229,000 (2022:
MOP3,791,000). Retention money is unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable at the end of the defect liability period of individual
contract, ranging from one year to two years from the date of the
completion of the respective projects.

16. 5 EE »)

FECHRAANEESENTIEZMNRK
Rt

BESK

AEBEZREANBRMNFERE
ME—BEIETHEEER BAR
e THAR ST B BRGRIA - AR E E R
ETEFPRHSRS  WABEIUE
HAREHEZE  ANEETREN
AFARRmREASEARERD =
RERAFENTENRE  RES
TELEENNGRTREEFEAKE
ERHAEHNTRREIME TP
AR EZETIREEERAIES
NRERER T AITE - ERMER
EEMEE (DARR SAKEREF I
FRBIEENEIS EA S ) TIZM RS
ZRNRERRE)  ANEEKBEE
B 5 REUWOR -

AEBE-—RBRTRAERH-—FEMFH
REBE BEHNEEMNS%E10% °
HRASEEREEREGHHMREER
THRSAEESEERNE Bt
ZeBERBBERANBITAGHE
E-ERBEETHERN  KAEE—
BEEHEEEN D EAE PRINGE

HRASEEHENERELEEYA
BRANEE BAKEBZFAH
BEDBRRPEE °

MN2023F12A318 BFFEAY
TRRIRE 4 517,229,0002F9 7T (2022
13,791,000 7L) - (RB & AE
EH 2B RATRERNEHNTES
BIEHSK 2 B —FE2MF AR
A E AR AR E -

EOLMBIRRAEIR AR 2023FERE
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

1 6.CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Construction contracts (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of retention money which is to
be settled, based on the expiry of defect liability period, at the end
of the reporting period.

16. 5 EE »

BESN B

RBEHR  RREEEHIHE S
DRFREBRESNRESITAOT ©

2023 2022
2023 &£ 2022 &

MOP’000 MOP’000
THRFIT TRFIT

Within one year R—FR 8,982 2,374
After one year —Fi& 8,247 1,417
17,229 3,791

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s retention money
are debtors with MOPnil carrying amount (2022: MOP40,000),
which are past due but not impaired. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

To measure the ECL, contract assets and trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for the trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b.
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

17.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17.EZ R EfEWFIE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022
MOP’000 MOP’000

FEFIT FEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(REX) (&%)

Trade receivables from contracts with RERFAEHNE S EWGIE
customers 28,096 40,935
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 28b) i : 1& B E 1B & # (K17 28b) (291) (155)
27,805 40,780
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments = fih fE Uk 5018 - 12 € R IB 7B
— Deposits (Note) — & (M) 91 13,993
— Prepayments — JENFIE 1,899 5,248
— Interest receivables — ERF B 531 420
— Other receivables — EfhfE IR 57 466
2,578 20,127
Total trade and other receivables B 5 N H AR IRARE 30,383 60,907
Analysed as: DT
Current binE2)] 30,383 59,947
Non-current ERH - 960
30,383 60,907

Note: The deposits in 2022 primarily represented (i) the performance guarantee
money placed to the customers as securities of the performance of the
Group’s E&M projects while the project has completed, such
performance guarantee money was received in 2023; and (ii) rental
deposits.

As at 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to MOP33,694,000.

Hiat 2022 F M iE 2 EBEO(AEBMAERS
FEAZRMEER MKPNELOR
Fd - ZBEEETK  LlBHORE
EA2023 FURE ¢ K (i) EEZ S -

R2022F1A1H  BRFAYWELD
B 5 e 708 433,694,000 082 FF 7T ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

17.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
customers. The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at
gross amount based on invoice date at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

17. € 5 R H B WFIE )

AEERLTHEEFIIOANEHEE
Ho-MEREMKR  BIEFZ A
EMASEEE S ERFBAENREK
DITWR -

2023 2022
2023 &£ 2022 4
MOP’000 MOP’000

FEF T FRFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(BER) (BT =z)

0-30 days 0E30% 18,491 16,357
31-60 days 31 E60K 6,050 8,943
61-90 days 61ZE 90K 501 6,754
Over 90 days HBimI0K 3,054 8,881

28,096 40,935

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with an aggregate carrying
amount of MOP9,605,000 (2022: MOP24,772,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances
MOP595,000 (2022: MOP100,000) have been past due over 90
days or more and are not considered as in default as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and amounts are
still considered as recoverable based on historical experience.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
customers from the date credit was initially granted up to the end
of each of the reporting period. The majority of the Group’s trade
receivables that are past due but not impaired are from customers
with good credit quality with reference to respective settlement
history and forward-looking information without undue cost and
effort. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

M2023F12831H st AAREEHE
SEWRIBAGHOERGEERZE
%9,605,0002 Pt (2022 F :
24,772,000/2F7T) - RS AHE @
HA - B # HA 45 #2 F7 595,000 08 FF T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

18.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Pledged bank deposits EEMBITHER
Short-term bank deposits AR T 5K
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLFEY

18. SR ITIFER S
BTER BHeRBES
EEY

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
F B P 5T FHEFIT
42 1,615
27,025 98,450
114,732 19,727

Pledged bank deposits represent bank deposits which are
pledged to secure bank guarantee to the Group. At 31 December
2023, the pledged bank deposits carried interest at a fixed rates
ranging from 1.9% to 3.4% per annum (2022: ranging from 1.6%
to 2.5% per annum).

At 31 December 2023, the short-term bank deposits carried fixed
interest rates ranging from 4.2% to 4.5% per annum (2022:
ranging from 2.8% to 4.1% per annum) and with original maturity
more than three months.

At 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents include bank
deposits with original maturity of three months or less carried
fixed interest rates ranging from 3.4% to 5.0% (2022: nil),
remaining cash and cash equivalents carry at prevailing market
interest rate of 0.01% (2022: 0.01%) per annum.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

HK$ BT

EEABETFERECEEAERR T
AEEBMRITERBBITER RN
202312 A31H  EHEMETHER
HEEFMENT1.9% E 3.4% (2022
FEMENF1.6%E25%) 58 -

R2023F12 A31H 2L L HE T
GFEHREFEN T 4.2% E 4.5% (2022
FFEMNENT28%E41%) BR
EIEpEEBB=M@A -

R2023F12831H BEMREE
BYERERINPEA=ZEAREREN
RITTFEH FFENF3.4% £5.0%
(2022F : &) B THEMELEE
Y12 3317 ™ 35 F 4 £.0.01% (2022
F:0.01%)THE -

AEEMDERRITER  BHRT
TFHRARRE RIREFEYHIZAR
MHRIERBHINEE B AN B EHE -
o

2023
2023 F

2022

2022 F
MOP’000
FEFIT

MOP’000
FHFT

117,645 115,800

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

19.CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities arising from E&M engineering works are as
follows:

Contract liabilities from contract with

customers in relation to E&M works SXBE

19. 5 WEE

KETREENAOEENT :

2023
2023 &£
MOP’000

2022
2022 £F
MOP’000
FEFIT
(Audited)
(&%)

FHFIT
(Audited)
(RRER)

HERETEAMEFPANELN

As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
MOP402,000.

Contract liabilities are classified as current as they are expected
to be settled with the Group’s normal operating cycle.

Change of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
represents the reduction of accumulated progress billings ahead
of the contract revenue recognised.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities:

2,310 -
MN2022F1A1H A4 EBEAE
402,00078F9 ¢ °

HRENEBEEINASEE —REE
@gﬁm%%ﬁ ’ WH 37\ ﬁ//\bibg\1ﬁ°

BHE
WAl RETHEE

72023 F 2 2022F 12 A31H
BEEHIEERRAS
E‘Ei/)&y °

TRETCEIRaTREEANE
(ERiElE ki

2023
2023 F
MOP’000

2022

2022 £
MOP’000
FEFIT
(Audited)
($e=%)

FHRFI T
(Audited)
(BER&)

Revenue recognised that was included in the FH]it A& LB ELEHBH

B RS

contract liabilities balance at the beginning
of the year

- 402

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts

When the Group receives upfront payments or cash advances
before construction activities commence, contract liabilities will
arise at the start of the relevant contracts, until the revenue
recognised on such relevant contracts exceeds the amount of the
cash advances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

20.TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 20.E 5 ENRERESE

H

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 &
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHFI T FEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(RERZ) ($e %)
Trade payables g S ENFIE 15,733 9,859

Accruals: JEEtEA -
— Accrued construction costs — FERFEEKA 19,515 12,167
— Accrued staff bonus — EEFE T4 1,695 2,700
— Accrued legal and professional fees —EEHEEREXER 1,424 1,946
— Other accrued charges — HibfEFT & A 517 3,259
38,884 29,931

The credit period on trade payables ranges from 0 to 90 days. The
aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on invoice
dates at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

BIENFIENEERNFOEIX -
REREHR  AKREREZAHE
D HVE 5 RN FIRRE T T

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F

MOP’000 MOP’000

FEFG T FAEFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(=) (=)

0-90 days 0& 90K 11,695 9,751
91-365 days 91 E 365K 4,038 108
15,733 9,859
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

21.LEASE LIABILITIES 21.7HE&8E
2023 2022
2023 2022 ¢
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFI T FEFT T
Lease liabilities payable: JENFHEARE :
Within one year —F R 102 603
Within a period of more than one year —F L BT HBBMRF
but not more than two years 54 227
Within a period of more than two years MF A EETHBBAF
but not more than five years 23 -
179 830
Less: Amount due for settlement within B RNt EARIEEE
12 months shown under current liabilities FEGIARBEE) (102) (603)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 7+ — 18 B 1% B HiE & ~ 1B
shown under non-current liabilities FIASERBEE) 77 227
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease HAREERENINETIIEEEN
liabilities is 5% (2022: 5%)). IR 55% (20224 : 5%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

22.BANK BORROWING

Secured bank borrowing BILIRIRITE R

22 R ITIER
2023
2023 F

2022

2022 £F
MOP’000
FHEFIT

MOP’000
FHFIT

12,820 13,323

The carrying amounts of the above B R EEAE

borrowing are repayable*:

2023
2023 &

2022

2022 £F
MOP’000
FHEFIT

MOP’000
F AT

Within one year —F KN 516 511
Within a period of more than one year —F U E BT BB F
but not exceeding two years 535 528
Within a period of more than two years MFEAEENHBBRAF
but not exceeding five years 1,704 1,683
Within a period of more than 5 years AFME 10,065 10,601
12,820 13,323
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as set out in * EIH

the agreement.

At 31 December 2023, the bank borrowing bear interest at Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) +1.3% or Prime Rate -3%
(2022: HIBOR +1.3% or Prime Rate -3%, whichever is lower),
whichever is lower.

Effective interest rates per annum of bank borrowing for the year
are fixed at respective contract dates as follows:

Effective interest rates =T E

JEAS & R E A p a8 P B0 51 B TR
H o

R2023F12 A31H  RITERRE
BIRITRERE ((BBRITRAZERE])
+1.3% sk B BT & —3% (2022 F :
EARTREFRE1.3%HREEF
T 3% (ARIEEBE))TE + UK
BEAR%E-

FREFEITEFNERFANEREAH

RHEEENT :
2023 2022
2023 & 2022 &
3.125% 2.875%

BIIMEERERAR 2023FEHeE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

23.SHARE CAPITAL 23. 1k A<
Number Share
of shares capital
[k 4= A
MOP’000
FRFTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each F%0.01 8T K L A
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and 2023 R2022F1A1H - 2022F &%
202312 A31H 2,000,000,000 20,600
Issued and fully paid: BEIRER:
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and 2023 RA2022F1 518 + 2022F
2023512 A31H 500,000,000 5,150
All shares as at year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 rank pari RELE 2023 F 2022412 A31H &
passu with the then existing shares in issue in all aspects. FER2MBMHAMB T EHEL R 2]

BERTRNEZER SR -
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

24.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Name of subsidiaries

o) PR

Directly held:
BERR

Macau E&M Company

Limited
BIIHEAR AR

Indirectly held:
&R

Kento

B

Place and

the date of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and
fully paid
capital
ERTR
BRBRA

Place of
operation

AL,
3L 26 2 E A

EEME

BVI British Virgin Islands HK$1
30 October 2017

KBELEE RERELHS 18T
2017410 H30H

Macau Macau MOP60,000
27 January 2011

R P 60,000/2F7T

201141 H27H

25.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Employees employed by the Group’s operation in Macau are
members of government-managed social benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Macau operation is
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the social benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the social benefits scheme operated by the Macau
government is to make the required contributions under the

scheme.

24.FEME N TIFE

ARARBEMREERERAZ
HEBARRE25MT -

Shareholding/
equity interest
attributable
to the Company
AAFEMGEBRE
R 7 A

2023
2023 F

Principal activities

FEER
2022
2022

100% 100% Investment holding
REZR
100% 100% Electrical and mechanical

engineering services,
maintenance and
repair services

HETRRRE  RER
IR

25 R K& R T8

AEBRMEBEANES SHRM
BT EENBRFEEE &R0
R B - RFIRF AR &8 G 8l
NEABEHRR  SEREMNREHRE
& ° BERPIEFE R & B A
FMmE ARENE-BEERRER
BAEtBIE L AT (AR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE

2023F 12 A31HILFE

26.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 August 2020
(“Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide employees, executives or officers,
subsidiaries, directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers
and distributors of the Group (“Participants”) with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company with a
flexible means of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
Participants. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 11
September 2020 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
shall remain in force for 10 years from that date. As at 31
December 2023, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately 6 years and 8 months.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant; (ji) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, no option has
been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme.

27.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to its stakeholders and maintaining an
adequate capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy remained
unchanged from prior year.

The Group regards capital as the equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group regularly reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risk associated with the capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new shares issues as well as the issue of new
debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

28. T A
28a. &R T EWH K&

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

28a. Categories of financial instruments

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 &

MOP’000 MOP’000
THRFIT TRFIT

Financial assets EEEE
Amortised cost B AR 170,574 175,606
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost B EE A A 28,553 23,182
Lease liabilities HEaE 179 830

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables from contracts with customers, deposits, interest
receivables, other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables and bank borrowing. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and sensitivity
analysis), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

28D. gﬁ%@tlﬁ%%i@ﬁ Z &K

=

AEENETRERTABRERE
EPANNE ZRWRE &
T YR Ho YRR
EERARTER BHRTE
R-ReEMBEEEY EHE
NHRBRRITER - ZFERT
B BN S 5%EE -

HZEeMIAFRNEREBRE
mizER (BERRE M XER
RGREDN) - EERR KR
BERER - BRWAIRIKZSE
R BERHEN T - NEEE
BREEEREEZETRER - AE
R B B B 2 SR BUE R 0
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE20283F12 A31HILEE

28. @ T H »)
28b. T EMEEBEZERK

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk

Currency risk

e )
i ER
B

REE AR R B /TR S B UER
RED s R KRB D X
HoAEEmENEERREE
REAEENGEEEUIINEE
FHER R EHERE - EE L ER
BNERTIEZRET AEEHE
BEERR ARAEEAIEDXR
ZUERSEEESENNESR

The Group collects most of the revenue and incur most of
the expenditures in their respective functional currencies.
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
purchase of raw materials that are denominated in a
currency other than the Group’s functional currency. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily HK$. The
management of the Group considers that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is insignificant
as the majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated MEEB B TERPI T - K
in the functional currency of each individual group entity and 7R &2 (8] T [ G A HINGEE [ B P N B
HKS$ is pegged with MOP. K

7N S B 3R B X B SN SRR
AR NEBEERESMNER R
BEREETHEERENERT -
KeZEE PERNIMNERR

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

REREHRE FERAINEST
ENEBEEREEaGEMNER
(=R NN

The carrying amounts of certain significant foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of each reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2023 2022 2023 2022
2022 & 2023 2022
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FHEFIT FHEFI T FEFIT

2023 &
MOP’000
FHEFI T

HK$ BT 126,084 186,313 27,413 19,241
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits, bank balances and
bank borrowing. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank
deposits and fixed bank deposits.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 20 basis point (2022:
20 basis point) increase or decrease in variable-rate bank
borrowing is used represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates. Bank
balances are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the
management considers that the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk arising from variable-rate bank balances is
insignificant.

If interest rates had been 20 basis points (2022: 20 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2023 would decrease/increase by MOP25,640
(2022: decrease/increase by MOP756,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowing.

28. @ T H »)
28b. Eﬂﬂﬂ B EIEEE R

)
iz Rk (&)
FEmB

REBEF B M R IRITER
RITAERIRITERMEERR S
MENERERR - NEE IR EE
MR B ERRIT 7 R NE IR
1773 5K M @ B & FEF = B o

HREE D

L\AT@ZE&E%T&E@F%&iHﬂK
A REREE - /T HRZ W
HFHARREENSRITANER
FEAREBEMRE - FAZH
A F R 1T 18 FE h0 3R 220 1
E 2 (20224 20 A A 2) KK
EREHNESEA R LmET
HoBRERBERAFZHAER
THESBEENRSREF ERER
WAEK Iﬁtﬂﬁlmr AR
?Eﬁﬁf—_fmu

fin K & £ F /T B 20 @ 2
(20224 : 201E &2 BFEE
HhWEERFTIE AEEEE
2023 12 A31H L FEKR T
S FI #5612 11 25,640 38 P9 7T
(2022 % : i b /45 11 756,000 2
FIL) b W EEHRAEE D
FEFRBITER@MBEFRER

BITHWEIERAEMR AR 2023FEHRE
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
will default on their contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. At 31 December 2023 and
2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of respective financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

The management of the Group performs impairment
assessment for financial assets and contract assets under
ECL model. Information about the Group’s credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and the
related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

Trade receivables and contract assets arising
from contracts with customers

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has concentration of
credit risk as 70% (2022: 58%) of the total trade receivables
and contract assets are due from the Group’s five largest
customers. The major customers of the Group are certain
reputable organisations and management of the Group
considered that the credit risk is insignificant after
considering their historical settlement and credit quality.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated its finance team to develop and
maintain the Group’s credit risk gradings to categories
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The
finance team uses publicly available financial information
and the Group’s own historical repayment records to rate its
major customers and debtors. The Group’s exposure and
the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising
from contracts with customers (continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables and
contract assets with individual significant balances or that
are credit-impaired are assessed for impairment individually,
the remaining trade receivables and contract assets are
assessed collectively using a collective basis with
appropriate groupings. In this regard, the management of
the Company considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Deposits, other receivables and interest
receivables

Management of the Group makes periodic collective
assessment on the recoverability of these items based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

The management of the Group believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of deposits and interest receivables.

Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

28. @ T H »)
28b. Eﬂﬂﬂ B EIEEE R

RE)
EE R RRERT G ()

EFEHNELHE S BN
BREHNEE (4)

HREFREFERANEE -
AREE A BB %5 s 4R
FORMWE R T AT EZHEY
EERBENEERE - A5 @5
EREHRICEERENE SR
WkIE kB KB E B RETTRE
AHE - MR T E S REKARE
%@ﬁ%?ﬁi#&lﬂ%ﬁum“‘“iﬂzﬁ
ﬂ%lﬂﬂﬁ UM E - AR
EEERRASENEER E
ﬁWEIZHE_E

#E - HtERHERER
R &

AEEEEERBEGHEL
BEKRALMEAEARER
SEHATEEER  B%FEE
FY R UG B 1 R S RE B SR R AT A -

AEBEEBRR  ARENR
BEESEHRMERF L EE
RKAEEERR -

EEIRITIF ~ BRIIRTT
FAURBERBEEEY
HRXZZHFHREBRREER
PHBIFLREEFHRHRT
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28. €@ T B

28b. Eﬁ%ﬂffﬁ”ﬂ B £
R (4#)

FERRERBERL(E)

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

=N

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits BEFANELNE ZEW

184

and cash and cash equivalents (continued) BEREHNEE (&)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment AEBNRNFEERBRERTE
comprises the following categories: BIEA TR

Internal Trade receivables/ Other
credit rating Description contract assets financial assets
AEEFR  HL BERREKTE GHNEE HttEMEE
Very low risk  The counterparty has a very low risk of default ~ Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts
1818 2 e XHHEFHENRREE  TETMANKE 2HRHCEHE -EEERE 1REARBEEER
Low risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 12m ECL
but usually settle in full
vENE BERALERIHEREN BRE2EEE 2URICEHE - BEERE 12AARBEEER
High risk There have been significant increases in credit  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired Lifetime ECL —
risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
BEE BRBNHIINDERFENEETNR 2HRBCEHE - BEERE 2HRBEERR
BRE  FERRBEZEM - EEEHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired
B ARRKRABELREERE PHRBEESE - PHRHEEER
BRLEEERE - BREEENE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
sy AR KABRBARARENF BRI - FIRE WM TR S A
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

28. T B »)

28b. T EMEEBEZERK

e )

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which are
subject to ECL assessment:

External
credit rating

HEEEFR

Internal
credit rating

AFEEFR

FERRERBERL(E)

TRAMINEAEBEEREER
BHEENGEERR ZEE®
EERAGHEERETHEMER
R -

12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
12f8AH2HRAEEER REAE
At 31 December
W12A31H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHRMT FEFIT

Deposits 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 91 13,993
(Note 1)
& TR iyEN REREREEEE
(Hist1)
Other receivables 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 57 466
Hit WA TR iNEN REREHEEEE
Interest receivables 17 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 531 420
JEU A 2 AA+ TER REREHEEEE
Trade receivables from 17 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL 24,642 21,896
contracts with customers (collective assessment)
RPAENEENE DR TR (Hz2) 2HEREEEE (RBTH)
WsoR
Low risk Lifetime ECL - 12,838
(individual assessment)
iNEN 2HBEHEEEE (ERFT®)
High risk Lifetime ECL 3,212 4,366
(individual assessment)
=ER 2HBEHEEEE (ERFT®)
Loss Credit-impaired 242 1,835
g BREEERE
28,096 40,935

BIIMEERERAR 2023FEHeE
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. €@t T B #)
28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. I M R B B3R B 2 K I
policies (continued) R(#E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERR R BENE (E)
(continued)
External N CIE]]
credit rating credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
HBEETR ABEEIR 12@AR2HEREEFR REAE
At 31 December
®12A31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MoP’000 MOP’000
FRMT FEFIT
Contract assets 16 NA (Note 2) Lifetime ECL 49,294 18,772
(collective assessment)
BHEE TR (Hz2) 2HRAEERR(REFIR)
Low risk Lifetime ECL - 23,189
(individual assessment)
BB 2 HIEHBEEBE (ERIF)
49,294 41,961
Pledged bank deposits 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 42 1,615
BEREMRITER AA+ TER REAEREERSE
Short-term bank deposits 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 27,025 98,450
BHRTER AA+ B REARHREEER
Cash and cash equivalents 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 114,732 19,727
BeRESZFEN AA+ TER 12 ABHEEERE
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

28. €@ T B

28b. A EEBEERK
e )

FERRERBERL(E)

Wiz

1. BRABCEERREEREMS A%
) {50 R 260 1 4 R R (S B )06 HE AR
EEERBREZEDEEEM -

Not
past due Total
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFIT FEFIT
At 31 December 2023 #2023F12A31H
Deposits i 91 91
At 31 December 2022 A2022F12HA31H
Deposits BE 13,993 13,993
2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied 2. REFERRFERENEEM

the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on
these items by using collective basis, grouped by internal credit
rating.

5 AKRBCRARRYBEHRE
ERIE QSRR (LA E2 IR
HEEBENERRE -RAA
BAREEERLEHEEER
ENBEBAIN  AEBGEAHRA
HEEBRABEESEROB)EE
ZEHBEMBEHEEESE -

BIIMEERERAR 2023FEHeE
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HE

2023F 12 A31HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Internal credit rating

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit ratings to assess the impairment for
its customers because these customers consist of a large
number of small customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for trade receivables and contract assets which
are assessed on a collective basis within lifetime ECL (not
credit impaired). Trade receivables and contract assets with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired with
gross carrying amounts of MOP3,454,000 and MOPnil
respectively as at 31 December 2023 (2022: MOP19,039,000
and MOP23,189,000) were assessed individually. Trade
receivable with significant outstanding balance of (i)
MOP960,000 (2022: MOP4,366,000) at high risk has an
agreed monthly settlement plan of which all amounts due
have been settled timely during the year and at the end of
the reporting period and (i) MOP2,183,000 at high risk due
to slow settlement (2022: MOPNIl). Trade receivable which is
credit-impaired assessed individually with outstanding
balance of MOP242,000 was fully impaired (2022:
MOP1,835,000, a sum of MOP1,300,000 was held on
€SCrow).
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% 5 3,454,00038 P9 7T K =8 P
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28. T B »)
28b. T EMEEBEZERK

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

e )
EERBRRAESEE)

(continued)
Internal credit rating (continued) A EBIEE R (&)
Gross carrying amount REAEE

2023 2022

2023F 2022
Internal Average Trade Contract Average Trade Contract
credit rating loss rate receivables assets loss rate  receivables assets
ABEETR FHERE EZRUNE ARHEE THEEREX Z5RIEE AHEE
MOP’000  MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRM T FRM T FRFIT FRFIT
Very low risk GEY 0.01% 1,581 2,764 0.05% 19,502 17,100
Low risk Rk 0.07% 23,061 46,530 0.18% 2,394 1,672
High risk =ER N/ATE A - - NATER - -
24,642 49,294 21,896 18,772

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
provided MOP12,000 and reversed MOP24,000 (2022:
reversed MOP65,000 and MOP123,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables and contract assets under
collective basis, respectively. The Group also reversed
impairment allowances of MOP97,000 and MOPnil (2022:
provide MOP122,000 and MOP43,000) for trade receivables
and contract assets due from debtors with significant
balances, and provided MOP221,000 impairment allowance
(2022: reversed MOP103,000) for credit-impaired debtors.

AR EBEEDEREHARED
FHMNEEBEREMBMNEQERMA
it WIRBREBBZHAIIE
AR BUSHATE L E R AR -
MTIFEERETE BT - g
REEEBARBERSRIER -

HZ=2023F12A31HILLFE -
AEBDRIFHRLERE S R
REMAHNEEREBEENR
B # 512,000 %2 F9 7T & 24,000
SR P9 IT (2022 4 :  [0] 65,0008
FS 7T & 123,00038F97T) ° AN&EH
MW A B BEREHRNESFA
HMEZERIGRERAENEERE
BB 15 97,0008 P9 T )R =8 P
7T (2022 4F @ 5112 122,0002 9
JC % 43,00072 P9 70) LA R gt B B
EEEREES AR ERE
221,000/8 F3 7T (20224 : [0
103,0002F97T) °
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Internal credit rating (continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables and contract
assets under the simplified approach.

28. @ T H »)

Trade receivables

EAENE
Lifetime
ECL
(not credit-

impaired)
2HBEHCEFE 2HENGERE
(BEEHE) (BRLEEEHE)

MOP000

Lifetime
ECL
(credit-
impaired)

MOP'000

28b. A EEBEERK
e )

FERRERBERL(E)

R EB1Z B &FAR (48)
ARETAR(E (&

TREINRBESHTERE S E
WHRIBERANEERRNEHE
HEEBRNES -

Contract assets
RNEE

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
2HREHEERE 2HENGERE
(BEEHE) (BRLEEEHE
MOP’000 MOP'000

As at 1 January 2022 H2022% 118 7 124 134 - 35
Impairment losses (reversal of) under EHIEEFEEX T2

ECL model, net of reversal REEE(EE)  NREE 57 (103) (80) - (126)
As at 31 December 2022 #2022512731A 134 21 54 - 209
(Reversal of) impairment losses under EHEEFBERX T

ECL model, net of reversal HE(RE)EE NREE (85) 221 (24) - 12
As at 31 December 2023 120235127 31H 49 242 30 - 321

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier.
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28.€® T B )

28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. I S R B E 12 B 2 &
. L

policies (continued) R (&)
Liquidity risk REBESRER
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REBRBESRRE  RN&EH
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed B REFEREERARBMNA
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s SEZERRIRERERBT
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash EmMEERENBReRREEE
flows. MK o
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRAFMAEESRABENHRT
maturity for its financial liabilities which has been drawn up EREHBR  EHOREBEAEE
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities RA R EREEN KT B %
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be TREBENRIBReRERE -

required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TERBEMERASRESRE °
Liquidity risk HEELEE

Weighted Repayable
average on demand Total Total
effective  or less than 3 months 1to2 2t05 Over5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years years years cash flows amount

mEFH  REREE AERRE
RRAZ  AORSER  8fEAR1E 122% 2555 RB5E REAR REAE
%  MOP00O  MOP0O0  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP000  MOP'000
TRAL TRz FAfx TRz FAfx FEfix FEfix

At 31 December 2023 12023512317
Non-derivative financial FITECHAR

liabilities

Trade payables ECITE - 11,605 4,038 - - - 15,733 15,733
Bank borrowing BIEX 3.125 228 683 910 2,731 12,365 16,917 12,820
Lease liabilities HERE 5 21 81 56 25 - 189 179

11,050 4,802 966 2,756 12,365 32,839 28,732
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. £ T B (#)
28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. B %5 Lk B3 B R R K
policies (continued) R (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESER(Z)
Liquidity risk (continued) MEEZERE &

Weighted Repayable
average on demand 3 months Total Total
effective or less than to 1t02 Over5  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year years years cash flows amount

*

& ;
IOR3EA  3MEARIE 1528 ES BiRSF HEAE
MOP 000 MOP'000 MOP000 MOP 000 MOP 000 { MOP 000

At 31 December 2022 12022512310
Non-derivative financial FiiE2RAR

liabilities

Trade payables EHRNFE - 9,751 108 - - - 9,859 9,859

Bank bonoviing BaAEz 2875 128 37 530 1683 10607 133% 13323

Lease liabiltes EEAE 5 274 354 20 - - 858 830

10,153 849 760 1683 10807 24052 24,012

28c. Fair value measurements of financial 28c. M T EMNAFEFE

instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are TREEREHMABENATET

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing RBEERUBRERESTHR

models based on discounted cash flow analysis. REBERNETE -

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities REHKANENeREERS

carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying BEEN A TEEERMERES °

amounts.
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29.PERFORMANCE BONDS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Certain customers of construction contracts undertaken by the
Group require the group entity to issue guarantees for the
performance of contract works in the form of performance bonds
and secured by pledged bank deposits (see note 18). The
performance bonds are released when the construction contracts
are completed or substantially completed.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had outstanding
performance bonds as follows:

Issued to the Group by a bank

B —RKRITAAEE

20.BHRERIAKE

AEBEMAEREANNETERPE
KEEERUBORBLARAGHT
BRHRTREERLASERRITE
(LM FE18) fEE I - BORE IR
BEAKTER A BT R o

REMSHR  AEBEBHRBITELD
IREEQT -

2023
2023 &

2022
2022 £F
MOP’000
FEFIT

MOP’000
THRFIT

1,216 5,411

At 31 December 2023, the Group has obtained total credit
facilities of MOP98,814,000 (2022: MOP97,993,000) for the
issuance of performance bonds and these credit facilities were
secured by an office with carrying amount of MOP16,568,000
(2022: Nil) and the promissory notes of MOP153,999,000 (2022:
MOP153,178,000) provided by the Company.

30.RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

MN2023F 12 A31H » AEED 5t %
HEANREDNGEFERELE
98,814,0008 P L (2022 F :
97,993,00008F37T) - ZE=EMEH
# 1 {5 16,568,000 8 P9 7T (2022 4F :
ZOMMAERERARARREED
153,999,0008 9 jr (2022 %F :
153,178,000 297 ) FY AR EETTHAR ©

30.FBEA LTI E
FEEEASFH

RERNEEREMEEEEASHNET
BT

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F

MOP’000 MOP’000

FHEFI T FHEPIT

Short-term employee benefits HEEEET 4,682 4,737
Post-employment benefits B2 R A 22 21
4,704 4,758

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by
the management of the Company having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

TEEBRABZHFHNIAARRER
BREBAXRBETSEEET -
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31.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 1. ETHELENEREY

194

ARISING FROM FINANCING i

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

TRALAEEREEDHELNAE
EHER(BRAS LIRS E) -
REGHELMAREERSRE
RARKREREBNAEELEAR
ERERTOBRABERDELENS
TREWNAE-

Lease Dividend Bank
liabilities payable borrowing Total
HEEE EfKRE BITER @t
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFIT FRFIT FRIT FRFIT
(note 21)
(Hrit21)
At 1 January 2022 H2022F1A1H 1,351 - - 1,351
Financing cash flows (note) BERSRE (M) (1,105) (30,946) 13,194 (18,857)
Dividend declared BEEREE - 30,946 - 30,946
Lease modification HEEA] 536 - - 536
Interest expense FERY 48 - 129 177
At 31 December 2022 H2022F12 A31H 830 - 13,323 14,153
Financing cash flows (note) REBRSTRE (M) (360) (5,570) (514) (6,444)
Dividend declared EERRE - 5,570 - 5,570
Lease modification HBEEL 231 - - 231
Lease termination HERIE (530) - - (530)
Interest expense FIBHZ 8 - 387 395
Subsidy e - - (376) (376)
At 31 December 2023 2023412 431 B 179 - 12,820 12,999

Note: The cash flows make up the net amount of repayment of lease liabilities,
dividend paid and bank borrowing in the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

32.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group’s borrowings had been secured by the pledge of the
Group’s property plant and equipment and the carrying amounts
is MOP16,568,000 (2022: MOP16,906,000).

In addition to the above, other details of pledge are set out in
notes 18 and 29.
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33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33.A& R ABERRER
OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHEF5 T FEPIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary N BATRIEE 35,569 35,569
Amount due from a subsidiary A ENGIE ] 49,890 50,837
85,459 86,406
Current assets REEE
Prepayments T 5008 235 419
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLFEY 3,341 2,661
3,576 3,080
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals EETE A 1,449 2,254
Tax liabilities HEAaE 34 158
1,483 2,412
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,093 668
Net assets BEEFRE 87,552 87,074
Capital and reserves EXRFEE
Share capital % X 5,150 5,150
Reserves & 82,402 81,924
Total equity A 87,552 87,074
Movement on the Company’s reserves KARREE

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

% 175 {8 e %] #st

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

FHEFT T FEFIT FRFIT

At 1 January 2022 1202261 A1 H 111,487 (29,362) 82,125
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNE K= ETE

income for the year - 30,745 30,745

Dividend %5 - (30,946) (30,946)

At 31 December 2022 72022412 A31 H 111,487 (29,563) 81,924
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNR 2K BT

income for the year - 6,048 6,048

Dividend iz B - (5,570) (5,570)

At 31 December 2023 72023912 A31H 111,487 (29,085) 82,402
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBERBE

AEERAMAEMRFREZXZEREER
BENHE  BEBEEKERSEVBHRERNR
BRERHINMT -

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements and the Prospectus is set out below.

196

Year ended 31 December
HE12HA31BILLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 F 2022 £ 2021 4 2020 % 2019 4F
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FR®Fr FRFIT  FEFT FEIT  FREPIT
RESULTS EE
Revenue L 128,283 143,046 184,496 276,790 237,680
(Loss) profit before tax M A BT (B8 ) %\ F (3,803) 10,524 29,104 29,764 45,994
Income tax expense e iM% 44 (1,212 (2,866) (3,091) (5,456)
(Loss) profit and total FH(EE) R
comprehensive income 2EW B
for the year (3,759) 9,312 26,238 26,673 40,538
Basic (loss) earnings BRER(EE)
per share (MOP cents) &F CRPL) (0.75) 1.86 5.25 6.23 10.21

At 31 December

M®12H81H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

2023 F 2022 20214 2020 4F 20194

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

FRFT FRFIT FRFIT  FREPIT  FEPIT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE

Total assets BEMRE 259,674 259,872 274,942 260,845 166,473
Total liabilities N (54,227) (45,096) (38,532) (50,673) (64,042)
Net assets BEFE 205,447 214,776 236,410 210,172 102,431
Total equity - Eay k] 205,447 214,776 236,410 210,172 102,431
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